
 

 

 
 
 

 CARE SERVICES PORTFOLIO HOLDER BRIEFING 
 
 

Meeting to be held on Tuesday 15 November 2016 
 
 

This briefing will only be debated if a member of the Committee requests a discussion 
be held, in which case please inform the Clerk 24 hours in advance indicating the 
aspects of the information item you wish to discuss.  In addition, questions on the 
briefing should also be sent to the Clerk at least 24 hours before the meeting. 

 
 

QUESTIONS ON THE INFORMATION BRIEFING 

 
 
The Briefing comprises: 
 

1    ADULT SOCIAL CARE LOCAL ACCOUNT 2015/16 (Pages 3 - 16) 
 

2    BROMLEY SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN BOARD ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16 
(Pages 17 - 98) 
 

3    CONTRACT ACTIVITY REPORT 2016/17 (Pages 99 - 122) 
 

BROMLEY CIVIC CENTRE, STOCKWELL CLOSE, BROMLEY BRI 3UH 
 
TELEPHONE: 020 8464 3333  CONTACT: Kerry Nicholls 

   kerry.nicholls@bromley.gov.uk 

    

DIRECT LINE: 020 8313 4602   

FAX: 020 8290 0608  DATE: 7 November 2016 

 
Members and Co-opted Members have been provided with advanced copies of the Part 1 (Public) 
briefing via email.  The Part 1 (Public) briefing is also available on the Council website at the 
following link: 
 
http://cds.bromley.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=559&Year=0 
 
Printed copies of the briefing are available to Members and Co-opted Members upon request by 
contacting Kerry Nicholls on 020 8313 4602 or by e-mail at kerry.nicholls@bromley.gov.uk.  
 
 
 

Copies of the Part 1 (Public) documents referred to above can be obtained from 
 http://cds.bromley.gov.uk/ 

 

http://cds.bromley.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=559&Year=0
mailto:kerry.nicholls@bromley.gov.uk
http://cds.bromley.gov.uk/


This page is left intentionally blank



1 

Briefing CS17059 
 

London Borough of Bromley 
 

PART 1 - PUBLIC 
 
 

Briefing for Care Services  
Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee  

15 November 2016 
 

Adult Social Care Local Account 2015/16 
 

Contact Officer: William Warrington, Public Information Officer 
Tel : 020 8313 4867   E-mail: william.warrington@bromley.gov.uk 

Chief Officer: Angela Buchanan, Performance and Business Planning Manager 
Tel:  020 8313 4199   E-mail:  angela.buchanan@bromley.gov.uk  
 

1. Summary 

1.1 This report provides Members with the Adult Social Care Local Account for 
2015/16 (Appendix 1).  The Local Account outlines how Bromley is supporting 
an improved quality of life for people with social care needs.   

2. THE BRIEFING 

2.1 The Department of Health (DoH) has recommended that all local authorities’ 
Adult Social Care directorates publish an annual Local Account (Annual 
Report), replacing the previous arrangements with the Care Quality 
Commission (CQC) since 2010. This is a non-statutory self-assessment 
reflecting performance in Adult Social Care and is the way in which progress 
can be communicated to the wider community, giving residents an opportunity 
to read about how the local authority’s adult social care performed locally 
against key outcomes.  We have once again taken the opportunity to include 
our housing services in our account in addition to the other Divisions 
associated with adult services. 

2.2 The work outlined in this report has supported people to have choice and 
control, and to maximise their wellbeing and independence in their local 
community. 

2.3 The Bromley Annual Report has recognised a significant range of strengths 
across all service areas in 2015/16 supporting the department’s continuation 
of improved performance including:-  

 85 young disabled adults have completed, or are currently being 
supported through, the travel training programme to become 
independent travelers.  

 Developed the Bromley MyLife ‘Living Well with Dementia’ section 
to support people with dementia, and their carers, to make informed 
choices about their lives. New pages include ‘Things to do and 
places to go’ and ‘What is Dementia?’ Since its launch, the 

Page 3

Information Item 1

mailto:william.warrington@bromley.gov.uk
mailto:angela.buchanan@bromley.gov.uk


2 

enhanced section of the website has received 3,064 unique visitors 
viewing 4,974 pages.  

 As at April 2016, of the 3,698 people who have received reablement 
since the start of the programme in February 2010, 2,348 (63%) did 
not require an ongoing service.  

 Effectively supported hospital discharges and prevented 
readmissions through the ‘Winter Resilience Programme’. 
Strengthened, through the integrated ‘Transfer of Care’ bureau, 
integrated seven day working between 3 Health and Social Care at 
the Princess Royal University Hospital (PRUH), resulting in an 
increase in planned discharges.  

 Successfully diverted over 1,000 households (86%) approaching in 
housing need, therefore avoiding homelessness.  

 Maximised the effectiveness of the NHS Health Checks programme 
by ensuring that individuals at high risk of diabetes who require 
intensive lifestyle interventions to reduce the risk are managed 
appropriately.  

2.4 There are also areas for development which are reflected in the 2016/17 Care 
Services Portfolio Plan:- 

 With health Partners, focus on wellbeing and prevention to improve 
health outcomes for the residents of Bromley. 

 Ensure the provision of high quality locally relevant information and 
advice about care and support need to enable choice and control. 

 Ensure that people with care and support needs, and those whose 
circumstances make them vulnerable, can live their lives to the full 
and are protected from avoidable harm. 

 People experiencing housing difficulties are assisted with advice 
and support aimed at maintaining or securing a home and avoiding 
a crisis. 

2.5 A full report on progress against the actions contained within the 2015/16 
Care Services Portfolio Plan can be found at  ‘Care Services Portfolio Plan 
update 2015/16’.     

Page 4

http://cds.bromley.gov.uk/documents/s50030643/CS15901%20Appendix%20A.pdf
http://cds.bromley.gov.uk/documents/s50030643/CS15901%20Appendix%20A.pdf


The London Borough of  

Bromley Local Account 

Adult Social Care 

Housing 

Public Health 

2015/16 P
age 5



The borough’s 

population in the 2011 

Census was 309,400, with 20,095 

0-4 year olds recorded in the 2011 

census. This is an increase of 4.7% 

since 2001. 

 

Priorities and Facts 

Bromley’s Population by 

Age and Gender 

The departmental Portfolio Plan for 2015/16 focused on ‘supporting improved quality of life 

through encouraging high aspirations, maximising independence, promoting healthy lives and 

protecting the most vulnerable’. The four Care Services Priority Outcomes were:  

 Ensuring the health and wellbeing and enhancing quality of life for 

adults and older people with care and support needs;  

 Maximising independence and reducing the need for care and support;  

 Ensuring that people have a positive experience of care and support;  

 Ensuring adults and older people whose circumstances make them 

vulnerable are safe and protected for avoidable harm.  

These priorities have been revamped for 2016/17 and can be viewed at: www.bromley.gov.uk/

downloads/file/1741/care_services_portfolio_plan  

Assessed the needs of 1883 people with 
caring responsibilities  

Between April 2015 and March 2016 we: 

Assessed the needs of 3894 new clients  

Provided 3846 adults with 

social care services  

P
age 6

http://www.bromley.gov.uk/downloads/file/1741/care_services_portfolio_plan
http://www.bromley.gov.uk/downloads/file/1741/care_services_portfolio_plan


Key Achievements 
 

 85 young disabled adults have completed, or are currently being supported through, 

the travel training programme to become independent travelers.  

 Developed the Bromley MyLife ‘Living Well with Dementia’ section to support 

people with dementia, and their carers, to make informed choices about their lives. 

New pages include ‘Things to do and places to go’ and ‘What is Dementia?’ Since its 

launch, the enhanced section of the website has received 3,064 unique visitors 

viewing 4,974 pages.  

 As at April 2016, of the 3,698 people who have received reablement since the start of 

the programme in February 2010, 2,348 (63%) did not require an ongoing service.  

 Effectively supported hospital discharges and prevented readmissions through the 

‘Winter Resilience Programme’. Strengthened, through the integrated ‘Transfer of 

Care’ bureau, integrated seven day working between Health and Social Care at the 

Princess Royal University Hospital (PRUH), resulting in an increase in planned 

discharges.  

 Successfully diverted over 1,000 households (86%) approaching in housing need, 

therefore avoiding homelessness.  

 Maximised the effectiveness of the NHS Health Checks programme by ensuring that 

individuals at high risk of diabetes who require intensive lifestyle interventions to 

reduce the risk are managed appropriately.  

P
age 7



Older People 
In Bromley 18% of the population are over 65, which is higher than other 

London boroughs.  

The general population is increasing, but the number of people in this age 

bracket is increasing at a higher rate than people who are younger. The number 

of people who are aged at least 65 is predicted to grow from 57,000 to 66,000 by 

2025. The increasing  older population will bring an increase in degenerative 

diseases which will in turn prompt a rise in demand for Carers and care 

provisions for the elderly. This rise has had an influence on how future care and 

support needs are met. Residents of Bromley, and those who support them, may 

seek information through www.bromley.gov.uk, Bromley MyLife, the Adult Early 

Intervention Service (previously Bromley Social Services Direct) or face to face.   
0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

16,000

18,000

20,000

2014 2015 2020 2025 2030

People 65-74 unable
to manage at least

one self-care
activity on their own

People 75+ unable
to manage at least

one self-care
activity on their own

P
age 8

http://www.bromley.gov.uk
http://bromley.mylifeportal.co.uk


Learning Disability 
The number of people in Bromley with a learning disability over the age of 

18 is 5,908.  

Of those at working age with a learning disability 8% live at home with their 

parents in the borough; this is a significant cohort of Carers that are susceptible 

to other stress related pressures and also other health issues brought on by their 

responsibilities. This figure is also an indication of how many people are not 

provided a house or care by 

their parents, but have to 

somehow secure this through 

other means; whether that is 

support from the Council, 

through voluntary providers 

or through their personal 

income. The number of 

people in the borough who 

live with the most severe 

cases of learning disability is 

also set to rise in Bromley.  

 Improving the 

independence of people with 

learning disabilities has always been important, for this reason opportunities are 

constantly being made available in the borough. A  specialist team of care 

managers work with individuals to assess the needs of the person with learning 

disabilities and their Carers and arrange appropriate services such as: 

People Predicted To Have A Learning 

Disability 

 2015 2020 2025 2030 

Aged 18-24  604 562 570 644 

Aged 25-34 1,033 1,096 1,086 1,046 

Aged 35-44 1,152 1,210 1,290 1,341 

Aged 45-54 1,137 1,144 1,147 1,216 

Aged 55-64 802 937 1,042 1,042 

Aged 18-64 4,728 4,948 5,134 5,289 

The percentage 

gap between the 

working age 

learning disabled* 

clients in paid 

employment and 

the percentage of all respondents in the Labour Force 

66% 

* Known to CASSR 

 support in the family or 

the clients own home 

 Housing and Support 

Schemes 

 Respite and Short-Term 

Breaks 

 Leisure Activities 

(including day services 

and clubs) 

 Education 

 Work Opportunities 

P
age 9

file:///M:/ECHS/ECHS/Performance Management/Local Account/Charts/Copy of Charts.xlsx


Nearly 20,000 people in Bromley have a physical disability, with 4,500 of 

those having a serious physical disability. 

Physical disability is the second highest reason why 

someone may require a carer, due to this prevalence 

it has a noticeable impact on the community. As with 

other areas, there has been an initiative to promote 

services and advice online through the MyLife 

website in order to help people improve their access 

to daily activities through all means available. This is 

also true for sensory impairment, as the service 

directory lists a range of experienced voluntary 

services to help with specific issues. Bromley Council 

has engaged with voluntary service providers in 

order to ensure that they are represented 

appropriately and also to ensure that the community 

is aware of what services are on offer in the borough.  

Physical Disability & 

Sensory Impairment 

2015 2020 2025 2030

Hearing 

Impairment  

(Aged 18-64)

Profound Hearing

Impairment

Moderate or

Severe Hearing

Impairment

Personal Care 
Disability

Physical Disability 
(Total)

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

35,000

40,000

2015 2020 2025 2030

Aged 18-64 with a Physical Disability

0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35
40

2015 2020 2025 2030

Visual Impairment  in Bromley by 
Age

Aged
18-24
Aged
25-34
Aged
35-44
Aged
45-54

P
age 10

http://bromley.mylifeportal.co.uk/aids-for-independent-living.aspx
http://bromley.mylifeportal.co.uk/aids-for-independent-living.aspx
http://bromley.mylifeportal.co.uk/a-to-z.aspx
http://bromley.mylifeportal.co.uk/a-to-z.aspx


Dementia 
Over 2,700 people in Bromley have been diagnosed with dementia, this 

number is growing as more of the population get older. 

0 10 20 30 40 50 60

2030

2025

2020

2015

Early Onset Dementia  in Bromley

Females aged 30-65
predicted to have early
onset dementia

Males aged 30-65
predicted to have early
onset dementia It is predicted that there will be 

over 5,000 Dementia sufferers in 

Bromley by 2025 

In  November 2015, the London borough of Bromley held a conference 

to meet and engage with organisations that could aid those who have 

Dementia. The Conference was attended by 68 people from a variety of 

backgrounds.  As well as professionals from health and social care 

statutory and voluntary agencies there were also representatives from: 

GP surgeries; local churches; Women’s Institutes; residents’ 

associations, housing associations, Girl-guiding; Go Ahead London – 

Metrobus; Job Centre Plus, Bromley libraries and Mytime Active. 

A recent survey in Bromley Established that:  

♦2 out of 3 People with dementia receive support from 
someone who lives in their home and 1 in 3 has 
someone who checks on them regularly 

♦42% of Family members who provide Care named 
Dementia as either the sole reason for providing care or 
a contributory factor for needing care, many of these 
Carers are over the age of 65 

♦Paid Care provides for a large number of the people who 
live with Dementia with 1 in 3 using a paid personal 
carer and 1 in 5 has a paid home help 

♦Assistive Technology plays a big part in helping those 
with Dementia as 3 out of 5 people have aids in the 
bathroom/toilet and 2 out of 5 have equipment to help 
with mobility 

♦Lack of Care was also identified as 1 in 3 do not have any 
form of practical help and support 

6.4%

6.6%

6.8%

7.0%

7.2%

7.4%

7.6%

7.8%

8.0%

8.2%

2015 2020 2025 2030

Percentage of People over 65 Predicted 

to suffer from Dementia

England Bromley London

P
age 11



Public Health 
Health interventions have become focused on preventing people from 

becoming ill by adapting their behaviour long before it affects their health.  

17% of adults in Bromley smoke, compared to London  

where the rate of smokers is 19% and the UK where 

21% smoke. The trends in the most recent figures also 

show that the number of Smokers is decreasing, this is 

not as a result of more people choosing to quit smoking 

or are ex-smokers, which has decreased marginally, 

but actually a decision for significantly more  to not 

even begin smoking (as shown in graph below).  

Ex-Smoker

Never Smoked

Current Smoker

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

T
h

o
u

s
a

n
d

s

Population who currently smoke, are ex-smokers, or never smoked in 
Bromley (18+)

Predicted Levels of Diabetes  by Age Group 

Overweight and obese children are more likely to become obese adults, and 

these adults have a higher risk of morbidity, heart conditions, disability and 

premature mortality. Obesity occurs when people take in far more energy in 

food than they expend through physical activity, increasing obesity is due to 

people eating more energy dense and processed food whilst undertaking 

less physical activity. This in turn Leads to an increase in long-term health 

conditions and increased reliance on adult social care provision; severely 

obese people are 3 times more likely to need social care than those who are 

a healthy weight.  

 65% of Bromley’s Population are overweight or obese, this is less than 

2% more than the National average. In order to reduce this figure Bromley 

has been promoting healthy eating and more exercise for its residents 

through the Healthy Weight Forum. The key causes of death in Bromley 

remain circulatory disease, cancer and respiratory disease, with smoking 

being a major risk factor in all three. The prevalence of heart disease has 

been stable for the last four years and mortality rates continue to decrease. 

Of Bromley’s Population are 

overweight or obese 65% 

P
age 12



Safeguarding 
As the lead agency in Bromley, London Borough Bromley is responsible for 

receiving all safeguarding alerts and then deciding how best to investigate. 

This year has seen a substantial increase in the number of safeguarding alerts received 

during 2015-2016 which has more than doubled since 2014-2015, in addition to this the 

number of referrals has also increased to 599, an increase of 103 over the previous year, 

presumably as a consequence of the increase in alerts.  

Comparison of Alerts & Referrals 

 Developing a 3 year strategy 

with statutory and voluntary 

sector partners; 

 Developing a communication 

strategy; 

 Holding a Development Day with 

partners to review the Board; 

 Revising the Board’s training 

strategy and training 

programme; 

 Holding the Board’s Annual 

Conference, a major training 

event, in October 2015 attended 

by over 140 people; 

 Supporting a comprehensive 

project which developed 

Board safeguarding policies 

and procedures compliant 

with the Care Act and London 

Multi-Agency Adult 

Safeguarding Policy and 

Procedures. 

The Safeguarding Board’s main 

achievements during 2015-2016 were: 

Training Activity  

1,946 health and social care staff 

received training through a variety 

of means: facilitated training, 

lunchtime learning briefings and e-

learning  

Over 140 people attended the 

Board’s Safeguarding Conference 

and received training from national 

organisations on a wide variety of 

subjects 

10 staff members were trained to 

deliver the Home Office Prevent 

training and there have been 12 

sessions attended by 207 staff from 

the Council’s Adult and Children’s 

services, 7 foster carers and 77 

from Education Services 

1,084 e-learning sessions were 

completed 

5 Best Interest Assessors refresher 

training places were funded 

P
age 13



Carers 
Around 30,000 people are unpaid Carers in Bromley, this is about 10% of 

the local population.  

In a recent survey, 70% of Carer respondents in 

Bromley said they live with the person they care 

for. This means that a significant amount of care 

need is taken up by unpaid Carers who not only 

cover care needs but also provide 24 hour 

assistance at home. In addition to this, 80% of 

respondents say that they had not been able to 

make use of support services which enabled them 

to take a break between 1 and 24 hours. This is 

above the London average of 72%. 

Unsurprisingly as the total number of Carers increases, so too is the number of Carers at 

the lower end of the age range. In December 2015, there were 964 young Carers under the 

age of 18 registered with Carer’s Bromley; this is an increase from 888 in 2014. 

At the other end of the spectrum, a person is far more likely to become a carer in 

their later years for their parents. It is important to monitor the number of Carers in these 

age brackets as they are more likely to reach a crisis point than those who are between the 

ages of 18 and 64 as they generally have their own key needs to contend with alongside 

their responsibilities as a Carer. There are about 2,400 who are over 64 and delivering 

greater than or equal to 50 hours of care a week. There are some, 210, who are over 74, 

providing greater than 50 hours of care, and in bad or very bad health. 

Of Carers are not able to take 

a break between 1– 24 hours 

72% 

P
age 14



Housing Need 
On average more than 100 households complete an application to join 

Bromley’s Housing Register each week.  

Initiatives in housing have become more focused on engaging in preventative measures with households who are approaching housing 

need; more than 60 households have been assisted to move to more affordable accommodation. There has also been promotion of under 
occupation and transfer schemes to best match available supply to housing need. In order to provide new affordable housing, the service has been 
working with housing association partners to enable delivery of new and the retention of existing affordable housing supply. The amount of people 
requiring accommodation is continually rising, making projects to find extra accommodation important to the service; as is the case with other 
boroughs in London. 

1,281 households 

received positive 

action that was 

successful in 

preventing 

homelessness. 

As of December 2015 

there were 2850 

households included 

on the Housing 

Register 

83% of those were able 

to remain in their own 

home with the 

remaining 17% being 

assisted into alternative 

accommodation. 

The Council continues to utilise funding to 

bring empty homes back into use, both 

improving local facilities and ensuring good 

quality homes for local families. Between 

April 2013 and November 2015, thirty 

formally empty homes within the borough 

have been brought back into use, with 20 of 

those being gained in 2015 

For 2015/16 the full year operation of the new 

temporary accommodation provision 

achieved a full year saving of £246,000 

against the current costs pressures faced, 

which is predicted to increase the following 

year by a £24,000. 

P
age 15



The Care Act 2014 modernises existing laws around adult social care. It also introduces new duties for local authorities 

to change the way adult social care is funded in the future. The first tranche of changes were implemented in April 2015 

with the revised funding rules coming into effect from April 2020. Alongside the Care Act 2014, the Government has 

also introduced the Better Care Fund. The Better Care Fund is a programme spanning both the NHS and local 

government. It has been created to improve the lives of some of the most vulnerable people in our society, placing 

them at the centre of their care and support, and providing them with ‘wraparound’ integrated health and social 

care, resulting in an improved experience and better quality of life.  

 

Together, the Better Care Fund and the Care Act will help Local 

Authorities to work with health partners for a more joined up 

approach in delivering social care and health services.  

 People’s wellbeing at the heart of every decision Carers rights on 

the same footing as the people they care for Preventing and delaying need for 

care and support  

 Personal budgets giving people greater control over their care  

 Information and advice about the care and support system  

 Promoting the diversity and quality of the local care market, 

shaping care and support around what people want  

 New guarantees to ensure continuity of care  

 Equity of funding  

 

Changes implemented in April 2015 

include general responsibilities on 

local authorities to promote 

people’s wellbeing, focusing 

on prevention and 

providing information 

and advice.  

Resid
ents 

of B
ro

m
le

y h
ave to

ld
 u

s…
. 

Care Act & the Better Care Fund 

The ‘Living Well with Dementia in Bromley’ survey was carried out to inform the 

conference that took place in November 2015 which was attended by 68 people. The 

purpose of the consultation was to talk to people about their experiences of living with 

dementia in Bromley or caring for someone with dementia. The survey is for all those who 

live in the borough who have dementia or who care for someone who has dementia. The 

Council want to understand people’s experiences of living in the community and how 

dementia friendly all parts of the London Borough of Bromley are. 

 

Feedback from the conference has resulted in the development of the dementia section of 

the Bromley MyLife website.  

 

Complaints 

 45 Compliments were 

received, an increase of 19 

from the previous year 

 267 Complaints were 

received,(89 partially or fully 

upheld), this is an increase of 

81 from the previous year 

P
age 16



1 

 
Briefing CS17060 

 

London Borough of Bromley 
 

PART 1 - PUBLIC 
 
 

Briefing for Care Services 
Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee 

15th November 2016 
 

BROMLEY SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN BOARD ANNUAL 
REPORT 2015/16 

 

Contact Officer: Kay Weiss, Interim Director: Children’s Social Care 
   E-mail:  kay.weiss@bromley.gov.uk 

Chief Officer: Interim Director: Children’s Social Care (ECHS) 

 
 
1. Summary 
 
1.1. This annual report covers the period from April 2015 to March 2016 and is the ninth annual 

report of the Bromley Safeguarding Children Board (BSCB).  It is a statutory requirement for 
Local Safeguarding Children Boards to publish an annual report under section 14A of the 
Children Act 2014. In line with statutory guidance, this report will be submitted to the Chief 
Executive, Leader of the Council, the local police and crime commissioner and the Chair of the 
Health and Wellbeing Board. 

 
1.2. In line with statutory requirements, this report explores the effectiveness of child safeguarding 

arrangements and how we promote the welfare of children in Bromley.  The purpose of the 
report is to provide a transparent assessment of the performance and effectiveness of local 
services. It identifies areas of weakness, the causes of those weaknesses and the action being 
taken to address them as well as other proposals for action. The report includes lessons from 
audits and reviews undertaken within the reporting period and the impact this learning has had. 
 

2. THE BRIEFING 

2.1 An effective LSCB is one where all partner agencies feel able to fully participate and engage in 
the scrutiny and co-ordination of safeguarding arrangements.  BSCB continues to achieve a 
high level of attendance at meetings which has enabled it to deliver against many of the key 
priorities.  

2.2 Through its scrutiny arrangements this year, BSCB was confident that agencies are compliant 
with their duties under Section 11 of the Children Act 2004. Where concerns or challenges 
have been raised through the year, agencies have been challenged and recalled  to the 
Section 11 Panel six months later to ensure improvements take place.   

 
2.3 LSCBs  have a responsibility to scrutinise the availability of early help for children and their 

parents. BSCB believes that early support for families in Bromley is good. The number of 
Common Assessment Framework (CAF) completions has increased again this year and the 
overall trend across all early intervention and prevention services in Bromley is one of solidly 

Page 17

Information Item 2



2 

increasing engagement.  
 
2.4 The Training Sub Group has undertaken a review of single agency training this year and seen 

the newly commissioned training programme rolled out.  It provided nearly 800 sessions of 
multi-agency training and learning this year.  

 
2.5 The Quality Assurance and Performance Monitoring (QAPM) Sub Group has completed three 

multiagency audits this year: Domestic Abuse; Child Sexual Exploitation and MASH (front 
door).  Learning from these audits has been shared and actions plans implemented.  The 
QAPM group has also revised its performance reports and continues to make improvements 
with its dataset. 

  
2.6  The new Case Review Sub Group has revisited the Child E action plan to ensure that actions 

have been embedded and initiated a learning review involving Health, Children’s Social Care, 
Police and Probation.  The learning from this will be published in Autumn 2016. 

 
2.7 A new Policy and Procedures Sub Group has been implemented to develop and ratify multi-

agency policies and to scrutinise individual agency procedures to ensure compatibility with 
inter-agency procedures. This year the group has published a Bromley FGM protocol and has 
drafted a multi-agency CSE protocol for Bromley.  

 
2.8 Priority groups of children are now scrutinised by the Vulnerable Children Sub Group. In 

2015/16, the group reviewed CSE and Missing Children and identified a number of 
recommendations to improve this area of work. This is being taken forward by a working group 
in 2016/17.  

 
2.9 During this year the BSCB has achieved a number of its 2015/16 Business Plan priorities. 

BSCB has: reviewed terms of reference and sub group structure; monitored training and 
staffing levels; had an effective Section 11 system; enabled learning through training, SCRs 
and briefings; started a process for increasing awareness and implementing policies for 
vulnerable groups. 

 
2.10 However, the BSCB recognises that there are some key priority areas still requiring more 

focus. These are to ensure that: there is critical enquiry and challenge undertaken by 
agencies; there is assured response to children who go missing; children, young people and 
the community are engaged in a systematic manner; the Board has good oversight of risks by 
establishing a performance dataset that can measure progress; schools are aware of 
safeguarding risks and are held to account by the board. 

 
2.11 It should be noted that Bromley’s services for children were inspected by Ofsted in April and 

May of 2016, which was immediately after the time period reported in this annual report (April 
2015-March 2016). The BSCB was judged to be ‘requires improvement’. Recommendations 
have been incorporated into the BSCB’s Business Plan for 2016-17. 

 

Page 18



1 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

 

 

BROMLEY SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN BOARD (BSCB) 
 
 

ANNUAL REPORT 2015-2016  
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 19



2 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

Contents               Page 
 
Chair’s Foreword          
1. Executive Summary  
2. Governance and Accountability  
 2.1-2.10: Board and Sub Groups 
 2.14: Attendance 
 2.15: Challenge         
3. Developing a Learning Organisation 
 3.1 Learning and Improvement Framework 
 3.2 Training 
 3.3 Multi Agency Audits 
 3.4 Learning Reviews 
 3.5 Community Engagement and the Voice of the Child 
 3.6 Communications 
 3.7 BSCB Annual Conference 
 3.8 BSCB Development Day 
4. Monitoring and Evaluation 
 4.1 Use of Performance Data 
 4.2 Section 11 Audits 
 4.3 Single Agency Audits 
5. Priority Groups of Vulnerable Children 
 5.1 Child Sexual Exploitation 
 5.2 Missing Children 
 5.3 Female Genital Mutilation 
 5.4 Domestic Abuse 
 5.5 Neglect     
6. How Safe Are Our Children?  
 6.1 Performance Data 
 6.2 Child Deaths 
 6.3 Allegations Against Professionals (LADO) 
 6.4 Private Fostering 

P
age 20



3 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

7. Single Agency Annual Reports on Safeguarding 
 7.1 Children’s Social Care 
 7.2 Bromley Clinical Commissioning Group 
 7.3 Bromley Healthcare 
 7.4 Kings College Hospital 
 7.5 Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust 
 7.6 Police Child Abuse Investigation Team 
 7.7 Borough Police 
 7.8 Youth Offending Service 
 7.9 Probation 
8.  Accounts 
 
 
Appendix A Board Membership 
Appendix B Children in Bromley – facts and figures 
Appendix C Glossary 
  

P
age 21



4 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

Chair’s Foreword 
This has been a very busy and challenging year for me as I took on the role, in April 2015, of Chair of the Bromley Safeguarding Children Board. It has 

also been a busy and challenging year for those managing all of the services provided to children and their families.  

The objective of the Safeguarding Children Board is to support and focus on the most vulnerable children, preventing abuse where we can by raising 

awareness and holding each other to account, as agencies, to provide the best response when children and young people are abused. That means 

working across Adult and Children’s Services and across all agencies.  

We have worked hard and held a useful development day in July 2015 that allowed Board Members the opportunity to engage with priorities and 

discuss more recent challenges including implementation of mandatory reporting on FGM, Child Sexual Exploitation and implementing the Prevent 

Agenda. Domestic Abuse remains a high priority for all agencies. It is essential, particularly during times of change, that we have strong partnerships 

that allow us to challenge each other and provide positive feedback and support, so that we continue to grow a strong and robust Safeguarding Board.  

We are working to strengthen the voice of the child and have held Board meetings in community settings to give Board Members the opportunity to 

meet those who use or have views about our services and it also allows for services to meet Board Members and tell us about their concerns. We now 

begin every Board Meeting with a presentation on one area of work, continuing to develop awareness of the work of the different agencies and 

providing opportunity for information sharing across all agencies. We have refreshed and are strengthening the Sub Groups of the Board, so that work 

is progressed outside of Board Meetings and Chairs of the Sub Groups can report progress and challenge to ensure progress.    

Throughout this annual report, there are summaries of what we have achieved against BSCB Business Plan 2015-18 priorities and what we need to 

focus on in 2016-17. The year ahead will continue to be challenging and we will work across all agencies, to make sure the safeguarding work in 

Bromley, with children, young people and their families and carers, is supported, challenged and improved.  

 
 
Annie Callanan, Independent Chair, Bromley Safeguarding Children Board 
 
 

P
age 22



5 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

Section 1: Executive Summary 
This annual report covers the period from April 2015 to March 2016. It is the ninth annual report of the Bromley Safeguarding Children Board (BSCB) 
which builds upon the previous annual reports. The report highlights a number of identified achievements and other areas where further 
improvement is needed.    
 
An effective LSCB is one where all partner agencies feel able to fully participate and engage in the scrutiny and co-ordination of safeguarding 
arrangements.  BSCB continues to achieve a high level of attendance at meetings and the sub groups are chaired by senior managers from Education, 
Health and Social Care.  A BSCB development day was held in July 2015 to agree the Business Plan for 2015-18, a statement of purpose and revised 
structure and to identify strengths and weaknesses.   
 
The Quality Assurance and Performance Monitoring (QAPM) Sub Group has completed three multi-agency audits this year: Domestic Abuse; MASH 
(multi-agency safeguarding hub) and CSE (Child Sexual Exploitation).  Learning from these audits has been shared and actions plans implemented. 
Through its scrutiny arrangements this year, BSCB is confident that agencies are compliant with their duties under Section 11 of the Children Act 2004. 
Where concerns or challenges have been raised through the year, these have been monitored and in some cases agencies have been recalled to the 
Section 11 Panel to update on progress. 
 
The Training Sub Group held a robust commissioning process in 2015 to award new training contracts.  A comprehensive training offer is in place:  23 
different classroom based courses ran in 2015-16 in over 40 sessions.  Nearly 800 people attended some form of face to face training (or briefing) in 
2015-16. Lunchtime briefings were held on the Child E Serious Case Review (SCR) and on the new FGM mandatory reporting duty. 
 
The new Case Review Sub Group has revisited the Child E action plan to ensure that actions have been embedded and initiated a learning review 
involving Health, Children’s Social Care, Police and Probation.  The learning from this will be published in Autumn 2016. 
 
A new Policy and Procedures Sub Group has been implemented to develop and ratify multi-agency policies and to scrutinise individual agency 
procedures to ensure compatibility with inter-agency procedures. This year the group has published a Bromley FGM protocol and has drafted a multi-
agency CSE protocol for Bromley. Priority groups of children are now scrutinised by the Vulnerable Children Sub Group. In 2015/16, the group 
reviewed CSE and Missing Children and identified a number of recommendations to improve this area of work. This is being taking forward by a 
working group in 2016/17.  
  
BSCB believes that early support for families in Bromley is good. The number of Common Assessment Framework (CAF) completions has increased 
again this year and the overall trend across all early intervention and prevention services in Bromley is one of solidly increasing engagement. The 
MASH is working well having increased its management oversight this year. This was the first year of a roll out of Signs of Safety, a  ‘strength-based, 

P
age 23



6 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

solution focused’ model, across social care. There is, however, a need to achieve more consistent practice within social care with good chronologies 
across services so that plans can progress and drift is avoided. The coordination of the multi-agency response to CSE/Missing and Gangs needs to be 
more effective and streamlined. 
 
During this year the BSCB has achieved a number of its 2015/16 Business Plan priorities. BSCB has: reviewed terms of reference and sub group 
structure; monitored training and staffing levels; had an effective Section 11 system; enabled learning through training, SCRs and briefings; started a 
process for increasing awareness and implementing policies for vulnerable groups. 
 
However, the BSCB recognises that there are some key priority areas still requiring more focus. These are to ensure that: there is critical enquiry and 
challenge undertaken by agencies; there is assured response to children who go missing; children, young people and the community are engaged in a 
systematic manner; the Board has good oversight of risks by establishing a performance dataset that can measure progress; schools are aware of 
safeguarding risks and are held to account by the board. 
 

Section 2: Governance and Accountability 
 
BSCB Business Plan 2015-18 Priorities 
Achievements: 
 1.1 Board members are confident of their roles and responsibilities: Development day held; terms of reference, sub group structure and membership 

reviewed; developed role and engagement of lay members. 
 1.2 The Board has a consensus on a working statement on the purpose of the BSCB which will drive the Board’s work and ensure effective engagement: 

statement of purposed designed by Board and published 
 1.3 The Board has an effective system for scrutinising statutory agencies through Section 11 / 175 audits: new panel and agency schedule implemented. 
Focus for 2016-17: 
 1.4 Ensure that there is critical enquiry and challenge in relation to the core safeguarding activity undertaken by all agencies. 

 
Bromley Safeguarding Children Board (BSCB) has been set up under the requirements of the Children Act 2004. BSCB is the key statutory mechanism 
for agreeing how the relevant organisations in Bromley will co-operate to safeguard and promote the welfare of children in Bromley and for assuring 
the effectiveness of what they do. 
 
Working Together to Safeguard Children clearly details the responsibilities of LSCB’s which include: 
 
 developing policies and procedures for safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children in the area of the authority, including policies and 

procedures; 

P
age 24



7 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

 communicating to persons and bodies in the area of the authority the need to safeguard and promote the welfare of children; 

 monitoring and evaluating the effectiveness of what is done by the authority and their Board partners individually and collectively to safeguard 
and promote the welfare of children and advising them on ways to improve; 

 participating in the planning of services for children in the area of authority; and 

 undertaking reviews of serious cases and advising the authority and their board partners on lessons to be learned. 

 
The key organisational mechanisms for delivering the statutory requirements of the BSCB are the meetings of the Board (four times a year) and the sub 
groups. Further information about the sub groups is available below. 

 

 
 
 
2.1 Reporting 
BSCB submits its annual report to London Borough Bromley’s Care Services Policy Development Scrutiny Committee, Health and Wellbeing Board, 
MOPAC, and the Association of Independent LSCB Chairs (AiLC) .  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE 

The Bromley Safeguarding Children Board is committed to ensuring the wellbeing and safety of children by coordinating local services 

and evaluating the effectiveness of those arrangements to safeguard children from abuse or neglect. 

Board Members are senior professionals who manage teachers, social workers, doctors, nurses, police officer, probation officers, 

volunteers and other practitioners.   We will: 

 Listen to children and families 

 Continually strive to improve local services 

 Be open and keep learning. 

 

P
age 25



8 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

 

 

2.2 Independent Chair 
Annie Callanan has been the Independent Chair since April 2015.  She also chaired the Bromley Adults Safeguarding Board in 2015-16. 
 

2.3 Board 
The full BSCB Board meets four times a year; the agenda offers opportunities for information sharing and discussion, but also encourages questioning 
and challenge. The Board continues to have lay member representation which adds value to the BSCB. The current lay members challenge thinking 

BSCB Structure 2015-16 

P
age 26



9 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

through active contribution at the Board meetings and as part of the Communications Task and Finish Group. The Board also has representation from 
the Portfolio Holder for Care Services, a local Councillor, and Head teachers from two Bromley Schools. The Board oversees the work of the sub 
groups which meet between the quarterly board meetings and scrutinises agency reports from across the partnership. 

 

2.4 Quality Assurance and Performance Monitoring Sub Group 
The Quality Assurance and Performance Monitoring (QAPM) Sub Group is central to the effective functioning of the BSCB. The sub group met six times 
during 2015-16. Since January 2013, the sub group has been chaired by the Board’s Independent Chair and takes responsibility for monitoring 
standards in safeguarding arrangements and other operational aspects of local safeguarding. It checks how well single-agency safeguarding 
arrangements are working and is able to provide robust challenge to improve practice and outcomes for children and young people. 
 
This year the work of the QAPM sub group included: 

 Scrutinising and challenging agencies through a new Section 11 Panel, comprising four senior partners plus the Independent Chair to enable 
appropriate and confident challenge.  Agencies are recalled to assure the Panel that new policies have embedded and performance is good. 

 Revising the performance dataset and data collation systems to improve returns and management analysis. 

 Multi-agency audits of CSE, MASH and domestic abuse.   Multi-agency audit findings and actions are circulated to front-line practitioners via 
regular newsletters. 

 QAPM maintains an issues and actions log to ensure that all improvements identified from the audits are implemented and to hold agencies to 
account 

 
2.5 Training Sub Group 
The BSCB Training Sub Group meets four times a year to evaluate the BSCB training provided and to agree the training programme for the following 
year. This year it achieved the following: 
 

 Well attended lunchtime briefings/seminars on Child E Serious Case Review in August 2015, Allegations in November 2015 and Female 
Genital Mutilation in December 2015 

 It held a robust commissioning process in 2015 to award new training contracts.  BSCB multi-agency training programme has been 
reviewed and extensively added to in order to meet current children’s workforce needs and new drivers including outcomes from SCRs. 

 Comprehensive training offer in place.  23 different classroom based courses ran in 2015-16 in over 40 sessions.  Nearly 800 people 
attended some form of face to face training (or briefing) in 2015-16 (some people attended more than one event). 

 20 free e-learning courses (Group 1 & 2) provided to adults and children’s workforce in 2015-16, with 2231 people completing courses.  
The number of professionals accessing e-learning increases year on year.   

P
age 27



10 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

 The Training Sub Group ‘mystery shops’ courses and follows up all poor evaluation scores.   
 Three tier training course evaluation process for multi-agency training has been embedded in 2015.  
 A full evaluation of single agency training conducted in 2015 by the Training Sub Group 

 
2.6 Policy and Procedures Sub Group 
BSCB Business Plan 2015-18 Priorities 
Achievements: 
 5.1  There is an increased awareness of  FGM and CSE and appropriate policies and strategies to address those threat: FGM policy ratified by BSCB. CSE protocol 

drafted for ratification in 2016/17. 
Focus for 2016-17: 

 2.3 Information sharing between agencies is effective to safeguard children’s welfare: planned publication of multi-agency information sharing protocol. 

 3.5 The voice of the child informs and drives developments in policy and practice. 

 

The BSCB Policy and Procedures Sub Group was set up in December 2015 and meets four times a year to develop and ratify multi-agency policies, 
procedures and protocols. The sub group also scrutinises individual agency procedures to ensure compatibility with inter-agency procedures and the 
London Child Protection Procedures.  Where a new policy or protocol is developed, a small editorial group is formed to draft the document, co-opting 
subject matter experts where necessary. 

A policy tracker is used to capture the rolling cycle of policies and when updates are required.  This year the sub group has written and rolled out 
Bromley’s Multi Agency Female Genital Mutilation (FGM) Protocol and has drafted an update to the Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) Protocol. Future 
priorities are Missing Children and Information Sharing.  The group will also work on monitoring how well policies are embedded through training, 
supervision and awareness raising. 

 
 
2.7 Vulnerable Children Sub Group 
BSCB Business Plan 2015-18 Priorities 
Achievements:  
 5.1 There is an increased awareness of  emerging threats to children including child sexual exploitation/missing/gangs:  a position statement and gap analysis 

produced to inform working group for 2016/17 
Focus for 2016/17 

 2.5 There is an assured and timely response to all children who go missing to address any safeguarding issues: evidence via data on children missing; evidence 
from return home interviews to improve knowledge of any common trends/patterns. 

 

P
age 28



11 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

The BSCB Vulnerable Children Sub Group was set up in December 2015 and meets four times a year to monitor and challenge the effectiveness of the 
strategic activity undertaken by the partnership to safeguard and promote the welfare of vulnerable children. Themes include CSE, Missing from 
Home and Care, Missing from Education, Trafficked, FGM, Domestic Abuse, Gangs, Disabled Children, and Radicalisation. The Group focusses on one 
priority group per quarter and calls on subject matter experts relating to the group in question. It scrutinises all up to date service information relating 
to that vulnerable group  (e.g. audits, performance data, mapping of provision, policies and strategies) to inform a position statement on the 
vulnerable group in question. This leads to a number of recommendations for existing strategic groups (e.g. MASE) or other sub groups (e.g. Policy and 
Procedures) or to a new workstream to be taken forward by the BSCB.  

This year the group has looked at the partnership’s response to CSE and to Missing Children. Recommendations include: 

 a more in depth review of the roll out of Operation Makesafe  

 CSE briefings to be delivered at SENCO Forums and Special Schools  

 To review the terms of reference of the MASE so that it has a more strategic function regarding trends and patterns for CSE in Bromley 

 For a Missing/CSE Coordinator and Administrator to be identified. 
 
Future priorities for the Vulnerable Children Sub Group are gangs and the Prevent agenda. 

 
2.8 Case Review Sub Group 
The Case Review Sub Group meets four times a year in order: 

 To make recommendations to the Independent Chair when a Serious Case Review or Learning Review should be conducted in Bromley 

 To act as the SCR core group when a Bromley SCR is initiated by the Independent Chair and ensure actions are fulfilled 

 To learn lessons from any relevant Learning Reviews and Serious Case Reviews conducted in the UK and to improve practice locally where 
possible. 

This year the sub group has revisited the Child E action plan to ensure that actions have been embedded and initiated a learning review involving 
Health, Children’s Social Care, Police and Probation.  The learning from this will be published in Autumn 2016. 

 
2.9 Child Death Overview Panel  
This statutory multi-agency panel has a core membership of police, social care, and health professionals. The panel meets at least four times a year to 
discuss the circumstances of all child deaths in Bromley and to identify any issues or trends. The Child Death Overview Panel Annual Report is 
presented annually to the BSCB Board (see Section 6.2 for detail on this report). 
  

 

P
age 29



12 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

2.10 Chair’s Group 
Each sub group is chaired by a different agency which is seen as a significant strength in bringing together partners. The chairs of the sub 

groups, including the Independent Chair, meet quarterly before each main board meeting in order to share good practice, measure progress 

against the business plan and ensure there are no overlaps between sub groups. 

 

2.11 Education Safeguarding Advisory Committee (ESAC) 
BSCB Business Plan 2015-18 Priorities 
Achievements: 
 2.4  Schools continue to be aware of safeguarding risks and are held to account by the Board: Education Safeguarding Advisory Committee and termly forums 

held. School representatives contribute to the Board. 
Focus for 2016-17: 

 2.4 Increase in schools taking part in Section 175 safeguarding audits  

 2.4 Increase in school staff attending training courses 

 

The overall aim of ESAC is to ensure that all children and young people are safeguarded in their place of learning.  The Education Safeguarding Advisory 
Committee is chaired by the Director of Education, LB Bromley. The Committee meets quarterly in advance of BSCB Board meetings. 

 
During the year ESAC has run termly Safeguarding Education Forums attended by safeguarding leads for the different educational settings to 
facilitate the effective dissemination of key safeguarding messages and learning. The following areas were covered at Safeguarding Forums: 

 A presentation from the ChildLine Schools Service. NSPCC are delivering a specialised service to primary schools for Y5 and Y6 children 
comprising a 30 minute assembly and a classroom workshop. 

 An update on the rollout of the Prevent programme and how it will be delivered to schools. 

 Overview of the Child Death Overview Report. 

 A presentation and workshop on the Signs of Safety model, delivered by managers from Children’s Social Care, including how designated 
safeguarding leads can contribute to the signs of safety approach at child protection conferences. 

 

2.12 Health Economy Safeguarding Forum 
The Bromley Clinical Commissioning Group (BCCG) Health Economy Safeguarding Forum is chaired by the Designated Nurse and Designated Dr for 
Safeguarding Children. The overall purpose of the forum is for representatives from relevant health services and organisations to: 

 Contribute to the implementation of the BCCG Safeguarding Children Executive Group’s strategy and Bromley Safeguarding Children Board (BSCB) 
business plan. 

P
age 30



13 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

 Discuss and exchange information from a local and national perspective on safeguarding and child protection. This will include 
policies/procedures, concerns and practice development initiatives from across the health economy and partner agencies. 

 
The Forum is accountable to the BCCG Safeguarding Children Executive Group. Individual group members are accountable to and represent their 
individual organisations and professional groups.  
 

2.13 Task and Finish Groups 
This year the BSCB set up a Communications Sub Group. This group consisted of the BSCB Business Manager, Business Support Officer, two lay 
members and a voluntary sector representative. The main objective of this group was to recommission and redesign the BSCB website to make it 
more user friendly and interesting for members of the public, parents and carer and professionals. The sub group received invaluable input from its 
lay members and voluntary sector and has successfully selected a new website provider.  The new website is due to be live by the end of 2016. 
The Communications Group also set dates to meet with Bromley Youth Council and Looked After Children In Care Council (LinCC). 
 

 
2.14 Attendance 
There is good multi-agency representation at BSCB main board meetings and sub group meetings. However, there is low attendance by NHS England 
and CAFCASS and going forward, the London Community Rehabilitation Company (CR) will not be attending as managers cover larger regions. This is 
an issue across London boards and the London LSCB Chairs Group has escalated concerns about non-attendance to the relevant leading bodies.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 31



14 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

Attendance of BSCB Board Meetings by Agency 

 
 
2.15 BSCB Challenge 
During BSCB Board meetings and sub group meetings, agencies are encouraged to participate in critical enquiry and challenge.  Challenges are 
documented on a formal log and challenges usually lead to a request by the Independent Chair for a piece of work to be carried out by a board 
member and bring answers and recommendations back to the Board for partners to review. Examples of these are: 

 Leadership and safety at a tier 4 mental health provision. This was escalated to NHS England as the commissioner of tier 4 services.  

0 25 50 75 100

Third Sector

Schools

Public Health

Oxleas NHS Foundaation Trust

NHS England

Met Police - CAIT

Met Police - Borough CID

London Probation Service

London Borough of Bromley Members

LBB Children's Social Care

LBB - Education

Lay Members

Kings College Hospital

Independent Chair

Croydon & Bromley CRC

CAFCASS

Bromley Healthcare

Bromley CCG

% of meetings attended in 2015/16 

% of meetings attended in 2015/16

P
age 32



15 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

Several meetings were held between NHSE, CCG and the provider and the progress against the post CQC inspection action plan is now also 
monitored by the BSCB.  The provider was formally challenged by BSCB through the Section 11 Panel in October 2015 and April 2016 and 
their progress continues to be monitored until standards are deemed satisfactory. 

 Inconsistent membership and lack of clarity around governance / terms of reference of the Multi-Agency Sexual Exploitation Panel. This 
will be included in a full review of CSE provision in 2016. 

 How is London Borough of Bromley Education Department closing the gap in attainment between free school meal and non-free school 
meal children in Bromley? The Director of Education was asked to present a report at main board meeting in 2016 and progress will 
continue to be monitored throughout 2017. 

 Why are young people detained overnight in custody? The Borough Police were tasked with following this up with the Metropolitan 

Detention service to collate background information and data. A task group, led by the Head of the Youth Offending Service, has been set 
up to develop an action plan in 2016 to reduce the number of young people detained overnight. 

 

Section 3 Developing a Learning Organisation 
 

3.1 Learning and Improvement Framework 
BSCB Business Plan 2015-18 Priorities 
Achievements: 
 4.1 Learning through serious case reviews, learning reviews and audit work impacts on frontline practice to ensure children are protected from harm:  Learning 

and Improvement Framework embedded; Child E lunchtime briefings; Safer Sleeping Campaign. 
 Focus for 2016-17: 

 4.1 Practitioner survey evidences that lessons from national/local case reviews are widely disseminated and used in frontline practice. 
 

The statutory guidance on safeguarding, Working Together to Safeguard Children, sets out an expectation for LSCBs and its partners to foster a culture 
of continuous learning and improvement. It requires LSCBs to have a Learning and Improvement Framework in place. Throughout 2015-16, the BSCB 
has continued to use its framework to: 

 
 Conduct regular reviews/audits of cases, both statutory reviews and cases that can provide insight and understanding into the way 

organisations are working together to safeguard and protect the welfare of children in order to enhance practice. 

 Review cases rigorously and in detail showing what happened, how things went wrong, or well and why, accompanied by actions that show 
the learning from the review. 

 Ensure lasting improvements to services to safeguard children and families result from the actions from reviews and audits. 

P
age 33



16 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

 Foster transparency about issues and actions arising from reviews and audits. 

 
The purpose is to identify improvements which are needed and to consolidate good practice. The different types of reviews covered by the 

framework are: 

 Serious Case Review 

 Child Death review 

 Review of a child protection incident which falls below the threshold for an SCR (learning review) 

 A review or audit of practice in one or more agencies. 
 
The Framework is not dependent on the learning from reviews alone. Other data and information also usefully informs practice: 

 Performance data on safeguarding and child protection 

 Agency inspection reports 
 Agency annual safeguarding reports 
 Multi-agency audits 
 Single agency audits and Section 11 Safeguarding Self-Assessment 

 Feedback on services from children, young people and families 

 

3.2 Training 
BSCB Business Plan 2015-18 Priorities 

Achievements: 
 2.2 All agencies are able to provide assurance that they have sufficient qualified and trained staff to meet demand and to manage need within approved 

thresholds:  standard item at quarterly Board meeting; quarterly performance report includes indicators on staffing, caseloads and training; the Training Sub 
Group completed audits of single agency training. 

Focus for 2016/17 

 4.3 and 4.4 A confident and skilled workforce in identifying (signs and symptoms) and responding to child abuse, neglect and domestic abuse: evidenced 
through practitioner survey and multi-agency audit on neglect cases at referral, assessment, child protection and step down plan stages. 

 

 

The Training Strategy runs from 2014-16 and supports the BSCB to deliver its safeguarding training, with a focus on content and audience, 
organisation, delivery and evaluation. 
 
In 2015, the BSCB reviewed its training programme and commissioning was completed by July 2015.  During the financial year 2015-16, BSCB provided 
local multi-agency training through 23 different classroom based courses run in 43 sessions, plus five additional shorter seminar/briefing sessions 

P
age 34



17 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

totalling 775 attendances (some people attended multiple courses), an increase from the previous year. A table showing the training courses is 
provided below.  
 
Course Title No. of 

courses run 
Actual 

Attendees 

Group 3 4 59 

Group 3 Refresher 1 6 

Group 4/5 1 12 

Group 4/5 Refresher 1 8 

Intro to Safeguarding Children 2 56 

CAF 3 20 

CAF and TAC 2 27 

Chronology 1 15 

CSE 3 45 

Domestic Abuse and Violence Against Women and Girls 1 13 

Effective Supervision - Successfully Safeguarding Children & YP 1 8 

Effective Supervisory Skills - Facilitating Reflective Practice 1 11 

Safeguarding Children for Designated Teachers 4 59 

*Safeguarding Children for Designated Teachers - refresher 3 40 

Safeguarding Disabled Children 2 18 

Safeguarding Neglected Children 2 25 

Teenagers who self-harm 1 18 

*Developing Confidence in Working with Diversity 2 21 

*Introduction to Parental Mental Ill Health 2 26 

*Parental Mental Ill Health - Working Better Together to SG the Child & Adult 1 12 

*Working with Perpetrators of Domestic Abuse 1 17 

*Parental Substance Misuse 2 28 

Safeguarding Young Carers 2 19 

SEMINARS: Learning from Serious Case Reviews 2 72 

SEMINARS: Allegations Against Professionals 2 53 

BRIEFING: A Child’s Journey in Bromley & FGM 1 69 

    *= new for 2015-16   

TOTALS 48 775 

There were six new courses this year.  A ‘Working with complex families’ course was decommissioned and in its place more specific courses 
commissioned to address parental substance misuse and parental mental health in light of staff evaluations. 

P
age 35



18 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

A new course to build confidence when working with diversity addressed a need for staff to learn more about harmful cultural practices.  More 
specific knowledge about FGM and Forced Marriage was then promoted through the Home Office’s free online training. 
Domestic Abuse training was strengthened in 2014-15 with all staff encouraged to attend DV training, and the 2015 annual conference on domestic 
abuse cementing knowledge.  This year the training offer on domestic abuse has been sparser, although a new ‘Working with Perpetrators’ course did 
run once in addition to the regular Domestic Abuse and Violence Against Women and Girls course.  Numbers are expected to increase significantly in 
2016-17 following negotiations with Bromley Safeguarding Adults Board and the successful commissioning of three new domestic violence courses. 
 

There was a large increase from 53 to 99 attendances by Designated Safeguarding Leads in schools attending BSCB training this year due to an 
increase in courses to meet demand.  Staff from educational establishments make up the second largest group of staff attending BSCB courses, with 
the majority of places going to staff in the Local Authority. 
 
BSCB aims to have a multi-agency mix of professionals at every training course as we believe this is key to fostering trust and confidence among the 
children’s workforce in Bromley.  Given the budget cuts to training that organisations in Bromley have faced this year as austerity hits harder, this is an 
increasing challenge.  The Chair of the Training sub group continues to monitor attendance and contacts agency leads where attendance is low. A 
breakdown of agencies attending training for the year is below. 
 

 

LBB

Oxleas

Bromley Healthcare CIC

Kings College Hospital

Other Health Professionals

Early Years Settings

Education Establishments

Other inc PVI & 3rd Sector

Foster Carers

Attendance at face to face training events 2015-16, 
by agency 

P
age 36



19 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

 

The BSCB consistently provides training of a high standard, with course participants agreeing that courses are useful and relevant to their needs. Each 

course is subject to user evaluation. The BSCB consistently provides training of a high standard, with course participants agreeing that courses are 

useful and relevant to their needs. Each course is subject to user evaluation. Overall feedback across all courses showed that 73% of the attendees 

judged the courses to be Excellent, 25% Good and just 2%  Satisfactory with nobody stating courses were poor.  This is even better than last year 

when 68% attendees evaluated training as Excellent and 30% as Good. 

Since 2014, the BSCB has had a comprehensive evaluation process which includes pre and post training evaluation, as well as a two month follow up 

evaluation with attendees for all courses to identify the impact of training and whether training has been applied.  Each course is allocated to a 

member of the Training sub group to monitor, dependent on their specialist area. Where a course consistently has a low score, indicating low impact, 

attendees are contacted to obtain more specific details, which is then fed back to the trainer to amend content or delivery.  Poor evaluations can lead 

to unsatisfactory trainers being replaced or courses decommissioned.  Furthermore, certificates can be withheld if individuals do not apply the 

training and the BSCB also expects that this is followed up by supervisors and line managers during supervision. 

 
All trainers are required to submit an evaluation form to evaluate how well the course went. Questions include how relevant the course was to the 
experience of the delegates and whether any organisational issues emerged during the training. Forms are submitted to and followed up by the Chair 
of the Training Sub group (Head of Safeguarding Quality Assurance).  The Training Sub group routinely analyses evaluation data and also carries out 
‘mystery shopping’ of courses to ensure quality and impact. 
 
The BSCB’s free e-learning courses for Group 1 and 2 training which was introduced in 2012 continues to be good value for money.   The e-learning 
package consisted of 20 courses during 2015-16 which make up the Group 1 and 2 courses. The advantage of online training is that delegates can 
learn at a time and pace that suits them. A breakdown of the number of people taking the BSCB e-learning courses for 2015-16 is below.  Midway 
through the year there were some changes to some courses and the key provides more detail. 
 
Online learning course (called ‘ME Learning’)     April 2015- March 2016  

COURSE TITLE Number Completed    

Assessment and Planning 68 * 

Bromley Safeguarding Children Introduction 290 * 

Conflict Styles and Resolution 1 * 

Data Protection Act 57 new 

P
age 37



20 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards 139   

Difficult Relationships and Conflict 61 * 

Domestic Abuse 97   

Female Genital Mutilation (FGM) 1 New. Home Office e-training offered instead. Module withdrawn. 

Framework for Assessments 1 * 

Information Sharing 51 * 

Information Sharing and Consent 19 new 

Managing Conflict – Children’s Workforce 12 new 

Mental Capacity Act 213   

Responding to a Disclosure 4 * 

Safeguarding Adults 256 * 

Safeguarding Adults - Level 1 339 new 

Safeguarding Adults - Level 2 40 new 

Safeguarding Children - Level 1 279 new 

Safeguarding Children - Level 2 82 new 

Safeguarding Children Group 1-2 4 * 

Safeguarding Children with Disabilities 63 new 

Safeguarding Disabled Children 100 * 

Supporting Transitions 54 * 

Safeguarding Total 2231   

* = no longer available (from September 2015)     

new =  (from October 2015)     

E-safety training has been added to the e-learning offer in 2016 following testing by members of the Training Sub Group. 
 

 

3.3 Multi Agency Audits 
 

 

 Learning from multi-agency audits is reviewed in the Safeguarding Children Health Forum which is attended by frontline staff.  
 
Since the BSCB Core group Audit in 2014/15, a quarterly meeting has been set up between CSC managers, the named Nurse and health 
visiting and school nursing lead. Any concerns about case practice or escalation of cases are discussed and a plan of action agreed 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 38



21 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

 

Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) Audit 

This audit was commissioned by the BSCB to examine the performance of the MASH, use of the threshold document by agencies and to provide all 
agencies with a progress report on the standard of referrals. 

 
The audit drew attention to the significant progress made by agencies to establish a MASH since its inception in 2014. BSCB has supported this by 
providing all agencies, via the website, with a detailed presentation on the process of referral to the MASH service. 
 
MASH managers welcomed the review as it highlighted strengths and areas of practice where improvements could be made. There was an 
acknowledgment that the standard of referral requires further improvements. The report identified that decision making and management oversight 
requires improvement to ensure all outcomes are of a satisfactory, or above, standard. Police MASH are good at identifying risk, however, there 
needs to be tighter tracking of cases of concern. 
 
As a result of the audit, a Group Manager post was immediately put in place specifically for MASH. Deputy Managers are now responsible for sign off 
of all decisions and additional senior posts have been created.  MASH management has also agreed on an action plan to ensure that the service is 
strengthened further. 
 

 
 
 
Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) Audit 
This audit concluded that following referrals into the Multi-Agency Sexual Exploitation (MASE) panel, significant positive changes have been seen in all 
the cases audited.  
 
This offers us very credible evidence that the tackling Child Sex Exploitation procedure developed by BSCB can be effective when risk cases, even at a 
low level, are identified and referred. A Barnardo’s worker is based within Children’s Social Care so that early discussions can be had with advice on 

Following the BSCB MASH audit (and the successful escalation of three cases which happened at a similar time), Bromley Healthcare has 
reinforced to its staff the need to escalate cases in which professionals do not feel satisfied with the outcome. Plans were also made for the 
Named and Designated professionals to be invited to the MASH steering group. 
 

P
age 39



22 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

early help in addition to one to one counselling available through a Multi-Agency Planning (MAP) referral. In addition, positive support offered by 
BYPASS (Bromley Young Persons’ Alcohol and Substance Service) and residential care staff was noted by the young people contacted and is useful 
information for our commissioning strategy. Despite a good start, much more needs to be done to co-ordinate existing practice and services in this 
area. An action plan has been agreed and is being monitored by the QAPM Sub Group. 
 
Domestic Abuse Audit 
Auditors found examples of effective multi agency working in most cases. There was emphasis on impact and outcomes and multi-agency meetings 
were well attended and the importance of a joined up approach understood by all those who agencies who took part in the audit.  
Basic information was up to date and recorded very well in the vast majority of records with only a couple of omissions in regards to this. Overall, 
agencies contributed well to assessments and provided their own updates at meetings which were detailed and contained analysis.  
There was evidence of purposeful communication between agencies between review periods.  
 
However, multi-agency plans were not always clear regarding the desired outcomes are and this needs to be tightened up to measure progress more 
effectively. Strategy discussions were not always multi-agency and specialist DV services (e.g. MARAC, Women’s Aid) were not always well referenced 
on agency files. Management oversight was generally not well evidenced on the files and more formal processes such as the LSCB escalation policy 
should be more widely used among partner agencies when they have concerns about a child.  
 

3.4 Learning Reviews 

BSCB Business Plan 2015-18 Priorities 
Achievements: 

 3.3 Increase public awareness of safeguarding across diverse communities: Safer Sleeping Campaign with Public Health 

 

The BSCB has continued to embed learning from the Child E Serious Case Review (SCR) via newsletters and lunchtime briefings in August 2015.  The 
BSCB worked with Public Health to ensure that up to date guidance on co-sleeping was available on the BSCB website and input into the Safer 
Sleeping Week campaign in March 2016.  London Borough of Bromley (LBB) added pages on co-sleeping to the MyLife website and the Council’s 
website. LBB also included information in its e-newsletter that is circulated to nearly 100,000 people via email. Health Visitors are now giving out the 
safer sleeping booklet, talking to parents and documenting in the Parent Child Health Record and on EMIS (electronic Health recording system). A 
joint health and social work workshop on Sudden and Unexpected Deaths in Infancy was facilitated following the SCR. The Lullaby Trust attended and 
delivered a presentation on current guidance and advice to give parents.  A further joint workshop was facilitated on the topic of neglect to 
encourage joint working and joint home visits. A presentation was given by the Named Nurse and the practice development lead for social care.  Both 
of these were well attended by health visitors, midwives and social workers. Presentations on the Child E SCR were given to the Community 
Paediatricians and to the Child Protection meeting, following which learning was disseminated via team leads throughout Bromley Healthcare. 

P
age 40



23 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

In 2016 the BSCB has initiated a learning review which will focus on the quality of information shared between agencies to determine the capacity of 
the parent to safeguard and protect her children. The learning from this will be published in Autumn 2016 and the BSCB will request that 
organisations embed the learning through training, supervision and audit.  
 

3.5 Community Engagement and the Voice of the Child 
BSCB Business Plan 2015-18 Priorities 
Achievements: 
 3.1 The Board has an up to date profile of the community and barriers to engagement in services by minority communities: Report to Board on profile of 

children and young people in the area. 
 3.2 Young people are better informed of safeguarding issues: BSCB Board meetings held in community settings including consultation sessions with young 

people. 
Focus for 2016-17: 

 3.1 Programme of work to engage with main and minority communities to identify barriers to safeguarding children’s welfare and how agencies can facilitate 
best outcomes. 

 3.2 Young people are engaged in the design and delivery of safeguarding information: BSCB develops an engagement action plan to ensure it actively seeks the 
views and opinions of children and young people in a systematic manner and can demonstrate how this has improved services. 

 3.3 The Board has a communication plan with an annual programme of initiatives for the public. 

 3.5 The voice of the child (including disabled children) is informing and driving developments in policy and practice. 

 
A priority of the BSCB is to get out in to the community and talk with children and young people about their experiences and views of safeguarding 

issues. The December 2015 Board meeting was held at Hayes School and consulted with 20 students.  In March 2016, the BSCB held its Board meeting 

at the Youth Offending Service and had the opportunity to talk with five of its service users. The Board explained the role of the BSCB and asked young 

people who they would talk to if they felt unsafe, what issues young people are facing, whether services are accessible and understood. The BSCB 

were also keen to find out what methods are most effective in communicating with young people.  

The most significant issues that the young people raised were linked to mental health and anxiety about exam pressure, issues around fitting in, 

boredom and sex education. The feedback provided by the students was really helpful in identifying their concerns and will inform the BSCB’s 

Communications Strategy. 

In addition to this, Bromley’s Youth Council (BYC) ran a workshop at the BSCB annual conference about Domestic Abuse. It gave professionals an 
understanding of how young people would like them to respond to concerns and explored the services available and the gaps for young people in 
Bromley, as identified by the BYC 2014/15 campaign. 

P
age 41



24 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

The BSCB Business Managers have set up a meeting with the Youth Council in June 2016 as they have identified a more systematic approach to 
engaging with young people elected by their schools to represent them. 

 
3.6 Communications 

The BSCB website aims to promote good safeguarding practice, share lessons learned from audits and case reviews, local policies and protocols and 
signpost to relevant agencies, advice and guidance.  In order to improve this further, the BSCB has commissioned a new website to make it more user 
friendly. The lay members and the voluntary sector representative for the BSCB were very involved in writing a specification for the new website, soft 
market testing and selecting the provider.  The website will be live at the end of 2016. 

Newsletters are sent out by the BSCB to update partner agencies on recent audit findings, forthcoming events and relevant safeguarding contact 
details.  In addition, the BSCB holds lunchtime multi-agency briefings to highlight new guidance or areas needing practice improvement. In August 
2015, the BSCB held two multi agency lunchtime briefings on learning from the Child E Serious Case Review. In December 2015 the BSCB held a 
lunchtime briefing on the new mandatory reporting duty and local referral procedures for FGM. 
 

3.7 BSCB Annual Conference 
This year’s BSCB annual conference in November 2015 was entitled ‘Domestic Abuse - Getting it Right for Children and Young People’. There were 109 
attendees from across the partnership and feedback was generally positive; delegates found the theatre performance by young people and the 
accounts of survivors particularly powerful.   
 

 90% found the conference either extremely or very useful 

 84% found the conference either extremely or very relevant to their jobs 

 94% found that the speakers were either extremely or very knowledgeable 

 89% thought there was either an extremely or very good mix of participants 

The workshops were well received, particularly the Risk Assessment workshop led by SafeLives and the Working with Perpetrators workshop led by 
Domestic Violence Intervention Project (DVIP). Requests to have one longer workshop instead of two short workshops will be considered for next year 
and the BSCB will aim to make all workshops more interactive. 
 

3.8 BSCB Development Day 
Following a change in the Independent Chair and a number of BSCB members, a BSCB Development Day was held in July 2015 to agree the future 
direction of the Board and the business plan for 2015-18. The BSCB agreed on a statement of purpose, identified its strengths and weaknesses and a 

P
age 42



25 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

revised structure to be set up in 2015/16, including implementation of new sub groups (Vulnerable Children Sub Group, Policy and Procedures Sub 
Group and Comms Task and Finish Group). Agreed priorities included the voice of the child and recommissioning the BSCB website and developing 
better links with other strategic groups such as the Violence Against Women and Girls Group and the Health and Wellbeing Board. 
 

Section 4 Monitoring and Evaluation 
 
4.1 Use of Performance Data 
BSCB Business Plan 2015-18 Priorities 
Focus for 2016-17: 

 4.2 The Board has good oversight of risks in the system and can assess the performance of multi agency child protection work: reliable dataset and regular 
reports on audits, including relevant and timely narrative reports from managers. 

 

The QAPM Sub Group analyses key multi-agency data and performance quarterly and there is exception reporting to the Board.  A full, detailed 
performance report is submitted to the full board annually in September. 
In September 2015, QAPM established a working group to revise the performance report following a number of unsatisfactory reports where 
some agencies had not returned data.  The group established that the timescales imposed by the BSCB were not possible for some agencies and a 
longer reporting lag would lead to more complete data with meaningful narrative about impact and what organisations were doing to address 

risks.  This was promptly addressed.  The group then devised a  new style report with a concise performance summary at the beginning, to allow 
focused discussions at sub group meetings, complemented by a full scorecard as appendix containing the detail – indicators, current and recent 
performance, benchmarking , RAG rating and manager narrative where performance was below the expected standard or below statistical 
neighbours.  This new style report has been a work in progress in the latter half of this year as contracts have been rewritten instructing providers 
to report on new indicators, new data collection systems have been rolled out and the QAPM has challenged one another about which indicators 
are meaningful and which show impact on outcomes.  A peer challenge workshop will take place in June 2016 to further this work. 

4.2 Section 11 Audits 
BSCB Business Plan 2015-18 Priorities 
Achievements:  
 2.3 Good practice of information sharing between agencies is evidenced through Section 11 audits and scrutinised by Section 11 panel. 
 1.3 The Board has an effective system for scrutinising statutory agencies through Section 11 / 175 audits 
Focus for 2016/17 

 2.4 Increase in Schools taking part in Section 175 safeguarding audits 

 3.5 The voice of the child is evidenced through Section 11 audits 
 

P
age 43



26 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

 
It is a statutory requirement for agencies to complete a Section 11 agency self-assessment on safeguarding children. In Bromley this runs as a two-
year rolling programme.  In previous years, submissions were presented by agency senior managers to the QAPM Sub Group, giving the multi- agency 
sub group the opportunity to reflect on compliance and challenge agencies at both an operational and strategic level.  However, with an increased 
focus on improving performance management data this year, there has been insufficient time to present Section 11 audits during QAPM meetings.  
This year, dedicated Section 11 panels have been held in order to maintain high levels of scrutiny.  The Panel consists of four members of the Board, 
including the Independent Chair.  A schedule is in place to ensure that agencies are seen within the required timeframe and an actions/issues log is 
reviewed regularly by the Chair so that challenges are addressed. 
 
BSCB uses an adapted version of the Section 11 tool developed by the London Safeguarding Children Board. In doing so, this relieves some burden on 
agencies reporting to several boards. 
 
The following Section 11 audits were carried out in the year ending March 2016: 

 London Borough of Bromley Adult Services 

 London Probation 

 London Community Rehabilitation Company 

 An in-patient mental health provision for young people (tier 4) situated within the borough 

 Young Addaction (now Change Grow Live) 

 London Borough of Bromley Early Years (childminders, preschools and nurseries) 

 Bromley Schools (primary and secondary maintained and academies) 

 London Borough of Bromley Children’s Social Care Services (including Early Intervention and Family Service) 
 

Several of these agencies were called back for further scrutiny in April 2016 where insufficient information had been provided or feedback on actions 
was required. 
 

4.3 Single Agency Audits 
As well as significant input into the multi- agency MASH, DV and CSE audits (see section 3.3), Bromley Children’s Social Care audit programme 
included planned bi-monthly in depth audits of up to 20 open children’s social care cases including Children in Need, Child Protection (CP) and 
Children Looked After and a bi-monthly Leaving Care programme. All audit actions were shared with social workers and their managers and added to 
the child’s Care First file. Recommendations for future learning were circulated to managers and used to revise internal training and procedures. 
These included a need for: 
 

P
age 44



27 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

 Higher quality assessments including family history  

 Chronologies  

 Evidence of direct work with children 

 SMART Child Protection (CP) plans clearly linked to safety goals for the children  

 Key documents on files, such as Personal Education Plans (PEPs), Pathway Plans, Core Group minutes or the recording of visits. 

 Robust risk assessments 

 Challenge regarding drift 

 Good management oversight with analytical and reflective  supervision  

 Consistent social worker 

 Family Group Conferences  

 Life story work 

 Better use of legal advice 

 Updating of Care Plans. 
 
In order to look at how social care auditors were making judgements in May 2015, auditors were given four cases (cases “doubled up”).  The  “doubled 
up” cases which were audited had differing outcomes-both having  “Good” and  “Requires improvement” outcomes. This indicated that there was not 
consistency in the judgements. Feedback from the multi-agency MASH audit undertaken by an independent auditor was that some of the gradings 
were too high in cases where concerns were being noted by the auditors. 
 
Social Care first line managers carried out 364 Tier 1 Audits (audits of Care First files) in 2015-16 from all areas of the service. Child Protection Chairs 
completed 134 audits and IROs 109. The main themes arising from CP Chair and Independent Reviewing Officer (IRO) audits were that there was drift 
and delay in some cases, with CP plans not being effectively worked. In some cases IROs raised concerns about the misuse of Section 20. 
 
The health economy has an audit schedule (informed by audit occurring within each provider organisation and Bromley Clinical Commissioning 
Group); this is reviewed and agreed within the BCCG Health Economy Safeguarding Forum. From 2016/17 one of the audits will be a theme across the 
whole health economy.  The Forum will be auditing the views/experiences of children and young people from each service’s perspective. In 2015-16, 
BCCG undertook an audit regarding GP safeguarding arrangements (enhanced service feedback forms) and GP Academic Half Day questionnaire. 
 
Youth Offending Service Managers audit case files on a regular basis to ensure staff are meeting the standards laid down by Her Majesty’s 
Inspectorate of Probation (HMIP). One of the themes of these audits is to ensure that the child or young person is protected. This includes checking 
that CSE has been considered in assessments; that the individual is considered in terms of vulnerabilities and learning styles; that YOS builds on links 
with early help such as the Bromley Children’s Project. 

P
age 45



28 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

 
Bromley Healthcare (BHC) audits 2015-16: 

 Practitioners perspective of supervision 

 School Nurse engagement of children subject to Child Protection Plan 

 Review of Initial Health Assessments for Looked after Children 

 Multi-agency MASE referral review 

 Multi-agency Domestic Abuse audit 

 Audit of child protection medical reports 
 

 
 
 

Kings College Hospital (KCH) audits 2015-16: 

 Safeguarding children training audit 

 Early intervention audit 

 Attendance of young people with mental health problems to the Princess Royal emergency department  
 

 
 
Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust audits 2015-16: 

 Adult Mental Health Young Carers Audit  

 CAMHS (Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service) Child Protection Record Audit  

 
 

Following the child protection medical audit at BHC, amendments were made to the report proforma to ensure that the report documents 
who gave consent for the medical. Training of the community paediatric team has been provided to further improve the quality of reports. 

 

At KCH NHS Trust, audits demonstrate that midwives are identifying when additional support is required to help patients. Staff are 
providing a wide range of interventions to support patients before their problems escalate. 
. 

 

P
age 46



29 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

Section 5 Priority Groups of Vulnerable Children 
  
 

BSCB Business Plan 2015-18 Priorities 
Achievements:  
 5.1 There is an increased awareness of  emerging threats to children including (i) child sexual exploitation/missing/gangs, (ii) female genital mutilation and other 

harmful practices, (iii)radicalisation and appropriate strategies to address those threats 
Focus for 2016/17 

 2.5 There is an assured and timely response to all children who go missing to address any safeguarding issues: evidence via data on children missing; evidence 
from return home interviews to improve knowledge of any common trends/patterns. 

 4.3 A confident and skilled workforce in identifying (signs and symptoms) and responding to child abuse and neglect. 

 4.4 A confident and skilled workforce is identifying and responding to domestic abuse: reports on progress against multi-agency audit actions; evidence from 
practitioners’ survey; improved links to Violence Against Women and Girls Forum. 

 5.2 Reduce the impact of domestic abuse (DA) on children and their caring adults: VAWG strategy embedded, reduction in admission to hospital due to self-
harm 

 
 

5.1 Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) 
In January 2015 an audit of 34 children and young people referred to the Multi-Agency Sexual Exploitation (MASE) panel was undertaken. Following 
referral into the Panel significant positive changes were identified in all cases audited, evidencing that the procedure can work effectively when risk 
cases, even at a low level, are identified and referred.  
 

The recording of child sexual exploitation (CSE) on the Children’s Social Care IT systems has undergone recent developments to introduce a flagging 
system. Flags can be added to a child’s record for the duration of the period they are deemed to be at risk of CSE, and will appear in the ‘Key 
Classifications’ section on the front page of the child’s file. This flagging system enables easy identification of any child at risk of CSE.  
 
In 2014 the BSCB commissioned a series of training programmes delivered by specialist trainers from Barnardo’s. Programmes cover a range of areas 
relating to CSE and are due to be recommissioned in April 2016. Additionally a Barnardo’s worker is based within Children’s Social Care to provide 
support to young people aged 10-21, professionals, parents and carers. A review of the support offered by Barnardo’s evidences that the majority of 
young people worked with between 2014-15 have improved in enhanced parent/carer/adult - child relationships, recovery from sexual 
abuse/exploitation and reduced association with risky peers/adults.  

P
age 47



30 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

Further to this the review highlights an emerging pattern of children and young people at risk of CSE through online grooming; particularly for those 
with a learning difficulty. To address this CSE training will be rolled out within schools, specifically targeting children with learning disabilities through 
the SENCO Forum. In addition three full day training events will be delivered to specifically target the issue across the Children’s Social Care workforce.  
 
The MASE Panel reviews significant developments taking place in existing cases of CSE, current trends and patterns, out of borough concerns, 
geographical hotspots and missing children. The MASE membership, terms of reference and interface with MAP (multi agency planning meetings) are 
currently being reviewed in order to improve its analysis of CSE episodes and links to missing children. The review aims to develop a more strategic 
overview and to ensure that resources are targeted appropriately. An updated CSE protocol will be launched in 2016 to ensure referral pathways are 
adhered to, and that professionals attending are sufficiently able to direct enquiries and actions identified within their organisation. 
 
Bromley Clinical Commissioning Group (BCCG) and health partners are represented on the working parties which are developing the CSE strategic, 
protocol development and information sharing processes. CSE training has been delivered across the health economy mainly through single agency 
training tailored for the clinician’s roles. Bromley GPs and GP Safeguarding Leads have received training and information on CSE. BCCG is working with 
health provider safeguarding leads to strengthen the information gathering and risk assessment process. During 2016/17 BCCG will be contributing to 
the NHS England pilot of a health CSE risk assessment tool to ensure consistency and shared thresholds across the health economy.  
 
When Bromley Healthcare Services come into contact with a young people with risky behaviour, the practitioner asks about partners and sexual 
activity. Referrals into the MASE are made when appropriate. CSE is embedded into level 3 training. One of the MASH health visitors attends the 
MASE panel. Community paediatricians or the Named Nurse is involved in the strategy meetings for children that may have undergone CSE. The 
profile of sexually exploited children has been raised within the contraceptive service and referrals made when risks are identified.  
 
Following the "Review of the pathway for children and young people following sexual assault in London", the Bromley Healthcare safeguarding team 
have endeavoured to improve services for children and young people that have been sexually assaulted in Bromley. We have contributed to the 
multiagency steering group for Southeast London, attended and supported with workshops and engagement events. Training and presentations have 
been provided to Children’s Social Care, Bromley GPs, hospital paediatricians, and to the Children and Young People Work stream at the CCG about 
current concerns and development of services. Guidance on investigation of sexually transmitted infections in child sexual abuse medicals and use of 
the colposcope has been updated and the chain of evidence procedure has been reviewed to ensure that it is robust. 
 
CSE/Missing children is a core part of the Borough Police’s work and their contribution to this area can be found in Section 7.7. 
 
 
 

P
age 48



31 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

5.2 Missing Children 
Children over the age of 11 who have gone missing in the community are processed by the Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH), with colleagues 
from the police and health service co-located with local authority staff at the Civic Centre. As of April 2016, the Family and Adolescent Support Team 
(FAST), located in Referral and Assessment, offer face to face return home interviews for every missing young person in the community, ensuring the 
same interviewer for individuals with multiple missing episodes wherever possible. FAST maintains and monitors a missing spreadsheet, indicating 
presenting issues, whether or not an interview was accepted and whether the episode progressed to further social care intervention. Where there are 
issues in accessing the child, the FAST team makes contact with early intervention services to identify ways of making contact. FAST shares data on 
children missing in the community with the Children Out of Mainstream Education (COOME) panel for open cases where they feel there may be an 
issue with education, and ensure a Social Work Assessment is opened for cases where potential safeguarding issues are identified.  
 
The Children’s Social Care (CSC) IT system has distinct functions for ‘missing from care’ and ‘away from placement without authorisation’ which 
enables a weekly report to be tracked by the Children Looked After (CLA) team. The CLA team also collates overnight notification from the Emergency 
Duty Team (EDT), detailing missing episodes. Return interviews for children missing from care are commissioned from an independent advocacy 
service, Baker and Joy. As a small company with two workers, positive relationships can be built with persistent absconders. The Group manager for 
CLA decides whether a return interview is required, dependent on frequency of episodes and whether they are missing or absent.  
 
The Bromley Children Missing Education Policy and Procedure, reviewed in 2016, outlines safeguarding concerns that arise when a child is missing 
from education, roles and responsibilities of agencies and the processes that should be followed to reduce risk. The COOME Panel identifies children 
who are at risk of, or who are missing from, education and takes decisions to reduce the risk to those children likely to go missing in the future. 
 
Missing children are referred to the monthly MASE panel for cross agency monitoring and information sharing, recognising the close link between 
missing and sexually exploited children. However, it is recognised that more work needs to be done to centralise lists of children with vulnerabilities 
relating to CSE, missing episodes or gang involvement and this will be a focus for 2016/17. 
 
Health, through Bromley Clinical Commissioning Group, is working in partnership via the MASE to strengthen return home interviews and assessments 
ensuring there is appropriate health assessments included. The planned BSCB Vulnerable Children’s Sub Group in April 2016 will look at Missing 
Children and will scrutinise whether return home interviews are carried out consistently and how information from interviews are used to prevent 
further missing episodes.  
 
 
 
 

P
age 49



32 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

5.3 Female Genital Mutilation 
In December 2015, the BSCB provided a multi-agency lunchtime briefing regarding the new mandatory reporting duty. In consultation across the 
partnership, the BSCB also developed a multi-agency FGM protocol for Bromley, incorporating the new mandatory reporting duty. This is a joint 
document with the Bromley Safeguarding Adult Board as it includes referral pathways for children, pregnant women and adult women who are not 
pregnant. The document was distributed widely and the BSCB requested that managers embed the protocol through training and supervision.  The 
protocol also signposts to the on-line FGM training provided by the Home Office which was endorsed by partners. 
Bromley Clinical Commissioning Group (BCCG) commissioning managers and contracts team are ensuring FGM pathways and mandatory reporting is 
included within service specifications. The head of safeguarding is a member of the NHS England pan-London FGM Steering group and uses the 
information from this group to inform the local FGM health agenda. BCCG Safeguarding Children Health Dataset includes indicators around numbers 
of FGM identified in children, young people and adult women and is reported to the BSCB. 
Midwifery reports to health visitors if a client has had FGM. The midwife or health visitor refers a case into the MASH if concerns about the baby are 
identified before or following delivery. Any new case of an adult disclosing would be reported under the mandatory reporting process. FGM is 
embedded into every training package at Bromley Healthcare. The Community Paediatricians provide medical assessments for children that may have 
undergone FGM procedures. FGM has also been discussed with the Bladder and Bowel Service as they may identify cases. 
Midwives at Kings College Hospital now carry out a risk assessment when women report FGM. Women who have medical or psychological issues 
following FGM are referred to gynaecology, psychological services or specialist voluntary agencies. Women who present with safeguarding concerns 
are referred to social care.  
Within the Police Child Abuse Investigation Team (CAIT), each FGM case is given senior leadership team oversight at daily ‘Grip and Pace’ meetings 
with investigative actions set to ensure consistency. The Commands Continuous Improvement Team (C.I.T) has the Metropolitan Police lead on FGM 
under Project Azure and provide agency and police training to raise awareness. In addition south region is regularly involved in operational initiatives 
under Azure where police and border agency officials conduct interventions at selected London airports acting upon intelligence with the aim of 
identifying and preventing FGM. 
 
5.4 Domestic Abuse 
The BSCB continued to promote awareness of domestic abuse using it as the theme for its annual conference which was attended by over 100 
partners. It was also the theme for one of the BSCB’s multi-agency audits this year. 
 
Bromley Clinical Commissioning Group (BCCG) Safeguarding Children Through Commissioning Policy, Procedures and Standards (2015) is embedded in 
all contracts and explicitly refers to the role of services and health professionals around domestic abuse.  BCCG has contracted a GP to lead to support 
GP practices around the IRIS project - a service that supports training and practice of GP service staff when domestic abuse is suspected or identified. 
The Think Family approach is used which ensures frontline staff who are working with adults who are victims of domestic abuse also check whether 
they are parents or carers and consider the impact of the domestic abuse on children and young people. 

P
age 50



33 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

BCCG Designated Professionals and provider named professionals are members of the multi-agency Domestic Abuse Forum and are contributing to 
the work across the borough and strategy. This includes: the Multi-agency Risk Assessment Conference and Multi-agency Public Protection 
Committee, who assess the level of risk and oversee the work from this across the health economy. 
 
Health visitors ask every new client about domestic abuse and document and refer if needed. Bromley Healthcare embeds DA into every training 
package and it is discussed in all supervision cases. School nurses may also identify this at school drop-in and refer into Children Social Care. A MASH 
health visitor attends the Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conference (MARAC). A recent internal gap analysis has shown that asking the question about 
domestic abuse is embedded into children services but more work needs to be done in adult services. 
 
Borough Police lead for investigation and prevention of Domestic Abuse. CAIT Police Community Liaison Officers (PCLOs) have overall management of 
children on a protection plan who are exposed to domestic abuse. The future design under Protecting Vulnerable People (PVP) is for child abuse 
investigation to be more locally delivered in partnership with borough Domestic Abuse investigation teams to focus on the links and 
intervention/prevention. Part of this is the pilot into CAIT referral desk and PCLO staff in borough MASH to work more closely together due to 
commence in July 2016 on south region. 
Kings College Hospital Trust has appointed an independent domestic violence advocate to support patients at the Princess Royal; so far most of her 
referrals have been made by maternity services. She will be providing training for staff working in the emergency department and sexual health 
services about identifying young people who may be victims of domestic abuse as she is able to see children 16-18 years. 
 
5.5 Neglect 
Neglect continues to feature as the highest risk factor for children on a child protection plan. The roll out of the Signs of Safety model (see section 
7.1), which started this year uses a whole system’s approach to working with families to ensure that they are clear about actions and timescales.  
Since the BSCB multi agency audit in 2014, there have been a number of developments to respond to the needs of children at risk of neglect: 

 BSCB Training programme recommissioned in April 2015 with 2 full-day courses on neglect, and other training courses amended to take into 
account neglect risks. 

 Academic Half Day for GPs on neglect. 

 3 x Joint workshop involving CSC and community health workers with overarching theme of neglect run (November, March and June 2015) 
including faltering growth, failure to thrive. 

 New programme in Bromley Children’s Project for families where neglect is a concern (Caring for Your Child). 

 Work with schools to reduce exclusions by improving understanding of effects of neglect etc. 

 BSCB escalation process reviewed and publicised in order to promote opportunities for professional consultation, interagency review and 
decision-making in complex cases. 

 New process for DNA (Did Not Attend) implemented with GPs. New codes on records introduced. 

P
age 51



34 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

 Attendance at child protection conferences is now monitored through the Child Protection monitoring in Quality Assurance.  
 

Health agencies have actively contributed to multi-agency audits around Neglect. The learning from this has been picked up through action plans and 
embedded into training and supervision. Areas identified for further development include early intervention, preventing drift of cases, confident 
challenge by health professionals at child protection meetings as appropriate and ensuring clarity around concerns and expected outcomes within 
referrals and risk assessments. This work is on-going and will be overseen within the Safeguarding Health Forum and Bromley Clinical Commissioning 
Group Safeguarding Executive Group. 
 
Neglect is embedded in all training packages at Bromley Healthcare and discussed within 1:1 and group supervision. Practitioners are challenged if 

needed. The safeguarding team reviews the Child Protection list and reads case notes to ensure there is no drift of cases where children have 
been subject to a plan for over a year. 
 
Neglect is one of the core investigations into child abuse with the CAIT. Police continue to seek to hold perpetrators to account for abuse of children 
through neglect and other forms of abuse (physical, sexual, emotional). All cases involving a child subjected to abuse or neglect who is a repeat victim 
on a protection plan are identified at daily senior leadership team meeting and actions set to ensure positive action taken to safeguard the child and 
bring the perpetrator to account. There is currently an initiative being undertaken in Bexley/Greenwich Boroughs owned by DCI south region whereby 
key partners of Education, Police and CSC lead on a parental agreement shared through school termly letters to raise awareness and reduce incidents 
of neglect or abuse of children. Outcomes will be monitored with a view to assessment regarding potential roll out across south region and the 
Metropolitan Police Service. 
 
The BSCB will conduct a further multi agency neglect audit in 2016/17 and will focus on areas still requiring improvement such as the need for Child 
Protection Conferences to ensure that sustained improvement is evident in a case before stepping it down to Child In Need and for neglect cases to be 
monitored to prevent drift. 

  

P
age 52



35 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

Section 6 How Safe Are Our Children? 
6.1 Performance Data 
 
Early Intervention and Family Support 

 

Children and Family Centre Data 

 

 
This is the count of an individual once during the period reported, regardless of the number of visits made by that individual.  This data shows that the 

Children and Family Centres are well used and reaching increasing numbers of residents. The trend shows that since the Bromley Children Project took 

over the management of the Children and Family Centres in 2011/12 usage has dramatically increased. 

 

30996 36797 40117 
45122 

0

20000

40000

60000

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Number of Unique Active Users accessing Children and 
Family Centres (2015/16) 

P
age 53



36 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

 
When you register in Bromley to access services in the Children and Family Centres, you register once, but can then access any of the six Children and 

Family Centre sites.  Each member of the family accessing services in the Children and Family Centres must register once. This data shows that 

increasing numbers of service users are accessing the Children and Family Centres in Bromley, year on year.  As the time period shown is less than 

seven years, these are all individual unique users. 

 

 
 

6934 

7452 9031 
10324 

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Number of unique registrations at Children and Family 
Centres (2015/16) 

65814 

78763 81733 84334 

0

20000

40000

60000

80000

100000

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Number of visits to the Children and Family Centres during 
2015/16 

P
age 54



37 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

The number of visits to the Children and Family Centre (also known as ‘footfall’) shows the number of times someone accessed the Children and 

Family Centre support. This does not include staff undertaking outreach activities, whether in the community or telephone/text/email contact. 

This data shows that the Children and Family Centres are well used and the usage is increasing year on year. 

 

Early Intervention Family Support Data 

 

 
 

 The number of families referred into the Bromley Children Project for early intervention family support has grown year on year. 

 All families referred in for early intervention family support are assessed and the vast majority meet the criteria for Tackling Troubled Families 

(Phase 2). 

 The number of families stepped down from Children’s Social Services (CSC) reduced in 2015/6, at the same time the number of families 

referred directly to EIFS increased and the number of cases stepped up to CSC reduced suggesting recognition of EIFS as a viable alternative to 

CSC for referrers.    

607 
631 

711 

154 
188 

139 

18 
55 49 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Early Intervention Family Support through the Bromley 
Children Project 

Referrals for EIFS
Family Support

Step Down to EIFS
from CSC and Joint
Working with CSC

Step Up to CSC
from EIFS

P
age 55



38 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

Common Assessment Framework (CAF) Team Data 
 

 
 The number of CAFs logged with the CAF Team continues to grow year on year suggesting both families and professionals are becoming more 

familiar with the CAF process and can see the benefits. 

 

 
 

 The number of CAFs logged for children of statutory school age far outweighs those for all other areas. 

441 

335 

603 

706 

806 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Number of CAFs logged with CAF Team 

23 

179 

359 

239 

6 

0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350 400

Prebirth

0 to 4

5 to10

11 to 16

17+

Number of CAFs logged; by age (2015/16) 

P
age 56



39 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

 The low number of CAF for children aged 4 and under is concerning and reflects low numbers from both early years providers and health 

professionals; this will be a focus for 2016/17. 

 

 
 

160 

112 

7 

133 

71 

1 

6 

23 

36 

16 

25 

94 

11 

3 

3 

224 

106 

14 

141 

93 

3 

17 

26 

26 

19 

14 

109 

4 

6 

0 50 100 150 200 250

Primary School

Secondary School

Education Other

CSC Referral &…

CSC Safeguarding

CSC Disability Team

CSC TAPSS

Midwife

Health Visitor

Health Other

CAF Team via TACs

BCP

Early Years

3rd Sector

Other

CAF Numbers completed by agencies/services 
Comparison 2014/15 and 2015/16 

2015/16

2014/15

P
age 57



40 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

 Generally speaking most agencies show an increase in the number of CAF logged with the CAF team. 

 For the third year running the number of CAF logged by Health Visitors has decreased and are now at an all-time low of 26 (36 in previous year) 

 All health areas are low; Midwifery only logged 26 CAFs but this was an increase on the previous year (23). 

 Early Years settings have also shown a decrease in CAF logged, with only 4 compared to 11 in previous year. 

 The CAF team focus for 2016/17 will be agencies working with children aged 0-5, with particular focus on Health Visitors, Midwifery, and Early 

Years Settings. 

 
 

 The majority of CAF show the primary reason for the CAF to be related to parental issues impacting on the child, rather than issues for the 

child. 

 Behavioural issues are often (not always) related to parenting capacity both knowledge and skills, and therefore also are parental issues.  

 Often it will be health colleagues who will see the majority of parents who are struggling first, whether a GP prescribing medication (e.g. for 

emotional wellbeing /mental health related conditions) or a Midwife or Health Visitor completing mandatory checks, yet the number of CAFs 

logged by these partners remain extremely low.  This will be a focus for 2016/17. 

343 

182 

66 61 
35 32 27 25 21 2 

0

100

200

300

400

P
ar

en
ta

l I
ss

u
es

Im
p

ac
ti

n
g 

o
n

 C
h

ild
re

n

B
e

h
av

io
u

ra
l I

ss
u

es

Sc
h

o
o

l A
tt

e
n

d
an

ce

Em
o

ti
o

n
al

 Is
su

es

SE
N

H
o

u
si

n
g 

Is
su

e
s

Fa
m

ily
 B

re
ak

d
o

w
n

D
is

ab
ili

ty

H
ea

lt
h

 B
as

ed
 Is

su
es

O
th

er

Primary reason for CAF completion 2015/16 

P
age 58



41 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

 

Performance Patterns in Child Protection 

 

MASH and Referral Assessment Activity 

In 2015-16 8088 enquiries were received and accepted by Bromley Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH), our front door. This is marginally 

lower than the 8115 enquiries received and accepted the previous year.  Of these, 28.5% were referred on to Children Social Care compared to 

21.5% in 2014/15. This increase in referrals to Social Care follows the MASH audit (August 2015) and extra management capacity and additional 

actions subsequently put in place.  The majority of enquiries to the MASH (front door) team result in information being given.  The table on page 

43 shows the outcomes of all enquiries in 2015-16.   

17% of referrals received in 2015-16 had been previously referred within the last 12 months.  This is a decrease of 1.4% from the previous year but 

higher than the 2013/14 level.  

 

Indicator 
Accumulation 

of data 
Bromley 
2013/14 

Bromley 
2014/15 

Apr 
15 

May 
15 

Jun 
15 

Jul 
15 

Aug 
15 

Sep 
15 

Oct 
15 

Nov 
15 

Dec 
15 

Jan 
16 

Feb 
16 

Mar 
16 

Year to 
Date 

2015/16 

Contacts and 
Referrals 

                                

Number of 
enquiries 
received and 
accepted by 
MASH 

In Month 

Guardian 
began 
March 
2014 

8115 717 593 709 770 591 717 608 639 622 687 683 752 8088 

Number of 
referrals to 
Children’s Social 
Care Service 
(CSC) 

In Month 1747 188 142 160 167 154 237 198 230 218 184 206 221 2305 

% Enquiries to 
MASH passed to 
CSC 

In Month 21.5% 26% 24% 23% 22% 26% 33% 33% 36% 35% 27% 30% 29% 28.5% 

Number of 
Contact/Referrals 

In Month 2138 2049 274 296 302 281 223 276 196 219 240 201 235 255 2998 

% Referrals 
received within 
12 months of a 
previous referral 

YtD 13.5% 18.4% 14% 16% 16% 18% 19% 19% 19% 18% 18% 18% 18% 17% 17.0% 

P
age 59



42 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

 

 

 

   

 

52% of enquiries to MASH originated from the Police in 2015-16, 17% from health agencies and 11% were from schools.  The remaining referrals 

717 

593 

709 
770 

591 

717 

608 639 622 
687 683 

752 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Enquiries accepted by MASH 
(count by child) 

2015/16 2014/15

207 

1551 

2290 

0 
234 

26 20 9 427 
767 

1691 

511 355 0 0 0 
0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

Ea
rl

y 
H

e
lp

C
SC

A
ss

e
ss

m
en

t

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 g
iv

en

N
o

 F
u

rt
h

e
r

 A
ct

io
n

Si
gn

p
o

st
in

g

P
ri

va
te

Fo
st

er
in

g

H
o

u
si

n
g 

1
6

+

C
o

u
rt

 r
ep

o
rt

 r
e

q
u

e
st

Outcomes of Enquiries to MASH YtD 

Not
MASHED

MASHED

P
age 60



43 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

were from other Local Authority services, housing associations, early years settings, legal agencies, education services or individuals (self, family 

members, friends, neighbours, anonymous).  

 

 Social Work Assessments 

2,109 Social Work Assessments were completed in 2015-16.  Of these, 80% were completed within the 45 day timescale.   

Each Social Work Assessment identifies one or more factors present within the family.  The commonest factor continues to be domestic violence.  

The other elements of the toxic trio (parental substance misuse, parental poor mental health) as well as emotional abuse and neglect remain the 

next commonest factors in 2015/16. 

 

 

 
 

P
age 61



44 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

 

Child Protection Plans 
 

Indicator 
Accumulation 

of data 
Bromley 
2013/14 

Bromley 
2014/15 

Apr 
15 

May 
15 

Jun 
15 

Jul 
15 

Aug 
15 

Sep 
15 

Oct 
15 

Nov 
15 

Dec 
15 

Jan 
16 

Feb 
16 

Mar 
16 

Year to 
Date  

2015/16 

Child Protection                                 

Children becoming 
subject to a CPP 

In Month 296 246 12 8 30 29 9 27 26 23 13 34 16 17 244 

Children currently subject 
to a CPP 

Snapshot 262 220 212 215 219 218 219 215 213 227 221 232 229 230 230 

Children currently subject 
to a CPP with a disability 

Snapshot 7 5 5 6 6 5 5 6 6 6 7 7 6 8 8 

Children currently subject 
to a CPP and also looked 
after 

Snapshot 6 7 8 6 6 5 7 3 3 9 11 15 12 18 18 

Children becoming 
subject to a CPP for a 
second or subsequent 
time 

YtD 

51 33 5 5 7 13 15 23 29 31 32 35 41 51 51 

17% 13% 42% 25% 14% 16% 17% 20% 21% 19% 18% 17% 18% 21% 20.9% 

 
The rate of children subject to a Child Protection Plan (CPP) in 2015-16 per 10,000 population remains lower than the national average and that of 
Bromley’s statistical neighbours, however there was an increase compared to the previous year and this is forecast to increase further in 2016-17.  

P
age 62



45 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

      

The increase in children becoming subject to a CPP for a second or subsequent time was challenged by the QAPM Sub Group.  LBB Children’s 

Social Care Quality Improvement Team have audited these cases twice and assured the Board that there were no critical factors although as a 

result they now have more robust plans. The high numbers in 2015-16 were due to some very large sibling groups.  In all bar two cases, the re-

registrations occurred more than 1000 days after the first registration.  Some families had moved out of the borough, then back in.  Given that 

past audits had shown that ‘de-planning’ families was sometimes too optimistic, the Principle Social Worker reviewed all children who Social Work 

Managers recommend cease to be on a CPP. 

 

 The reasons children and young people were subject to a Child Protection Plan remain similar to the last two years although emotional abuse is 

now the commonest category of abuse, as it was in 2013-14.  Neglect remains a prevalent category of abuse in Bromley.  The 2016 multi-agency 

audit programme will analyse neglect cases. 

26.6 

37.2 
30.8 32.2 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16

Children Subject to a Child Protection Plan per 10,000 

Bromley

Statistical
Neighbours

National 18.8% 17.2% 
13.4% 

20.9% 

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16

Children becoming subject to a child protection plan for a 
second or subsequent time 

Bromley

Statistical
Neighbours

National

P
age 63



46 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

 

 

Children Looked After 

286 children were looked after at the end of 2015-16.  This is an increase from 264 last year but remains below the national average and that of 

our statistical neighbours. Research evidence suggests that children who are looked after achieve much better outcomes if placed in a placement 

that can fully meet their needs and wherever possible is close to the geographical area that they are familiar with and enables them to have 

continued contact with significant people in their lives. 

For all but a very small cohort, the most appropriate placement is with foster carers. As at 31 March 2016 68.5% of our children looked after were 
placed with foster carers, 14% of children looked after were in residential placements, 10.1% were independent living, 1% were placed with their 
parents and 6.3% were placed for adoption. Whilst the percentage of children placed with our in-house foster carers and in residential 
accommodation is similar to last year, the number of children placed with connected persons (relative or friend) has increased and the number placed 
with IFA foster carers has declined. 

 

We continue to actively recruit local foster carers to meet our needs and in particular those who are able to offer placements to disabled children, 
adolescents and sibling groups. The aim for this year was to recruit more foster carers who are willing to have older children and sibling groups placed 
with them, which would lead to less dependence on IFA placements. IFA placements have reduced from 16.2% to 10.1%.  Bromley is pleased that the 

68 

100 96 

96 

98 
100 15 

3 3 

10 

5 
2 73 

14 29 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16

Category of Abuse 

Multiple

Sexual abuse

Physical abuse

Emotional abuse

Neglect

P
age 64



47 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

Fostering Team has a very stable staff group, which allows for a good continuity of support.  The QAPM Sub Group challenged LBB Children’s Social 
Care over placements this year and the DCS presented more information.  In 2016-17 there will be scrutiny of the quality of these placements. 
 
Placement stability rates (3 or more placement in last year) are similar to last year and are continuing the positive trend seen since 2011.  This is in line 
with the national trend.  Long term stability (CLA more than 2.5 years) is stable and in line with national and statistical neighbours.  Looked after 
children placed more than 20 miles from Bromley remains high at 19.9%, compared to the national average, and has been so for several years. 
 

Indicator 
Accumulation 

of data 
Bromley 
2013/14 

Bromley 
2014/15 

Apr 
15 

May 
15 

Jun 
15 

Jul 
15 

Aug 
15 

Sep 
15 

Oct 
15 

Nov 
15 

Dec 
15 

Jan 
16 

Feb 
16 

Mar 
16 

Year to 
Date  

2015/16 

Private Fostering                                 

Children subject to Private 
Fostering arrangements 

Snapshot 8 6 11 10 7 4 5 6 7 8 7 8 9 9 9 

Children Looked After                                  

Children currently looked after 
by LBB 

Snapshot 272 264 264 276 274 279 280 275 281 282 282 281 281 286 286 

Children becoming looked after 
(instances) 

In Month 169 137 6 24 17 15 9 9 12 19 9 14 8 19 161 

Children ceasing to be looked 
after (instances) 

In Month 188 159 10 11 14 17 6 13 14 13 11 13 4 15 141 

Unaccompanied Asylum 
Seeking Children  

Snapshot 11 15 16 17 17 16 11 13 13 13 13 17 16 20 20 

Children Looked After 
Placements 

                                

Short term placement stability: 
% children who have been in 3 
or more placements this year 

YtD 

  28 2 3 5 7 8 15 15 17 20 22 22 30 30 

12% 11% 0.8% 1.1% 1.8% 2.5% 2.9% 5.5% 5.3% 6.0% 7.1% 7.8% 7.8% 10.5% 10.5% 

Long term placement stability: 
children under 16 years old 
who have been looked after for 
at least 2.5 years and have 
been in the same placement for 
at least 2 years 

Snapshot 69% 68% 72% 68% 69% 67% 65% 64% 65% 68% 68% 70% 66% 68% 67.5% 

Children placed outside of 
Bromley and more than 20 
miles from where they used to 
live (excluding placed for adoption) 

Snapshot 20% 21% 18% 18% 18% 16% 15% 16% - 20% 20% 19% 20% 20% 19.9% 

 

P
age 65



48 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

    

 

Missing from Care 

Indicator 
Accumulation 

of data 
Bromley 
2013/14 

Bromley 
2014/15 

Apr 
15 

May 
15 

Jun 
15 

Jul 
15 

Aug 
15 

Sep 
15 

Oct 
15 

Nov 
15 

Dec 
15 

Jan 
16 

Feb 
16 

Mar 
16 

Year to 
Date  

2015/16 

CLA currently Missing from care Snapshot 
New for 
2014/15 

2         3 4 3 2 1 3 1 0 0 

CLA currently Away from their 
placement without authorisation 

Snapshot 1         4 4 6 3 4 4 3 0 0 

Referrals to MASE In Month     6 3 4 6 3 4 5 2 9 9 4 10 65 

The Children’s Social Care record ‘missing from care’ and ‘away from placement without authorisation’ as separate categories on their IT casework 

system.  A weekly report is tracked by the Children Looked After (CLA) team. The CLA team also collates overnight notification from the 

Emergency Duty Team (EDT), detailing missing episodes. Return interviews for children missing from care are commissioned from an independent 

advocacy service, Baker and Joy.  See section 5.2 for further information about the broader ‘missing’ population and work undertaken. 

 

 

 

41 41 39 37 
40.0 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16

Children Looked After per 10,000 

Bromley

Statistical
Neighbours

National

71% 70% 69% 68.4% 67.5% 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16

Looked After Children aged under 16 who have been in 
care for 2.5 years and in the same placement for 2 years 

Bromley

Bromley
3 year
average

National

P
age 66



49 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

 

 

Care leavers 

Indicator 
Accumu
lation of 

data 

Bro
mley 
2013/

14 

Bro
mley 
2014/

15 

Apr 
15 

May 
15 

Jun 
15 

Jul 
15 

A
ug 
15 

Sep 
15 

Oct 
15 

Nov 
15 

Dec 
15 

Jan 
16 

Feb 
16 

Mar 
16 

Year to 
Date  

2015/16 

Nat 
Ave 

14/15 

Care Leavers in Touch 

Birthday  
In  

Month 

    85% 76% 82% 76% 69% 90% 88% 93% 84% 86% 86% 86% 84.1%   

Care Leavers in Suitable accommodation 83% 75% 77% 65% 82% 76% 54% 80% 81% 93% 76% 79% 50% 64% 73.4% 81% 

Care Leavers in Education, Employment or 
Training 

46% 48% 31% 41% 41% 48% 38% 40% 50% 73% 40% 64% 29% 32% 45.8% 48% 

The QAPM Sub Group challenged outcomes for care leavers and awaits a full report from Children’s Social Care in the 2016-17 year.    

 

Adoption and fostering 

Indicator 
Accumulation 

of data 
Bromley 
2013/14 

Bromley 2014/15 
Year to 

Date  2015/16 

Adoption         

Children (newly) placed for adoption In Month 18 22 18 

Children Waiting to be placed (panel decision for 
adoption but not yet placed) 

Snapshot 20 12 15 

This Days between child entering care and moving 
in with adoptive family (3 year average) 

3YtD 641 659 685.9 

Days between LA receiving court authority to place 
a child and matching with adoptive family (single 
year) 

YtD 264 290 212.3 

 

The average number of days between a child entering care and moving in with an adoptive family was significantly increased by a single case 

whereby a teenager was adopted following a long term foster placement.  However, even when allowing for this case, the average number of days 

was still above the target and above the national average.  There has been an improvement in the number of days the LA takes to match following 

court authority to place a child following a high number in the last few years although this is still longer than the national threshold for average 

time. 

P
age 67



50 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

There were 97 mainstream foster carer households as of end March 2016, 12 respite foster carer households, 14 connected persons households 

(fully approved) equalling 123 fostering households in total.  This is a decrease from 134 at the end of March 2015. 

 

Education performance of Children in Care  

Virtual School 
GCSE outcomes for Bromley’s children looked after (CLA) in academic year 2014/15 were the best since reporting began.   The small cohort size 
means that this data will be supressed in national reporting, however, the figure of 26% of LAC leaving year 11 with five or more GCSEs at grade 
A*-C including English and Maths will place Bromley within the top 10% of all authorities in England this year.  This outcome also compares 
favourably with geographical neighbours. 37% of the reporting cohort has identified special educational needs, with 5 young people having a 
Statement of Special Educational Needs (SEN).  This equates to 26% of the cohort having a Statement of SEN against a national figure of 2.8%.   
 
The attendance of most Bromley CLA is very good and is the same as all other Bromley children.  Some children have been poor attenders or not 
attending at all when they come into care and some find regular school attendance very hard when their families or placements are disrupted or they 
have other social, emotional or mental health issues, especially during adolescence.  The Virtual School will put additional resources in place for these 
students, in the form of 1:1 tuition (either face to face or online) or alternative provision in an assessment centre or alternative education centre or 
work experience.  Attendance at this provision is closely monitored and young people are visited frequently but, despite all offers of support, some 
young people continue to refuse to engage and attend.  Persistent absence (less than 85% attendance) is falling year on year, however and is in line 
with absence in similar authorities. 7.2% of CLA, representing 9 students dropped below 85% attendance in 2014/15.   

 
There have been no permanent exclusions of Bromley CLA since 2008. During academic year 2014/15, fixed term exclusions for Bromley looked  
after children reduced significantly, to the lowest number of days of fixed term exclusions since reporting began and resuming the downward 
trend after last year’s spike.   

 

6.2 Child Deaths 
The number of deaths of children in Bromley during 2015-16 was 17. The Child Death Overview Panel (CDOP) continues to analyse the information for 
each child and report its findings to the BSCB Board. In 2015-16 there were two routine CDOP meetings. The remaining 8 deaths from 2014-15 and 7 
of the deaths in 2015-16 were discussed in those meetings. 
 
There were five unexpected deaths in 2015-16 and twelve expected deaths. More than half of all the deaths (10 deaths) were to neonates in their first 
month of life, and 15 out of the 17 deaths were in the first year of life. All but four of these fifteen deaths were expected. Guidance indicates that if 

P
age 68



51 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

the baby shows any sign of life then it is classified as a neonatal death rather than a stillbirth. A neonatologist from the Princess Royal University 
Hospital now attends all CDOP meetings. 
 

6.3 Allegations Against Professionals 
There are occasions when a child protection allegation is made against a professional working with children within the borough. These allegations are 
reported to the Local Authority Designated Officer (LADO) who ensures that any allegations are investigated promptly and appropriately. The LADO 
ensures that a record is kept of how the allegation was followed up, the decisions reached, the action taken and the final outcome. 

From the 1st April 2015 to 31st March 2016 a total of 193 allegations were reported to the local authority, compared to 111 allegations in 2014-15. 
This is a significant 73.87% increase in the number of referrals received. Reasons for this increase are: embedding of the IT application on CareFirst for 
recording allegations; delivery of regular multi-agency Allegation Management Briefings offered as part of the BSCB comprehensive training 
programme, along with single agency training; a drive to raise awareness of allegation management procedures by reviewing, updating and 
disseminating the local Managing Allegations Procedures and one page quick guide. 

The sector generating the highest number of referrals was Education. There were 83 allegations from Education which is 43% of all the allegation 
referrals. This is in line with the previous 2 years in Bromley and also in line with national statistics.  Early Years and Health generated the next highest 
number of referrals. There were 27 (13.9%) referrals relating to professionals working in Early Years settings. Of these 2 were allegations relating to 
registered childminders and the remaining 25 were relating to nursery and pre-school settings. The number of allegations received for Health 
professionals is 26 (13.4%) a slightly lower percentage than the previous year but still considerably higher than 2 years ago. However given the 
number of Health professionals working across the borough in hospitals, medical centres, drop in clinics, surgeries and even schools it is felt that the 
number of referrals remains disproportionately low.   

Uniformed organisations such as the Scouts, Boys Brigade and the Cadets have generated 6 referrals this year. The LADO has seen a considerable 
improvement in the way these organisations have put safeguarding on their agendas, developing safeguarding policies and procedures and seeking to 
recognise and take appropriate action in response to safeguarding concerns. 

 

 

 

 

P
age 69



52 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

Category of Abuse for Allegations against Professionals 2015-16 

 

The pie chart above shows the local authority received 105 allegations of physical abuse which is more than half of all referrals received. Whilst in 
many of these cases there was a context of physical restraint or physical handling, there were also allegations made by children that they were hit or 
struck by professionals that work with children and young people. These alleged incidents occurred either in a domestic setting, in their personal lives 
or where the adult concerned was working in a professional capacity.   

Of the 193 referrals made to the LADO 112 (58%) resulted in strategy meetings. The increase in the number of strategy meetings is commensurate to 
the overall increase in the number of referrals received. When a strategy meeting has been agreed, the matter is referred to the police if the concerns 
indicate a crime may have been committed.   

A total of 47 (24.4%) referrals were investigated by the police. The level of investigation varied from police checks and initial information gathering 
then no further action, to full scale investigations lasting several months and resulting in cases being tried in court. The police investigations have 
resulted in 2 perpetrators receiving custodial sentences, 1 perpetrator receiving a non-custodial sentence and 2 perpetrators receiving a Police 
Caution.   The referrals that did not result in a strategy meeting were referred back to the employers for internal management action. This may 
include a disciplinary management investigation leading to a formal warning or standard setting, training, mentoring or repositioning. If the concerns 
are referred back to the employer for action the case remains open until the LADO receives confirmation the investigation has reached a conclusion. 
 

19 

27 

18 

105 

24 

Category of abuse 

Emotional Inappropriate Neglect Physical Sexual

P
age 70



53 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

6.4 Private Fostering 
BSCB Business Plan 2015-18 Priorities 
Focus for 2016-17: 

 2.6 High quality information on the number of children being privately fostered is presented to and scrutinised by Board. Agencies are able to report their 
health, education and care needs are being met. 

 
BSCB monitors the arrangements in place for privately fostered children in Bromley. The QA&PM sub group considers the quarterly data on private 
fostering and BSCB receives the local authority (LA) annual report to scrutinise the arrangements the local authority has in place to discharge its duties 
in relation to private fostering.  
 
All private fostering notifications have been acted in accordance with the local authority’s policies and procedures. Statutory visits were completed 
within the timescale except for one of the foreign language students who was out of the country due to school holidays. 

 
The LA has a Lead Officer for Private Fostering who has been working with partner agencies such as language schools and other professionals to raise 
awareness and to ensure the safety and well-being of privately fostered children. Robust oversight and monitoring of performance is undertaken by 
Children’s Social Care Senior Management Team. Bromley is a member of the Private Fostering Specialist interest Group (PFSIG) run by CORAM/BAAF 
and this has been helpful to determine areas where Bromley can improve its performance regarding Private Fostering.  

 
Bromley recognises the importance of promoting private fostering public awareness in planned and structured ways. Bromley has developed a 
comprehensive communication plan and conducted well-coordinated awareness raising activities. The communication plan is subject to ongoing 
review and is being implemented by the project group.  The BSCB Business Manager is a member of this project group. 

 
Private fostering notifications have increased in Bromley during the period of April 2015 to March 2016. Between these dates there were 20 new 
notifications. This was due to an increase in non-language school notifications which also including an increase in notifications of Black Minority Ethnic 
children. This is a significant increase in private fostering notifications compared to previous years where we received no non-language school 
notifications. Of the 20 notifications, only 11 were from the language school.  

 
Leaflets and information on private fostering have been regularly updated on Bromley’s website including leaflets for children, parents and 
professionals and distributed across the borough.   
 
 

 

P
age 71



54 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

Section 7: Single Agency Annual Reports on Safeguarding 
 

7.1 Children’s Social Care 
 
BSCB Business Plan 2015-18 Priorities 
Achievements: 
 2.1 The Board is confident that families have easy access to appropriate support at an early stage before needs become more profound: annual presentation to 

board for scrutiny and challenge in December 2015, CAF performance measures monitored by QAPM sub group, CAF training uptake monitored. 
 Focus for 2016-17: 

 2.1 Practitioners are able and confident to address reluctance of some families with needs to engage with services: evidenced by practitioners survey. Early help 
to include special educational needs/disability (SEND) services and health visitors as they align closer to Children and Families Centres: QAPM performance 
report to receive Early Intervention Analyst input. 

 4.3 and 4.4 A confident and skilled workforce in identifying and responding to child abuse, domestic abuse and neglect. 
 

 

Children’s Social Care - What have we done? 

Signs of Safety Model (SoS) Roll Out 
This year was the first year of a three year roll out programme of the Signs of Safety model by Bromley Children’s Social Services. Signs of Safety is a 
‘strength-based, solution focused’ approach to working with families and professionals (health visitors, social workers, teachers), working together to 
make a more effective plan to keep children safe and well. It puts children, young people and their parents at the heart of the work. It is a way of 
making sure everyone involved in a child’s life has the same understanding of the strengths and the worries, and agrees the goals need to be reached 
within a clear timeframe. Practice leads have been trained and the rollout will continue. An evaluation of the first year of implementation is due in 
April 2016. 
 
Early Interventions and Family Support (EIFS) 
EIFS was created in September 2015 and is now comprised of Bromley Children Project, which includes Children and Family Centres and Family 
Support and Parenting Service and Tackling Troubled Families workers, the Information Advice and Support Service (formerly known as Bromley 
Parent Partnership & CHOICE Service), Common Assessment Framework, Contact Centres and the Tackling Troubled Families coordination team.  
 
Children and Family Centres:  

 Two of the four area Health Visitor Teams are now office-based in two of the six Children and Family Centres, resulting in improved 
communication and stronger partnership working. 

P
age 72



55 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

 Birth Registrations can now be completed at two Children and Family Centres in addition to the Civic Centre. Feedback from new parents has 
been very positive, and this has helped to reach new parents more quickly. 

 Midwifery Parent Education Classes on Saturdays are now well established in five of the six Children and Family Centres.  Attendance is good 
with over 1000 new parents attending one of these sessions this year. 

 The offer of evidence based Parenting Programmes has been extended and sessions are now available during the year in evening and 
weekend timeslots to support parents who are working during the week.   

 The ‘Children’s Group Work Programme’ is a domestic violence and abuse programme for children who have witnessed domestic abuse 
against their mother.  Attendee feedback has been very good, with observed improvements in the children’s behaviour and greater 
understanding by the mothers of the impact of their children witnessing the abusive behaviour. 

 We have now created in all six Children and Family Centres a ‘sensory’ space for use by both families and professionals working with children 
with additional needs.   

 Provision of Public Access PCs at all Children and Family Centres has been completed, including Housing Options and Job Centre Plus sites. 

 Joint working with colleagues in Public Health and Bromley Healthcare’s Health Improvement Service has resulted in a range of health 
promotion pilots and programmes such as Live Well and Diabetes Support.  

 Delivery of free MAST training (Mental Health Awareness in Safeguarding Training) for all professionals working with young people in 
Bromley, promoting the safety of young people in London by making it easier for practitioners to identify and support when there are signs of 
mental health issues  or emotional trauma.   

 The development of a ‘drop-in’ at all Children and Family Centres for families unsure how to access support has been successful.  This was 
accessed by parents who wanted to self-refer to formal family support as well as parents who just needed to talk to someone. 

 
Family Support and Parenting: 

 All staff have been trained in the Signs of Safety model; it works very well for early intervention as the language used with families is very 
accessible.   

 Staff are also being trained in direct-work tools for engaging children and young people as well as their wider family members. 

 A working group of frontline staff was created to review, redesign and implement Signs of Safety into Family Support paperwork, processes 
and practice.  Go live date is May 2016. 

 Completion of the research, development, and writing of a targeted evidence based parenting programme for parents known to CSC where 
the primary concern is neglect ‘Caring for you Child’, to be piloted in Summer 2016.  This is in addition to the existing targeted evidence- based 
parenting offer, Parenting Plus model, and bespoke one-off programmes. 

 
Tackling Troubled Families: 

 Phase 1 of Tackling Troubled Families (TTF) ended in March 2015, and Bromley achieved 100% of the 490 target turnarounds and consequently 

P
age 73



56 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

achieved the maximum payment by reward settlement.  This was only achieved by working with more than the target of 490 families, and 
those families who had not ‘turned around’ by 31 March continued to be supported. 

 Phase 2 started officially in April 2015, however as Bromley successfully achieved 100% turnaround in Phase 1 we were invited to become an 
Early Adopter of Phase 2.  This means an additional 249 families had to be, and were, attached between September 2014 and April 2015.  

 Two staff were seconded from Job Centre Plus into the Bromley Children Project TTF Family Support team on a part-time basis to support the 
efforts to decrease the number of adults out of work in a more targeted and structured way.  Work has been undertaken to incorporate their 
work within our systems so that it will be reportable next year.   

 
Information Advice and Support Service: 

 The Information Advice and Support Service was awarded an additional grant by the Council for Disabled Children to undertake Independent 
Support work with children, young people and their parents and carers, as well as professionals working with families, in relation to the move 
from Statementing to the Education Health and Care Plan (EHC) model.  Alongside this developmental work, the team took on a critical friend 
role on the Steering Group of the local IS Consortium (a group of voluntary sector organisations) who were also granted an award to do similar 
work. 

 This year saw several key changes in the focus of the Information Advice and Support Service in that: - 
o the age range supported increased from school aged children to families with children aged 0 to 25, 
o support increased from purely educational issues to include both health and care issues too, in line with the EHC Plan model, 
o the service was required to undertake direct support for young people rather than only their parents and carers. 

 
Common Assessment Framework (CAF): 

 Strategic and operational management of the CAF Team moved under EIFS alongside Bromley Children Project, Children and Family Centres, 
Information Advice and Support Service, so bringing all early intervention together. 

 The team cemented their role in the Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) service, and now provide two days a week support within the 
MASH. 

 All staff have been trained in the Signs of Safety model. CAF Team has created a frontline staff team to review redesign and implement Signs of 
Safety into the CAF team’s processes and practice.  A revised CAF Form and TAC Minutes template will be presented to the BSCB for approval 
in Summer 2016. 

 As is our existing practice, a full report for the year has been completed by the CAF Manager and will be presented to CSC Senior Management 
Team and the BSCB as an information item in early 2016/17. 

 
Contact Centres: 

 Family Contact Service moved into EIFS in Autumn 2015. This is a new area of work within Early Intervention.  An initial review was completed 

P
age 74



57 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

by December 2015 suggesting a full review of the Service was needed. A full review began in Spring 2016 looking for ways to integrate and 
formalise best practice.  It is anticipated that the review will report to Senior Management Team in Autumn of 2016. 

 All staff are being trained in Signs of Safety. 
 
Safeguarding 

 All referrals to Children’s Social Care (CSC) as well as referrals for services provided by the Children with Disabilities Team are now made 
through the Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) using a generic referral form which incorporates the Signs of Safety Framework. The 
MASH currently co-locates colleagues from the police, health, education, probation and the CAF team with CSC staff at the Civic Centre. This 
provides more cohesive decision making and sharing of appropriate information.  

 At the beginning of September 2016 there will also be an independent Domestic Violence advisor (IDVA) based in MASH for two days per week 
to contribute to overall risk assessment and to receive direct referrals from MASH, the Referral & Assessment Team and Safeguarding & Care 
Planning Teams.   

 The CAF team supports MASH where cases do not meet the threshold for Children’s Social Care but may require support to achieve a CAF and 
team around the child/family approach. There are plans for the links with housing services to be strengthened to be able to support families 
and young people facing housing issues in a more timely manner. 

 
Child Protection 

 The Signs of Safety (SoS) model has been implemented with all front line social workers; all managers receiving two days training and project 
leads attending a five day workshop. A three year implementation plan has been devised. All Child Protection (CP) conferences are now using 
the Signs of Safety model and CP chairs will be running workshops for the multi-agency group about participation at SoS conferences. Project 
leads have led lunchtime workshops on Child friendly CP plans, Appreciative Enquiry and Danger and Safety statements. 

 Child Protection plans are expected to have clear safety goals linked to the actions so families are clear about the outcomes needed for their 
children. 

 The Group Manager for Quality Improvement Child Protection meets monthly with Safeguarding Group managers to review all cases where 
child protection plans have been in place for 9 months or longer. Actions are then added to case files with a focus on whether the case needs 
to step up to legal proceedings or what work is needed for a safe and sustainable step down to Child In Need arrangements. 

 Child protection chairs are auditing more cases between CP conferences and as a result escalations have increased. 
 

Children Looked After and Care Leavers  

 The Corporate Parenting Strategy Group (CPSG) terms of reference were reviewed in 2015/16 so that strategic leads from all partner agencies 
attend. The central aim is to develop, monitor and sustain a strategy and work plan to ensure that all looked after children and young people 
and care leavers have the best life chances in terms of health, educational attainment, training and employment, to support transition in to 

P
age 75



58 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

adulthood. The CPSG  will set high standards and make recommendations to the Executive Group to make sure that the Council and partner 
agencies commit to excellent standards in corporate parenting 

 The Independent Reviewing Officer (IRO) and children looked after and leaving care teams have worked together to embed Promoting the 
Health and Well-being of Looked After Children March 2015, through provision of Health Passports for 18 year old care leavers. 

 IROs have supported the introduction of the third personal education plan that all children in care receive. 

 Following the Youth Offending Service (YOS) Inspection in February 2015 the IRO service has prioritised effective communication between IROs 
and YOS workers so that offending behaviour and care needs are comprehensively understood and worked with. IROs continuously monitor 
and review care plans to ensure they are SMART and appropriate to the level of involvement with partner agencies including YOS. 

 Permanency tracking established for all children under 13. 

 Increase in special guardianships 

 A social worker is now based in the Support and Resettlement Team (Housing) to work with young people aged 16yrs + who present with 
homelessness.  Social Care and Housing collaborate to prevent, where possible, the need for that young person to become looked after.  
Clinical support is given from the new FAST team within Referral and Assessment. 

 Case holders for adoption are now doing case work, to reduce delays and strengthen worker relationships through the adoption process. 

 Refreshed foster carer recruitment strategy and training. 

 Signs of safety methodology has been introduced into review meetings and all social workers and IROs have been trained. Foster carers will be 
trained in 2016. 

 
Care Proceedings 
The volume of care proceedings issued has remained fairly consistent over the past three years averaging at 84 children per year.  The average 
duration of concluded cases at the end of March 2016 was 22 weeks. The issues facing families are varied and social workers need to be able to adapt 
and update their skills to meet the demands of the families with whom they work.  
 
Although during the last quarter of 2015/16 there was a reduction in the number of children subjected to care proceedings, it is too early to predict if 
this trend will follow through for the forthcoming six months. Bromley continues to focus upon pre proceedings planning and continues to review and 
amend our procedures in order to streamline assessments and avoid delay.  
Under the signs of safety model, every effort will be made to work with families in order to effect change before care proceedings are considered as 
long as it is safe for the child to do so.  

 
 
 

P
age 76



59 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

Children’s Social Care - How have we engaged with children and young people? 

 The Living in Care Council (LinCC) has recently relaunched their Pledge by visiting frontline and senior management teams. 

 LinCC has focused on monitoring the delivery of the pledge; members of LinCC have met with social work teams with a questionnaire to 
evaluate the effectiveness of the Pledge. 

 Members of LinCC sit on the Corporate Parenting Strategy Group and also participate in the Executive Working Party for Child Safeguarding 
and Corporate Parenting and the Care Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee (PDS) throughout 2015. 

 Children Looked After have access to the independent advocacy service ‘Baker and Joy’. 

 The annual children in care Celebration of Achievement was held in March 2016 and saw over 200 children, carers and officers attend to 
celebrate achievements ranging from the completion of degrees to volunteering. 

 Children 12+ are attending child protection conferences. 

 Mind of My Own (MOMO) app has been launched to encourage children to tell social workers/IROs about their feelings, experiences, needs 
and wants. Initial indications are that the app has been well received and is being used.   

 Feedback from Child Protection conference and child looked after reviews is overwhelmingly positive. 

 Parental survey of closed cases took place in Jan/Feb 2016 (24% return rate from 403 surveys) to measure the long term outcomes of the 
Council’s involvement in children’s lives after a significant period of time – ‘ after the dust has settled.’  .  Responses showed very positive 
outcomes (76%) and feedback about social work support. Respondents were also clear about why they felt this, with a significant proportion 
detailing specific improvements to their child’s life (e.g better school attendance, less aggression at home) Even more positive, when asked 
directly whether having a social worker made things better for their children, 84% of people felt that in the long term their social worker had 
made things better for their child.  In terms of issues raised in the survey, there were two main themes – a perceived lack of follow up once the 
case has been officially closed and a number of parents of children with SEND mentioned difficulties in finding out information about what 
support is available.   
 

Children’s Social Care is working to improve so that: 

 Children looked after are actively involved in training and recruitment 

 There is greater and more consistent feedback of ‘return home interviews’ when a child goes missing. 

 There is feedback from children following child protection plan ‘step down’. 

 Improvements to Local Offer section on website as part of larger piece of co-production work with parents of disabled children. 

 
Children’s Social Care - What challenges did we face and how did we address them? 

 Staff recruitment and turnover remains a concern and Human Resources and Workforce Development are working to ensure that the Bromley 
recruitment and retention package is attractive and well understood by current staff and new recruits. 

 Co-ordination of the multi-agency response to CSE/Missing and Gangs to ensure practice is more effective and streamlined. This will be the 

P
age 77



60 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

focus of a multi-agency working group in 2016/17. 

 The current audit programme needs to focus on achieving safe, consistent practice with good chronologies and smart plans across services.  

 Effectively managing services with reduced management capacity. 

 The increase in teenagers coming in to care and how to support foster carers to meet their needs. 

 Social care is developing a new, bespoke IT system so that social workers can ensure their recording of information is more family friendly. 
Social workers know their cases well and this should help them to translate this information onto case files.  

 Reflective supervision is being developed across the social care workforce as it is recognised that in some areas, supervision does not give clear 
management direction, timescales and rationale which can lead to drift in progressing plans for children.  Signs of Safety will be used in small 
supervision groups, to give team oversight of cases and families get to know the whole team. 

 Children waited too long to be adopted in 2015-16.  As an acknowledgement of difficulty in identifying appropriate adoption placements for 
more challenging to place children and young people, a decision was made to change the consortium arrangements (from South to London) to 
widen access to a wider group of potential adoptors.   

 In order to ensure better join up between adult and children services around tackling domestic violence effectively, a refreshed strategy is 
being developed.  This is led by the Strategic and Business Support division to ensure parity. 

 We consulted foster carers about a revised payment and reward package and faced a great deal of challenge.  The initial package was 
amended in light of what foster carers told us and LBB made a compromise. 

 There has been an increase in the number of children becoming looked after, in particular older children (adolescents).  51% of all children 
looked after in Bromley are aged over 13, and 26% are over 16 years old.  To support this cohort earlier: from 1 April 2016 a new FAST (Family 
and Adolescent Support Team) sits within Referral and Assessment to support adolescents;  work is undertaken with housing to find suitable 
accommodation for young people aged 16 years +.  Following a review of services for looked after children and care leavers, the decision to 
amalgamate two teams has been put on hold whilst needs are further reviewed. 

 The shortage of affordable housing in Bromley creates difficulties for families with low income. Children’s Social Care work with London 
Borough of Bromley Housing Services to improve children’s outcomes, working closely with families to prevent homelessness and increase 
access to affordable safe accommodation. During 2015/15 the Housing Service: prevented homelessness for 1200 families at risk of losing their 
home; assisted 97 families to secure alternative more affordable private rented accommodation; and provided debt and welfare reform advice 
to 415 families to assist them in affording their accommodation costs. 

 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 78



61 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

7.2 Bromley Clinical Commissioning Group (BCCG) 
 
BCCG - What have we done? 

Bromley Clinical Commissioning Group (BCCG) has a statutory responsibility to ensure that the CCG and the services it commissions have 
robust arrangements in place to safeguard and promote the welfare of vulnerable children and young people. In summary the following 
activities and developments have occurred during April 2015 to March 2016: 
 
Strategy and service development 
 Bromley CCG Safeguarding Children and Children Looked-after Health Economy Dataset has been continually refined and updated with our 

main provider organisations throughout the year. Analysis of this information is starting to inform commissioning work streams, e.g. 
between April 2015 to March 2016, 79 children and young people (CYP) presented at the Princess Royal University Hospital (PRUH) 
Emergency Department having taken an overdose. This led to BCCG Performance Analysts obtaining data on Bromley children and young 
people who have attended neighbouring Emergency Departments in South East London boroughs to gain a more comprehensive picture.  
Furthermore, this data is leading to a profile of this group e.g. gender, age, postcodes, schools and ethnicity. This level of data will allow the 
BCCG Safeguarding Team to understand the profile of children and young people who are taking overdoses, prevention and obtaining 
views from this group to improve services. 

 In December 2015, key stakeholders and partners were invited to attend a facilitated safeguarding strategy development workshop. There 
was very good attendance from NHS and private providers. The workshop focused specifically on safeguarding across the whole life course 
(pre-birth – end of life) and to develop a 5 Year Safeguarding Strategy for BCCG.  
 

NHS England Safeguarding Deep Dive Review of Bromley CCG 
As part of NHS England’s Quality Assurance process it undertook a Safeguarding Deep Dive Review of all 32 London CCGs between September 
and November 2015.  The review was informed by the mandatory NHS England Safeguarding Vulnerable People in the NHS – Assurance and 
Accountability Framework (2015). Areas reviewed included: 

 How safeguarding was embedded within CCGs and that they were meeting their statutory functions 

 Scrutiny arrangements for health provider organisations 

 Influence and capacity of Designated Professionals  

 Efficacy of partnership working.  

The overall outcome of the Safeguarding (Children) Deep Dive was assured as Good. There were 34 key lines of enquiry, 32 were rated Green. 
The two Amber actions were around the permanent vacancies for the Designated Dr Safeguarding Children and Designated Dr Children 
Looked-after posts. Both posts were being covered by interim doctors. BCCG have now successfully recruited to these posts.  

P
age 79



62 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

 
Audit  
Health single agency safeguarding and Children Looked-after audit schedule completed and presented at the Safeguarding Children Health 
Economy Forum during the year. Core audit for 2016 is capturing the voice of the child and young person from each service’s perspective e.g. 
community paediatricians are auditing children and young people’s experiences of child protection medicals. 
 
 
Training and workshops 
Managing Allegations Against Staff Health Workshop - March 2016, the Head of Safeguarding and the Bromley Local Authority Designated 
Officer (LADO) ran a workshop for health named Drs and nurses and their Human Resources Managers on Managing Allegations Against Staff. 
Following inconsistent and delayed reporting to the Designated Dr and Nurse for Safeguarding, the aim of the workshop was to set the 
standards and clarify governance and lines of reporting between provider organisations, BCCG and NHS England. The BSCB Managing 
Allegations flowchart was aligned with the NHS England flowchart to make reporting easier for health staff.  In general, there remains a low 
number of LADO referrals from health organisations. 
 
In January 2016 the Annual GP services Safeguarding Children Academic Half Day was held with over 200 participants at the Warren in Hayes. 
Presentations included child sexual abuse, female genital mutilation (FGM) and referring into the Multi-agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH). 
  
Children Sexually Exploited 
The CCG is working collaboratively with partner agencies to continuously develop systems, processes and frontline practice with regards to 
children sexually exploited.  The safeguarding leads across the health economy are working in partnership through the Bromley Multi-agency 
Sexual Exploitation (MASE) panel to strengthen systems, risk assessments and processes via training, improved governance and  mapping 
where children and young people are being identified across the borough. BCCG has signed up to the NHS England CSE Health Risk Assessment 
pilot. This will enable a tool to be embedded across all health services which will mean agreed thresholds, assessments and standards. 
 
Children Looked-after  
BCCG approved a substantial sum of money for Bromley Healthcare to improve the clinical and administration resource of their children 
looked-after services. As a result additional outcome measures will include, clear oversight around the quality of care and placements for all 
children looked-after placed outside of Bromley borough ensuring improved health outcomes. To support this work key performance 
indicators have been agreed which will be monitored through BCCG’s Safeguarding Children Performance and Monitoring Framework.  
 
 

P
age 80



63 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

Recruitment and retention 
The permanent posts for the Designated Dr Safeguarding Children and Designated Dr Children Looked-after have been successfully recruited to 
with an increase to the number of sessions provided. 
 
BCCG - What difference did it make? 

 A comprehensive safeguarding dataset has started to identify the numbers of Bromley children and young people who are most vulnerable 
using our services e.g. numbers of children and young people who take an overdose. This information has now been sought across 
Emergency Departments in neighbouring boroughs to obtain a comprehensive overview. As a result BCCG analysts are now profiling this 
information and it is being shared to inform commissioning cycle and performance. 

 Audit results have led to improvements along care pathways for children and young people and frontline practice. 
 Engagement with children and young people across a number of community events is informing the re-design of the Child and Adolescent 

Mental Health Services (CAMHS) which are being developed with children’s views and experiences at the centre. 
 The increased funding from Bromley CCG to Bromley Healthcare for their Children Looked-after Service means that recruitment for two 

additional senior nurses and further admin support for the team.  These roles will enable specific oversight around the health needs and 
quality of placements provided for all children placed outside of Bromley Borough and also the health needs of unaccompanied asylum 
seeking children.  

 The Children Sexually Exploited (CSE) strategic and operational work that has been occurring in collaboration with our partner agencies has 
led to provider health organisations reviewing and updating their CSE pathways, more frontline staff have been trained which will help 
with early identification and effective risk assessments. In addition, managers and frontline staff are discussing how these vulnerable 
children and young people are entering their services and are keen to continually improve their services. BCCG designated professionals 
are advising and monitoring this developmental work through a number of safeguarding meetings. 

 
 

BCCG - How have we engaged with children and young people? 

 As part of the 2013/14 call to action initiative, the CCG held a session with 30 children from a primary school in Mottingham to gather their 
views on services.  Outcomes were used to inform CCG work and were also fed back to NHS England.  Themes included:   

- Happy about visiting GPs and Opticians 
- Anxiety regarding dentists 
- Hospital stays seen as painful/ extreme experience 
- Awareness of healthy eating/ lifestyle 
 As part of the same initiative a focus group was held with the Bromley Youth Council (10 participants).  Outcome was for the CCG to 

improve sign posting and information for young people.  This was taken account of when designing the CCG’s website.  

P
age 81



64 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

 Co-design of CAMHS was launched in the spring 2016.  Programme of work about to commence, the aim is to co-design emotional health 
and wellbeing services with children and young people so that it meets their needs.   

 The procurement process of children’s community health services has also started taking place.   Service models developed based on 
feedback from services, families and young people are now being tested with those young people.  A number of events have taken place 
and with more planned.  

 Children and Young People Community and Engagement have mapped the engagement taking place with children and young people in 
Bromley.   The primary areas are the Child Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) and Community procurement but additional work 
also undertaken through Healthy London Partnership e.g. the NHS Go app (aimed at 16-26 year olds, developed by young people for young 
people, Londoners said they wanted better and easier access to health and wellbeing information). 

 Review of the local offer – services available for children and young people with specific needs.   Consulted with Bromley Parent voice to 
ensure the information meets their needs and is accessible.  

 Healthwatch has been commissioned to undertake work on Bromley CCG’s behalf to reach children and young people – specifically in 
relation to the Our Healthier South East London (OHSEL) issues paper last year (to get their views and understand what services are like for 
them) and will be engaging young carers as part of the pre-consultation work for the proposed elective care centres.   

 

 
 
7.3 Bromley Healthcare (BHC) 
 

BHC - What have we done? 

Bromley Healthcare has improved its governance arrangements; we have a new Director of Nursing, Therapies and Quality Assurance. She 
chairs the Safer Care Group to assure the board that internal policy and procedures around safeguarding are robust. She also chairs the 
internal Child Protection meeting for internal service leads. The Designated Nurse and Named GP are also invited to this. Supervision is in place 
at all levels and is supported by a database to monitor practitioner compliance. This offers practitioners the opportunities to deep dive into 
cases and ensures that practice is safe and robust. Our supervision figures to date are 100% compliance for health visitors and school nurses 
and 100% for group supervision of other staff working with children. Regular training is delivered to all practitioners at levels 1-3. Compliance 
figures for Quarter 4 were:  Level  1:  97%     Level  2:  81%    Level  3:  76% 
 In 2015 the Named Nurse facilitated 4 days for specialist practitioners and those working closely with children on Harmful Cultural Practices; 
this included Female Genital Mutilation, witchcraft, honour based violence and arranged marriage and child sexual exploitation. New guidance 
and policies are embedded into all training packages. FGM, CSE and Prevent are included in all training sessions. 
Multi-agency training sessions together with children’s social care were provided on child sexual abuse, sudden and unexpected child death 
and foetal alcohol syndrome.  All relevant safeguarding policies have been updated; the Safeguarding Policy was updated and ratified in 2016 

P
age 82



65 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

to reflect changes to practice and legislation.  
The Named Nurse attended a training session facilitated by the Designated Nurse and the LADO on Allegations against Staff. The Bromley 
Healthcare policy and procedure has been updated to reflect changes made. The Community Paediatricians have also achieved internal targets 
to respond to GP safeguarding queries within 1 hour. Hollybank our respite service was rated ‘Good’ at the recent Ofsted Inspection. Bromley 
Healthcare have provided health input to the MASH, MASE, MARAC and MAP meetings and to all subgroup meetings of  BSCB. The Paediatric 
Liaison Health Visitor ensures that all urgent information is disseminated to practitioners within 24 hours of receiving it. 

 
BHC - What difference did it make? 

Provision of high quality training and supervision helps to ensure that staff are able to identify and act appropriately when there are any 
safeguarding concerns for a child. The speech and language therapy service recently carried out a focus group with parents about how the 
voice of the child could be heard and considered. Within the patients experience group, complaints by the child will be heard. The complaints 
procedure can be used by adults and children although work is underway to make it more user friendly for children.  
 
BHC - How have we engaged with children and young people? 

 Bromley Healthcare has a well-established culture of listening to and valuing the views of children and young people in its care. Each service 
has its own way of capturing this. For example at Hollybank respite home, patient surveys ensure that children are consulted regarding their 
experience of care. School nurses use ‘Your Choice Your Voice’ with young people and are aware of CSE and the risks to young people. Patient 
opinion is available to all clients and young people are encouraged to use it. The Community Paediatricians have a child friendly version of the 
friends and family test which is offered to all age appropriate children seen in their clinics. They have high satisfaction results, and seriously 
consider the comments made by young people in order to improve services. The Patient Experience Group, chaired by the Director of Nursing, 
Therapies & Quality Assurance is actively seeking ways to ensure that the voice of the child as well as of the vulnerable and hard to reach is 
heard. A child friendly version is currently being devised. 

 
BHC - What challenges did we face and how did we address them? 

2015 brought a raft of new guidance from NHS England that had to be embedded into our local policies and procedures. New mandatory 
reporting for FGM was put into place and added to all internal training packs. 
A freeze to recruitment within health visiting and school nursing has been difficult but safeguarding children is a priority and attendances at 
relevant meetings have remained high. The voice of the child must always be heard and we are currently reviewing how we document and 
evidence that this is always considered. Identification of CSE victims is an area that requires joint training and will be considered for 2016-17. 

 
 

P
age 83



66 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

7.4 Kings College Hospital (KCH) 
 

KCH - What have we done? 

The Trust is committed to being an active member of the safeguarding board. The Deputy Director of Nursing attends the safeguarding board 
and the Head of Nursing attends the QAPM sub group. The Senior Clinical Nurse Specialist for safeguarding children at the Princess Royal has 
attended sub-groups and the health forum along with the Trust’s Named midwife. The partnership helps ensure the Trust has effective 
processes in place to safeguard Bromley children who attend the Princess Royal. 
A specialist midwife has been appointed to support women with mental health issues to ensure they have the support that they require. As a 
consequence the specialist midwife for safeguarding will have increased capacity to support safeguarding work in maternity. 

 
KCH - How have we engaged with children and young people? 

Along with board partners the Trust has been considering how to develop ways of listening to children and young people who have been 
safeguarded. As a result the Young Persons midwifery team carried out an audit of young people who use their service. The findings were very 
positive in favour of the care and support that they had received. 

 
KCH - What challenges did we face and how did we address them? 

At the beginning of the year the Trust had difficulty in providing safeguarding supervision to all case holding midwives because senior 
midwives who supported supervision left the Trust. Providing supervision to maternity staff has always been a challenge in that a quarter of 
staff are part-time and they work across four sites.  Three staff members have received supervision training and sessions are now being 
offered to staff. 
The designated doctor role in Bromley has been vacant for a considerable period of time due to recruitment difficulties. As a consequence of 
this the named doctor at the Princess Royal has not been able to access supervision. The CCG has now appointed a designated doctor to 
provide supervision to named medical professionals. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 84



67 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

7.5 Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust 
 

Oxleas - What have we done? 

This year Oxleas welcomed a new Director of Nursing and Executive Lead for Safeguarding, who is also the BSCB Board member for Oxleas.  In June 
2015 we increased our safeguarding children resource with the appointment of a Specialist Advisor for Adult Mental Health to cover Bromley and 
Bexley. The post holder has set up a series of  ‘drop ins’ at each of our in-patient and community sites where practitioners can discuss any emerging 
concerns regarding children or can get hands on support on how to record safeguarding data on our database.  These sessions have been well 
attended.  
 
Our network of Safeguarding Children Champions across all service Directorates continues to grow. At the end of the year (March 2016) there were 
125 champions across Oxleas with 31 representing services in Bromley. The Trust-wide Safeguarding Children Champions Annual Event was held in 
June 2015 and was attended by 90 champions and was very well reviewed. Bromley, Bexley and Greenwich LSCB Business Managers attended and 
each gave a presentation on the work of their LSCB and their priorities for the coming year. In addition there were very thought provoking 
presentations on FGM, CSE, Prevent and Neglect. One of our Named Doctors and Consultant Paediatrician gave some useful insight into the use of 
stress positions as a form of physical chastisement and the potential for harm to a child. 
 
Oxleas has shown consistent compliance with Safeguarding Children Training across the year. Safer Recruitment Training is mandatory for all 
recruiting managers in Oxleas and again compliance has been maintained throughout the year.   
 
During  2015-2016 the Trust produced  an awareness raising leaflet for Prevent entitled ‘Preventing Terrorism and Radicalisation’ which was delivered 
to every member of staff with their February payslip. 
 
Oxleas Safeguarding Children Policy and Procedures were updated this year.  In addition we have strengthened the emphasis on the early 
identification of need and referral to early help, and the use of the threshold document to determine if a referral to children’s social care is indicated. 
 
Oxleas has worked very hard this year to raise awareness about FGM across all our Service Directorates. In anticipation of the mandatory reporting 
duty and the requirement for Oxleas to report on an FGM enhanced dataset to Health and Social Care Information Centre (HSCIC), we developed an 
FGM action plan.  We have developed an FGM page on our Intranet which has links to FGM key documents and the excellent information produced by 
the Department of Health and NHS Choices which aimed at both professionals and clients. 
 
 
 

P
age 85



68 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

Oxleas - What difference did we make? 

 Oxleas Risk assessment Tool for sexually active young people has been piloted and is now being use by the Contraception and Sexual Health 
Service, School nurses and CAMHS.  The tool is used to help identify child sexual exploitation CSE and other risks associated with sexual activity. 

 Oxleas has CAMHS representation at the Bromley MASE, ensuring timely information sharing regarding children at risk. 

 An information sharing pathway has been agreed between Oxleas Adult Mental Health Services and Midwifery and Health Visiting services 
(Bromley).  The process supports the early identification of need where a parent carer has mental ill health. 

 Adult Mental Health services are aware of their duty to record and respond to cases of FGM in women and know what to do if they suspect a 
child in their client network is at risk of FGM. 

 
Oxleas - How have we engaged with children and young people? 

 CAMHS work with young people to co-produce their care plans. 

 Children and young people IAPT (Improving Access to Psychological Therapies) measures experience of sessions and progress against jointly 
agreed goals.   

 Chi-Esq (Experience of Service Questionnaire) collects feedback from children and families which helps benchmark against other CAMHS at 
national level. 

 
Oxleas - What challenges did we face and how did we address them? 

This year has seen a significant change of personnel within the Safeguarding Children Team. During this time, when new professionals have been 
finding their feet, the team has continued to provide a high quality, supportive and responsive service to staff who have concerns about a child.  We 
have been helped and supported in our work by directorate safeguarding children leads and the network of champions.  
 
The requirement to report on a safeguarding dataset has been a significant challenge over the year and continues to be so. Oxleas has been working 
with our RiO (database) transformation leads, Business Support Managers and Informatics to try and address this matter.   
 
We have worked hard to raise awareness of the requirement for adult services in particular Adult  Mental Health to record details of children in their 
client network; we have run workshops, disseminated screen shots via service manages and Safeguarding Champions.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 86



69 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

7.6 Police Child Abuse Investigation Team (CAIT): 
 
CAIT - What have we done? 

 Whilst there are no formal targets set for the 2015/6 year the command continues to make it the main priority of safeguarding vulnerable 
victims and bringing more offenders to justice in line with the One Met Strategy. 

 In addition, collaborative working with partners is key to increase confidence within the Metropolitan Police Service (MPS). The initiative to 
co-locate CAIT referral desk staff and Police Community Liaison Officers within Borough MASH is due to be implemented as a pilot in 
Lambeth borough with the intention of introducing across MPS across 2016/17 period. 

 The Safeguarding Children’s reference Group (SGCRG) forum was set up across MPS to provide a strategic perspective across pan London 
with a key stakeholder approach to improving the service provided to children of abuse. Academic research has been commissioned to 
address how police and partners can better respond to the ‘Voice of the Child’ and is underway as at 2016. 

 Attendance management and recruitment procedures have been improved across south region to strengthen resilience to enable the best 
response to child abuse investigation. 

 Strong supervision and case scrutiny under a daily Senior Leadership Team ‘Grip & Pace’ function to ensure oversight of all cases on each 
region across MPS. 

 
CAIT - What difference did it make? 

Sanction Detection (SD) outcomes where the perpetrators are held accountable for their actions through the judicial system were at 25% for 
CAIT covering joint Bromley & Lewisham Boroughs. This was ranked 4th in MPS overall for the past reporting year. In addition SDs for the same 
Borough CAIT was 44% for all rape and serious sexual offences and 39% across the south region (ranked 1st in MPS). This is largely attributed to 
the continuing strengths of the Regional Historic Investigation team formed in 2014/5 period. 
 
CAIT - How have we engaged with children and young people? 

Engagement with child victims and witnesses are undertaken on a case-by-case basis with every investigation into child abuse. Our officers are 
trained in specialist ABE interview techniques and always engage with the child regarding their wishes and what is the best outcome for the 
child.  As a result of feedback more intermediaries are used to facilitate video interviews where children are unable to communicate 
effectively. 
The Victim’s Right to Reply (VRR) scheme was introduced 2015. This supports the MPS complaints process whereby a victim of child abuse (or 
their representative) can request a review into a decision not to prosecute if they are dissatisfied with the outcome. This, as well as a 
complaints system, ensures that a senior officer of either Detective Chief Inspector or Detective Inspector rank investigates any cases where 
the child/representative is unhappy with the outcome of their investigation. 
The Safeguarding Children’s reference Group (SGCRG) forum was set up across MPS to provide a strategic perspective across pan London with 

P
age 87



70 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

a key stakeholder approach to improving the service provided to children of abuse. Academic research has been commissioned to address how 
police and partners can better respond to the ‘Voice of the Child’ and is underway as at 2016. 
 
CAIT - What challenges did we face and how did we address them? 

Greater understanding of the ‘voice of the child’ to survey child victims of abuse post police investigation to learn from victim focussed 
feedback. This is being explored by academic research commissioned by the SGCRG. 
 
The need to improve uptake into joint training in ABE (Achieve Best Evidence) course across police and CSC partners in anticipation of HMIC 
(HM Inspectorate of Constabulary) findings from recent inspection. 
 

 

7.7 Borough Police  
 
Borough Police - What have we done? 

 CSE, domestic abuse and missing children training has been delivered to all front line borough staff. 

 New protocols have been put in place to manage missing children and reviews of performance are conducted monthly. 

 The Borough SPOC (single point of contact) attends MAP meetings (multi-agency planning meetings) which manages all identified cases  of CSE 
and shares relevant information to agree a safeguarding plan for individual children to achieve a positive outcome. 

 Police chair the monthly MASE (multi agency sexual exploitation) panel which seeks to have a strategic overview of trends and patterns of CSE 
across the borough.  

 Raised awareness and provided preventative education for the welfare of children who may be sexually exploited visiting schools, statutory 
agencies and local businesses. 

 Daily Management Meetings held twice daily to discuss, risk assess and deploy appropriate resources to locate missing and CSE/Gangs risk 
children. 

 Continued roll-out of Operation Make Safe to include businesses such as Hotels, Licensed premises, taxi companies and Children’s Homes in 
identifying what signs to look out for and what action to take should there be suspicious behaviour or activity on their premises or vehicles. 

 Creation of local on-line and level 1 CSE Safeguarding and Offences investigation team providing a dedicated CSE Borough team of 1 Detective 
Sergeant and 3 Detective Constables who are responsible for the investigation of on-line grooming and local safeguarding issues within 
Bromley. 

 Provided reassurance, awareness and preventative advice to parents of children identified at risk of CSE, focussing on on-line grooming 
offences. 

P
age 88



71 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

 Developed a Bromley borough CSE Police protocol to ensure correct procedures are adhered to in the reporting, investigation and handling of 
information relating to children at risk of CSE. 

 Co-ordinated response to highlight National CSE Awareness Day event in March 2016 (stall at INTU shopping centre, Operation Makesafe 
leaflets at Bromley South training station, twitter updates, start of roll out of Exploited DVD in schools). 

 Pro-active operations targeting CSE offenders resulting in arrests and prosecutions within the Borough. 

 Recording and serving of Section 2 child abduction notices (CAWNS) against adults at risk of abusing children. 

 Specialist trained Detective utilised to interview children at risk of CSE to provide best opportunity for child. 

 The Bromley Youth Policing Team hosted a presentation in February 2016 for parents and carers of year 5/6 Bromley students to raise their 
awareness of the potential dangers online. It included a questions and answers session, was attended by around 100 parents and received 
good verbal feedback.  

 
 
7.8 Youth Offending Service (YOS) 
 

YOS - What have we done? 

 All managers and caseworkers trained in ASSET PLUS – a comprehensive assessment tool. 

 All managers and staff trained in Signs of Safety. 

 Reflective practice group started at YOS, led by Group leader from safeguarding. 

 Safeguarding staff have run a monthly surgery at the YOS. 

 Single point of contact (ROLAC) established at YOS for working with Children Looked After. 

 Appropriate, timely referrals to Triage or CSC when necessary. 

 Monthly attendance by YOS staff at MASE meetings. 

 Appropriate referrals to Bromley Wellbeing, in house Counsellor or CAHMs. 

 Individual support and advice given to children, young people and families by caseworkers, including CSE, DA and where children go 
missing. 

 
YOS - What difference did it make? 

 Children and young people known to the YOS have been protected from harm. 

 When appropriate, CSC or the police have been given information to support interventions. 

 Parents of children and young people known to the YOS have been encouraged and supported to safeguard their children. 

 There has been a marked reduction in First Time entrants to the Youth Justice System which is a clear protective factor. 

P
age 89



72 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

 The number of young people spending time in custody either on bail or serving a sentence has been reduced 

 
YOS - How have we engaged with children and young people? 

Children and young people are referred to the YOS by either the police or the courts following an episode of criminal behaviour. The role of the 
YOS worker is to ensure that the child, young person and their family understand why they have been referred, how the intervention being 
offered will support them not to re-offend. The YOS assessment (now ASSET PLUS) will also look in detail at all aspects of their life to see where 
support is needed or if referral to another agency is warranted. A recent CSC YOS Feedback survey showed that young people felt they were 
treated with respect, that they were listened to, that they were helped and that they could contact the YOS when necessary. 

 
YOS - What challenges did we face and how did we address them? 

 At the start of the year the YOS contained a high number of Interim staff which resulted in children and young people being worked 
with by more than one caseworker. This has now been addressed with all case workers being permanent staff. 

 The HMIP (HM Inspectorate of Prisons) Inspection in February 2015 highlighted a number of failings in terms of engaging and improving 
the lives of children and young people. During the past year there has been a concerted effort to improve the quality of work so 
children and young people receive a quality service. The mock Inspection carried out by the Youth Justice Board in March 2016 stated 
that substantial progress was being made. 

 The HMIP Inspection also highlighted the need for the YOS to work more effectively with key partners, especially Children’s Social Care. 
During this year specific measures to improve closer working has included the launch of a new protocol, the recruitment of a single 
point of contact for Children Looked After cases and joint attendance at key meetings. 

 

 

7.9 Probation 
Probation - What did we do? 

In June 2014, the former Probation Trusts were divided to form two organisations:  the public sector National Probation Service (NPS), which is a 
Directorate within the National Offender Management Service (NOMS); and 21 Community Rehabilitation Companies (CRCs), of which London CRC is 
one. The NPS is responsible for assessing risk and providing pre-sentence advice and reports to courts, for parole assessment and for the management 
of all high risk offenders. Whereas, the CRCs are responsible for the management of offenders assessed as posing medium and low risk of harm.  
 
At the first point of contact with an offender NPS explore social and family circumstances.  Given their presence in the Courts, NPS is well placed to 
identify children that may be at risk and offenders who pose a direct risk of serious harm to them. 
 

P
age 90



73 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

NPS contributes to the work to tackle Child Sexual Exploitation through working with adults convicted of sexual offences – both while they are in 
prison and on release. NPS delivers evidence based Sex Offender Programmes to reduce the risk of reoffending. In January 2016, they launched the 
Offender Manager’s Guide for working with CSE type cases and this is being disseminated across the organisation. NOMS also published new guidance 
for working with CSE cases in June 2016. 
 
NOMS now has a training programme for practitioners with specific courses relating to safeguarding children.  
 
MOPAC (Mayor’s Office for Police and Crime) and London CRC are jointly funding a female offender service including through the gate, community 
provision and MOPAC innovation testing. This will enable London CRC to deliver an enhanced package of female offender services and interventions in 
a non-threatening female only space. This includes expanding the good practice with Advance Minerva and the Beth centre to cover 10 London 
boroughs. Presently there are 4 potential hub developments, East London, North London, South East London and Sutton.  

 
 
Probation - What challenges did we face and how did we address them? 

NPS aims to improve the quality  of  work  in  relation  to safeguarding and focusing on offenders  as  parents  as  well  (taking a family focus 
approach), including the need to ensure that all NOMS staff undertake mandatory and BSCB training. NPS run monthly LEARN –type events during 
which files are read, case management analysed and individual practice assessed.  These sessions clearly identify areas for improvement each month.  
Designated safeguarding leads have taken part in multi-agency safeguarding audits and cascaded to other managers and staff and NPS has 
implemented family reporting days in local offices to enhance the Think Family approach. 
 
Links between Probation Officers and Child Protection Conferences need to be improved. There are plans to create and maintain exchange 
days/shadowing opportunities between Probation and social workers to raise awareness of the roles and to assist future multi agency working across 
boroughs. 
 
There are still some challenges with implementing the Troubled Families Agenda given competing demands in each borough and the inconsistency 
with delivery. 
 
 There is a need to further enhance working arrangements between NPS and London CRC in light of CRC’s new offender cohort model which came into 
force in October 2015 and current changes with their IT infrastructure. 
 

 

P
age 91



74 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

Section 8 Accounts 
BROMLEY SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN'S BOARD 2015-16       

  
 

£   

INCOME 
  

  

2014-15 Carry forward 
 

45,186   

Bromley CCG 
 

16,614   

Oxleas NHS Trust 
 

16,614   

Bromley Healthcare CIC 
 

16,614   

Kings College Hospital NHS Trust 
 

16,614   

Metropolitan Police  
 

5000   

Mytime Active  
 

694   

Bethlem And Maudsley Hospital School 
 

615   

CAFCASS 
 

550   

National Probation Service 
 

1000   

Community Rehabilitation Company 
 

1000   

London Borough of Bromley 
 

72,611   

Training income (including annual conference) 
 

38,984   

TOTAL INCOME 
 

232,096   

  
  

  

EXPENDITURE 
  

  

SALARIES, including independent Chair and lay members expenses 
 

146,931   

TRAINING COSTS, including e-learning and annual conference 
 

32,660   

OTHER costs, including general office expenses, venue hire 
 

310   

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 
 

179, 901   

  
  

  

Carry forward to 2016-17 
 

+52,195   

        

 
Paying partners were asked to increase their contributions this year as expenditure was forecast to increase significantly.  This was due to an increase in training 
costs from September 2015 as the programme is now delivered almost entirely by external trainers and some changes to salary costs, including the BSCB Manager 
post being paid for by the BSCB for the first time.  With four agencies having their contributions ‘capped’ so that each LSCB in London receives the same 
contribution, it falls to the Local Authority and health partners to contribute more. 

P
age 92



75 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

 
LSCB Chairs across London continue to be disappointed that the Metropolitan Police continues to choose to fund partnership safeguarding in London 45% less than 
all the other large urban Metropolitan Police Forces in England1. Safeguarding is a complicated and demanding partnership arrangement that needs appropriate 
resourcing if it is to be effective. If LSCBs are to be able to carry out their statutory duties they need proper support.   
The guidelines which we adhere to (Working Together 2015) makes it clear that funding arrangements for Safeguarding should not fall disproportionately and 
unfairly on one or more partner to the benefit of others.  In London this burden does fall unfairly on Local Authorities and health agencies because the Metropolitan 
Police does not provide rational or reasonable levels of funding to local safeguarding boards.   
  
The Safeguarding structures in London are due to change in the next two years. When they do there will still be a need to resource whatever arrangements are put 
in place. The Police are a key partner in the future arrangements for safeguarding and we ask that the Metropolitan Police and The Mayor's Office for Policing and 
Crime (MOPAC) increase their funding to a level which is fair to the other partners and which will assist in keeping London’s children safe. 
 
Bromley Safeguarding Children Board remains one of the lowest funded LSCBs in London.  A great deal of effort has gone in to negotiating increased contributions 
this year and this continues to be a priority for the Business Manager going in to 2016-17. 

 
Bromley Safeguarding Children Board accounts for 2015-16 closed in a much healthier position than forecast due to £24k of recharges for Local Authority staff not 
being made at the end of the year (an agreement reached to cover this year only), a large project (website) being delayed to the 2016-17 financial year, and final 
training income being much higher than was predicted at the end of quarter three.  Unfortunately, expenditure will be significantly higher in 2016-17 than it was in 
2015-16.  This is due to all salaries being included (including training administrator and management) and a full-year of external trainer costs.  This means that the 
carry forward will be used completely in 2016-17 and additional contributions will need to be made from April 2017 in order to secure a permanent auditor post for 
the BSCB.  Business cases will also be made to support improved young people’s engagement and data analysis. 
  

                                            
1
 Average of Manchester, Merseyside, West Yorkshire and West Midlands £510; 10,000 population.  Met Police £281: 10,000 population 

P
age 93



76 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

 

Appendix A Board Membership 
 
Independent Chair  Independent  

Head Teacher  Secondary School  

Head Teacher  Primary School  

Director Nursing, Therapies & Quality Assurance Bromley Healthcare  

DCI Borough Police  Metropolitan Police Service  

Director of Quality, Governance and Patient Safety  Bromley CCG  

Director of Nursing & Safeguarding Oxleas NHS Trust  

Care Services Portfolio Holder  Council Member  

Head of Service  National Probation Service (NOMS) 

Assistant Chief Officer  Community Rehabilitation Company Croydon and Bromley  

Head of Service Quality Assurance  London Borough of Bromley  

Lay Members  Independent  

Deputy Director Nursing  King’s College Hospital Trust  

Senior Service Manager  CAFCASS  

Bromley CFVSF Chair  Voluntary Sector  

Assistant Director, Education  London Borough of Bromley  

Head of Service, Youth Offending Service  London Borough of Bromley  

Consultant Public Health Medicine  London Borough of Bromley 

DCI Child Abuse Investigation Team  Metropolitan Police Service  

Head of Nursing and Safeguarding (Designated Nurse)   Bromley CCG  

Designated Dr: Did not attend in 15/16 Bromley CCG  

Assistant Director, Children’s Social Care  London Borough of Bromley  

BSCB Performance & Improvement Officer  London Borough of Bromley  

BSCB Business Manager  London Borough of Bromley  

Director of Nursing  NHS England 

Quality Governance Assurance Manager London Ambulance Service 

 

Board Advisors: 

 
Safeguarding Named Nurse South London & Maudsley Trust 

Assistant Director of Housing Needs London Borough of Bromley 

Assistant Director Legal & Support Services London Borough of Bromley 

P
age 94



77 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

Lead Officer, Education Safeguarding London Borough of Bromley 

Head of Service, Early Years London Borough of Bromley 

Named GP Bromley CCG 

Head of Safeguarding (Named Nurse) Oxleas NHS Trust 

Named Nurse Bromley Healthcare 

Named Dr Bromley Healthcare 

Safeguarding Children’s Nurse Kings College Hospital Trust 

Named Dr Kings College Hospital Trust 

Group Manager Adult Services London Borough of Bromley 

Head of Nursing Kings College Hospital 

Head of Nursing Bromley Healthcare 

Designated Dr Rapid Response Bromley Healthcare 

  

 
 
Appendix B Children and Young People Population in Bromley 
 
In summary:  

 There were 77,800 children and young people aged 0-19 years in Bromley in 2014, this accounts for 24% of the Borough’s population. 
 

 The number of 0 to 4 year olds has gradually been increasing since 2006 and the GLA predicts it will peak in 2017 (21,196) but then decrease 
again to 20,381 in 2031. 
 

 33.2% of school children in Bromley are from a minority ethnic group.  The GLA 2013 Round Ethnic Group Projections estimate that, in 2015, 
the ethnic minority population (all ages) of Bromley is 17.9%, and this is projected to rise to 20% by 2025. The greatest proportional rise is in 
the Black African group.  The North-West of Bromley has the highest proportion of ethnic minority population.   The GLA population 
projections do not include Gypsy Travellers as an ethnic minority, although they do form a distinct ethnic group with particular needs. Bromley 
has a large Gypsy Traveller community concentrated chiefly in the Crays (North-East of the Borough). 

 

 There were 6490 children in Bromley schools with identified Special Educational Needs as at January 2016.   
 

P
age 95



78 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

 There are 1900 children and young people aged 0-25 years with either a Statement of Special Educational Need or an Education, Health and 
Care Plan (EHCP).  
 

 The wards where there are more than the average number of 0-19 year olds for Bromley (24%), are the Cray Valley wards, Mottingham and 
Chislehurst North, Penge and Cator, Bromley Common and Keston, Clock House, and Plaistow and Sundridge.   
 

 
 The number of looked after children (LAC) has remained relatively stable, ranging between 250 and 286 each year over the last seven years.  

 

 There is a relatively low number of unaccompanied asylum seeking children in Bromley although numbers are increasing. 
 

 Indicators of child health in Bromley are mostly rated better than the national average for most aspects. However, family homelessness and 
hospital admissions due to substance misuse in 15-24 year olds are rated as higher than the national average. 
 

P
age 96



79 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

 In 2013, approximately 20 girls aged under 18 conceived for every 1,000 females aged 15-17 years in Bromley. This is similar to the regional 
average. Bromley has a lower teenage conception rate compared with the England average. 
 

The Child Health Profile produced by Public Health England (ChiMat) was published in March 2016 and provides the Board with useful information.  
The Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 2015 contains detailed demographic information for our population and is used by our partner agencies to plan 
services.  
 

Appendix C Glossary 
 
BHC Bromley Healthcare 

BSCB Bromley Safeguarding Children Board 

CAF Common Assessment Framework 

CAIT Child Abuse Investigation Team 

CAMHS Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services 

CSE  Child Sexual Exploitation 

DA Domestic Abuse 

EIFS Early Intervention and Family Support 

FGM Female Genital Mutilation 

IRO Independent Reviewing Officer 

KCH Kings College Hospital 

LinCC Living in Care Council 

MAP Multi Agency Planning (meeting) 

MARAC Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conference 

MASE Multi Agency Sexual Exploitation Panel 

MPS Metropolitan Police Service 

P&P Policy and Procedures 

PDS Policy Development and Scrutiny (London Borough Bromley committee) 

QAPM Quality Assurance and Performance Monitoring 

SENCO Special Educational Needs Co-ordinator 

SGCRG Safeguarding Children’s Reference Group (CAIT) 

P
age 97

http://bromley.mylifeportal.co.uk/uploadedFiles/Bromley/Bromley_Homepage/QuicklinkContent/Health_and_Wellbeing/Publications/Bromley_JSNA_2015.pdf


80 
201611071505180105220020649bscbannualreport201516final 

TTF Tackling Troubled Families 

YOS Youth Offending Service 

 
 
 
 

Essential Information 
 
Date of Publication:   

 

Approval Process: Approved at Care Services Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee 
 
 
 

 
This publication and other information is available on the Bromley Safeguarding Children Board (BSCB) website: 

 

www.bromleysafeguarding.org 
 

Contact: BromleySafeguardingChildrenBoard.BSCB@bromley.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 98

http://www.bromleysafeguarding.org/
mailto:BromleySafeguardingChildrenBoard.BSCB@bromley.gov.uk


1 

 
Briefing CS17058 

 

London Borough of Bromley 
 

PART 1 - PUBLIC 
 
 

Briefing for Care Services 
Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee 

15th November 2016 
 

CONTRACT ACTIVITY 2016/17 
 

Contact Officer: Wendy Norman, Head of Monitoring and Contract Compliance,  
0208 313 4212    E-mail:  wendy.norman@bromley.gov.uk 

Chief Officer: Lesley Moore, Director of Commissioning 

 
 
1. Summary 

1.1 The Contracts Sub-Committee reviews the contract registers for all departments.  The 
appendix to this report sets out all the Care services contracts valued at £50,000 and over 
and updates Members on actions taken on those contracts which are identified as high and 
medium risk. 

1.2 This report covers all contracts in the Care Services Portfolio.  Education contracts are 
reported separately to the Education Select Committee (formerly Education PDS Committee).  

2. THE BRIEFING 

2.1  Appendix 1 is an extract from the Corporate Contracts Register which was reviewed by 
Contracts Sub-Committee on 2nd November 2016.  For ease of reference this appendix has 
been sorted by contract end date.  There are 109 Care Services contracts with a value of 
£50,000 or more listed in this appendix. 

2.2 Commissioners have already considered the actions required as a result of the contracts 
which appear on the register and a programme of work is in place to ensure that pre-tender 
planning and procurement processes will be completed on time and reported as required.  
This work will result in a number of significant contract awards which will be reported to the 
Portfolio Holder and Executive as appropriate. 

2.3 The Contracts Register is used as the basis for Procurement Team and Officer work plans.   

2.4 A traffic light system is used to assess the current status of each project and any projects 
with red status are tracked and reported to fortnightly divisional management team meetings.  
The Corporate Commissioning Board reviews the register quarterly.  Commissioners and 
Procurement and Contract Compliance staff implement recovery plans for projects with red 
status alerts in order to mitigate all risks and to ensure that the department operates within 
financial regulations.   

2.5 22 contracts in Appendix 1 were flagged red (high risk) and 11 were flagged as amber  

Page 99

Information Item 3



2 

(medium risk) when the report was considered by Contracts Sub-Committee.  Actions taken by 
officers to mitigate these risks are outlined in the paragraphs below. 

2.6 Contracts Flagged RED – High Risk (22) 

ECHS No. Contract Title and Narrative 

15 to 20 Older People – Extra Care Housing contracts.   
Tenders were received on 15 August and are being evaluated.  Further 
clarification is being sought on the tenders that have been received.  Update 
given to Commissioning Board on 10 October 2016 and a report is due to go to 
Executive on 30 November 2016. 

23, 56 Adults - Direct Payments Support Services and Payroll Services.   
Procurement exercise has commenced, and is on track for contract award to be 
sought in January 2017, and a contract start of 1 April 2017.   

25, 26, 28 Older People - Day Opportunities Transport.   
An update on Older People Day Transport was given to Commissioning Board 
on 3 October 2016.  Contract ECHS 25 ceased in August.  When ECHS 26 & 28 
expire in March 2017 there are no plans to re-procure them.  Older people’s 
transport will be part of the passenger transport contract from 1 April 2017. 

30 Housing - Move On Packs - Framework for Essential Household Goods.  
Gateway Report approved by PH CS PDS 13 October 2016 (report no. 
CS17039) to establish a new framework to increase the number of providers, to 
commence from 1 April 2017.  The Contract will be awarded in January 2017. 

35 Adults - Supporting People - Learning Disabilities.   
A one year extension is being sought under authority delegated to the Portfolio 
Holder for Care Services during November 2016. 

36, 37, 38 Housing - Block Booking Arrangements.   
A report is going to Care Services PDS and Executive on November 15th and 
30th recommending delegating authority to the Portfolio Holder for Care Services 
to enable Housing to enter into new block contracts with landlords as the 
accommodation becomes available.  This report also sets out updates on 
procurement of temporary accommodation. 

43 Public Health - NHS Health Checks - Point of Care Testing.   
Report on ‘Public Health Commissioning Intentions’ approved by Executive on 
18 October 2016 (report no. CS17046), extending contract by 1 year. 

48 to 51 Domestic Abuse - Bromley Domestic Abuse Support Groups/Safer 
Bromley Van/Advocacy Project/Perpetrator Programme.   
Gateway report on amalgamating domestic abuse services approved by 
Executive 14 September 2016 (report no. CS17029r).  The contract will be 
awarded in January 2017 

54 Children’s Recovery Support Service 1:1 Counselling.  
A report is going to Commissioning Board on October 31st and to Care Services 
PDS on November 15th requesting a 6 month extension of the current contract in 
order that a full specification can be developed for procurement of a new 
contract. 

Page 100



3 

2.7 Contracts Flagged Amber - Medium Risk Contracts (11) 

ECHS No. Contract Title and Narrative 

10 Mental Health - Respite at Home Services.   
Retendering process now underway.  The contract award report will go to Care 
Services PDS on 13th January 2017. 

31, 33, 39, 
42, 45, 85 

Strategic Partnership Core Funding contracts.   
Report on ‘Primary and Secondary Intervention Services’ approved by Executive 
on 30 September 2016 (report no. CS17033), agreeing commissioning strategy. 
New contract to start April 2017. 

32, 69, 93 Public Health - GP SLAs/Family Nurse Partnership/Health Visiting Service.   
Report on ‘Public Health Commissioning Intentions’ approved by Executive on 
18 October 2016 (report no. CS17046), agreeing future arrangements. 

55 General - Independent NHS Complaints Advocacy Service. 
Report on ‘Advocacy Gateway Review’ approved by Executive on 18 October 
2016 (report no. CS17040), agreeing future arrangements. 

 

 

 

 

Page 101



This page is left intentionally blank



Contracts Register for Contracts Sub Committee 2 November 2016
All contracts valued £200k+ are required to be presented at the Commissioning Board.

Contract 

Manager

Head of 

Service/ 

Assistant 

Director/ 

Director 

Responsible

RAG Status 

(Assigned by 

Corporate 

Procurement 

and 

Commissioni

ng Team)

Title
Supplier 

Name

Total Contract 

Value 

Original 

Annual 

Value  

2016/17 

Budget

2016/17 

Projected
Start Date

End Date 

(including 

any 

extensions 

taken)

Duration 

Months 

(core term 

+ any 

extensions 

taken)

Variation/ 

Extension/ 

Waiver 

Option 

Taken?

Variation/ Extension/ 

Waiver Information

Calvin 

Pearson
Sara Bowrey

Adults - Supporting 

People - Floating 

Support Young People

One Housing 

Group Ltd
 £             476,276  £           95,255  £         95,255 £95,255 01-Sep-11 31-Aug-16 60 Extension

1 year extension 

approved by Portfolio 

Holder 22 Apr 2013. 1 

year extension approved 

to 31 Aug 2015 

(Executive 11 Jun 2014). 

Further 1 year extension 

to 31 Aug 2016 approved 

by Executive 24 Apr 2015,

Calvin 

Pearson
Sara Bowrey

Adults - Supporting 

People - 

Accommodation Based 

Support for Young 

People 

One Housing 

Group Ltd
 £          1,571,084  £         343,616 £368,428 £368,428 01-Sep-11 31-Aug-16 60 Extension

1 year extension granted 

to 31 Aug 2015. Further 1 

year extension to 31 Aug 

2016 approved by 

Executive 24 Apr 2015 

(Special Meeting, report 

CS14141) to enable full 

tender exercise.

Debi Christie Jane Bailey RED

Education - Post-16 FE 

SEND Placements to 

Multiple Independent 

Specialist Providers for 

the Academic Year 

2015/16

Various £2,845,012  £      3,064,787  £   3,220,730 

 Dependent on 

review of 

placements 

from Sept 2016 

01-Sep-15 31-Aug-16 12 (annual)

Contract Name and Supplier Name Contract Value
To be completed by 

Finance only
Contract Term and Extension Options

1 of 19

P
age 103



Contracts Register for Contracts Sub Committee 2 November 2016
All contracts valued £200k+ are required to be presented at the Commissioning Board.

Contract 

Manager

Head of 

Service/ 

Assistant 

Director/ 

Director 

Responsible

RAG Status 

(Assigned by 

Corporate 

Procurement 

and 

Commissioni

ng Team)

Title
Supplier 

Name

Total Contract 

Value 

Original 

Annual 

Value  

2016/17 

Budget

2016/17 

Projected
Start Date

End Date 

(including 

any 

extensions 

taken)

Duration 

Months 

(core term 

+ any 

extensions 

taken)

Variation/ 

Extension/ 

Waiver 

Option 

Taken?

Variation/ Extension/ 

Waiver Information

Contract Name and Supplier Name Contract Value
To be completed by 

Finance only
Contract Term and Extension Options

Jenny 

Beasley
Stephen John

Older People - Respite 

at Home Services
Carers Bromley  £             250,408  £         100,204  £       100,204  £        100,204 01-Apr-14 30-Sep-16 30 Extension

1 year extension 

approved to 31 Mar 2016 

(CS PDS 04 Mar 2015); 

extension approved to 30 

Sep 2016 (CS PDS 23 

Sep 2015).

Calvin 

Pearson
Sara Bowrey

Adults - Supporting 

People - Tenancy 

Sustainment Services

Hestia Housing 

& Support
 £             352,880  £         352,880 £302,800 £302,800 01-Oct-15 30-Sep-16 12

Jenny 

Beasley
Stephen John AMBER

Mental Health - Respite 

at Home Services

Bromley & 

Lewisham Mind
 £             363,676  £         140,000  £       140,000 

 £139,984

between 817 

and 824, plus 

new additional 

capacity 

element £21k 

FYE to start 

Dec 2015 

01-Apr-14 31-Mar-17 30 Extension

1 year extension 

approved to 31 Mar 2016 

(CS PDS 04 Mar 2015). 

Variation approved (AD 

29 Jun 2015); extension 

approved to 30 Sep 2016 

(CS PDS 23 Sep 2015).

Colin Lusted Stephen John

Learning Disabilities - 

Supported Living at The 

Glade

MCCH  £          2,686,505  £         593,924  £       335,000 

£335,000

Variable, cost 

on a client by 

client basis

28-Nov-11 27-Nov-16 60 Extension

2 years extension granted 

to 27 Nov 2016 (Director 

07 Apr 2014) 

Colin Lusted Stephen John

Learning Disabilities - 

Supported Living at 

Coppice & Spinney

MCCH  £          3,521,064  £         655,544  £       743,800 

743,800

Variable, cost 

on a client by 

client basis

28-Nov-11 27-Nov-16 60 Extension

2 years extension granted 

to 27 Nov 2016 (Director 

07 Apr 2014)

2 of 19

P
age 104



Contracts Register for Contracts Sub Committee 2 November 2016
All contracts valued £200k+ are required to be presented at the Commissioning Board.

Contract 

Manager

Head of 

Service/ 

Assistant 

Director/ 

Director 

Responsible

RAG Status 

(Assigned by 

Corporate 

Procurement 

and 

Commissioni

ng Team)

Title
Supplier 

Name

Total Contract 

Value 

Original 

Annual 

Value  

2016/17 

Budget

2016/17 

Projected
Start Date

End Date 

(including 

any 

extensions 

taken)

Duration 

Months 

(core term 

+ any 

extensions 

taken)

Variation/ 

Extension/ 

Waiver 

Option 

Taken?

Variation/ Extension/ 

Waiver Information

Contract Name and Supplier Name Contract Value
To be completed by 

Finance only
Contract Term and Extension Options

Jenny 

Beasley
Stephen John

Physical Disability & 

Sensory Impairment - 

Stroke Support Service

Stroke 

Association
 £               76,000  £           38,000  £         38,000 £38,000 01-Dec-14 30-Nov-16 24 Extension

1 year extension 

approved to 30 Nov 2016 

(AD 17 Dec 2015)

Lorna 

Blackwood

Lorna 

Blackwood
RED

Older People - Care 

Services at Sutherland 

Court (Extra Care)

Sanctuary 

Home Care Ltd
 £          2,047,084  £         342,871  £       449,966  £        507,620 20-Aug-12 19-Aug-18 72 Extension

6 months extension 

approved by PH 07 Mar 

2016; 18 months 

extension approved by 

Exec 14 Sep 2016.

Lorna 

Blackwood

Lorna 

Blackwood
RED

Older People - Care 

Services at Regency 

Court (Extra Care)

Sanctuary 

Home Care Ltd
 £          2,469,862  £         405,568  £       564,534  £        607,694 20-Aug-12 19-Aug-18 72 Extension

6 months extension 

approved by PH 07 Mar 

2016; 18 months 

extension approved by 

Exec 14 Sep 2016.

Lorna 

Blackwood

Lorna 

Blackwood
RED

Older People - Housing 

Related Support at 

Regency Court (Extra 

Care)

Hanover 

Housing 

Association

 £             252,747  £           43,837  £         44,366 £44,366 20-Jul-12 19-Jul-18 72 Extension

28/02/2017. 1 year 5 

months extension 

approved by Exec 14 Sep 

2016.

Lorna 

Blackwood

Lorna 

Blackwood
RED

Older People - Housing 

Related Support at 

Sutherland Court (Extra 

Care)

Hanover 

Housing 

Association

 £             221,262  £           37,039  £         37,039 £37,039 20-Nov-12 19-Nov-18 72 Extension

3 month extension 

approved by AD 26 Feb 

2016. 1 year 9 months 

extension approved by 

Exec 14 Sep 2016.

Lorna 

Blackwood

Lorna 

Blackwood
RED

Older People - Housing 

Related Support at 

Crown Meadow Court 

(Extra Care)

Hanover 

Housing 

Association

 £             382,274  £           42,255  £         43,762  £          43,762 25-Mar-11 24-Mar-18 72 Extension

1 year extension 

approved by Exec 14 Sep 

2016.

3 of 19

P
age 105



Contracts Register for Contracts Sub Committee 2 November 2016
All contracts valued £200k+ are required to be presented at the Commissioning Board.

Contract 

Manager

Head of 

Service/ 

Assistant 

Director/ 

Director 

Responsible

RAG Status 

(Assigned by 

Corporate 

Procurement 

and 

Commissioni

ng Team)

Title
Supplier 

Name

Total Contract 

Value 

Original 

Annual 

Value  

2016/17 

Budget

2016/17 

Projected
Start Date

End Date 

(including 

any 

extensions 

taken)

Duration 

Months 

(core term 

+ any 

extensions 

taken)

Variation/ 

Extension/ 

Waiver 

Option 

Taken?

Variation/ Extension/ 

Waiver Information

Contract Name and Supplier Name Contract Value
To be completed by 

Finance only
Contract Term and Extension Options

Lorna 

Blackwood

Lorna 

Blackwood
RED

Older People - Care 

Services at Crown 

Meadow Court (Extra 

Care)

Mears Care Ltd  £          4,242,085  £         444,653  £       611,747  £        638,912 25-Mar-11 24-Mar-18 72 Extension

1 year extension 

approved by Exec 14 Sep 

2016.

Lorna 

Blackwood

Lorna 

Blackwood

Mental Health - 

Provision of Services to 

Carers - Mental Health 

Worker

Carers Bromley  £             104,000  £           26,000  £         26,000 £26,000 01-Apr-13 31-Mar-17 36 Extension

1 year extension 

approved to 31 Mar 2017 

(AD & PH 31 Mar 2016)

Nicky 

Diggins
Kay Weiss

Children's - BCP 

Approved Provider List 

2015/16 for Early 

Intervention and 

Prevention Services

Various 

(Framework)
£389,623 £213,623 £220,380 £176,000 01-Apr-15 31-Mar-17 24 Extension

1 year extension 

approved by AD/PH 31 

Mar 2016

Jenny 

Beasley
Stephen John RED

Adults - Direct 

Payments Support 

Services

Vibrance  £             460,365  £         122,835 £134,140 £134,140 01-Aug-12 31-Mar-17 56 Extension 31-Mar-17

Ian 

Leadbetter
Kay Weiss

Children's - Adoption 

Medicals

Bromley 

Healthcare 

Community 

Interest 

Company Ltd

 £               64,000  £           32,000  £         32,000 £32,000 20-Apr-15 31-Mar-17 23.4

Jenny 

Beasley
Stephen John RED

Older People - Day 

Opportunities Transport

Age Concern 

Penge & 

Anerley

 £               82,758  £           41,379  £         41,379 £41,379 01-Apr-15 31-Mar-17 24 1 year extension available

Jenny 

Beasley
Stephen John RED

Older People - Day 

Opportunities Transport

Alzheimer's 

Society
 £               84,794  £           42,397  £         42,397 £42,397 01-Apr-15 31-Mar-17 24 1 year extension available

4 of 19

P
age 106



Contracts Register for Contracts Sub Committee 2 November 2016
All contracts valued £200k+ are required to be presented at the Commissioning Board.

Contract 

Manager

Head of 

Service/ 

Assistant 

Director/ 

Director 

Responsible

RAG Status 

(Assigned by 

Corporate 

Procurement 

and 

Commissioni

ng Team)

Title
Supplier 

Name

Total Contract 

Value 

Original 

Annual 

Value  

2016/17 

Budget

2016/17 

Projected
Start Date

End Date 

(including 

any 

extensions 

taken)

Duration 

Months 

(core term 

+ any 

extensions 

taken)

Variation/ 

Extension/ 

Waiver 

Option 

Taken?

Variation/ Extension/ 

Waiver Information

Contract Name and Supplier Name Contract Value
To be completed by 

Finance only
Contract Term and Extension Options

David 

Bradshaw
Peter Turner

Education - Sims 

Licences on behalf of 

schools

Capita 

Business 

Services Ltd

 £               90,000  £           56,000  £         44,680  £          44,680 01-Apr-15 31-Mar-17 24 Extension 1 year extension available

Jenny 

Beasley
Stephen John RED

Older People - Day 

Opportunities Transport

Bromley & 

Lewisham Mind
 £             222,000  £         111,000  £       111,000 £111,000 01-Apr-15 31-Mar-17 24 1 year extension available

Mimi Morris-

Cotterill
Nada Lemic

Public Health - Sexual 

Health - GUM Service - 

Advice, Screening and 

Treatment (out of 

borough)

NHS GUM 

Providers
 £             372,000  £         124,000  £       164,920 £164,920 01-Apr-14 31-Mar-17 36 Extension 31/03/2017

Tracey 

Wilson
Sara Bowrey RED

Housing - Move On 

Packs - Framework for 

Essential Household 

Goods Service

Various 

(Framework)
 £             400,000  £         200,000  N/A  £        200,000 01-Apr-15 31-Mar-17 24

2 years extension 

available

Lorna 

Blackwood

Lorna 

Blackwood
AMBER

Strategic Partnership - 

Age Concern Bromley

Age Concern 

Bromley
 £             802,025  £         114,575  £       114,580  £        114,580 01-Apr-10 31-Mar-17 84

3 years extension 

available

Nada Lemic Nada Lemic AMBER
Public Health - GP 

SLAs

General 

Practitioners
 £          1,560,000  £         560,000  £       500,760  £        500,760 01-Apr-14 31-Mar-17 36 Extension

1 year extension 

approved to 31 Mar 2016 

(CS PDS 11 Nov 2014); 

further year extension 

approved to 31 Mar 2017 

(CS PDS 23 Sep 2015)

Lorna 

Blackwood

Lorna 

Blackwood
AMBER

Strategic Partnership - 

Carers Bromley
Carers Bromley  £          2,816,751  £         402,393  £       254,070  £        254,070 01-Apr-10 31-Mar-17 84

3 years extension 

available

5 of 19

P
age 107



Contracts Register for Contracts Sub Committee 2 November 2016
All contracts valued £200k+ are required to be presented at the Commissioning Board.

Contract 

Manager

Head of 

Service/ 

Assistant 

Director/ 

Director 

Responsible

RAG Status 

(Assigned by 

Corporate 

Procurement 

and 

Commissioni

ng Team)

Title
Supplier 

Name

Total Contract 

Value 

Original 

Annual 

Value  

2016/17 

Budget

2016/17 

Projected
Start Date

End Date 

(including 

any 

extensions 

taken)

Duration 

Months 

(core term 

+ any 

extensions 

taken)

Variation/ 

Extension/ 

Waiver 

Option 

Taken?

Variation/ Extension/ 

Waiver Information

Contract Name and Supplier Name Contract Value
To be completed by 

Finance only
Contract Term and Extension Options

Mimi Morris-

Cotterill
Nada Lemic

Public Health - Sexual 

Health - GUM Service - 

Advice, Screening and 

Treatment (in-borough)

King's 

Healthcare 

Partnership

 £          3,900,000  £      1,300,000  £   1,414,870  £     1,414,870 01-Apr-14 31-Mar-17 36 Extension

1 year extension 

approved by CS PDS 11 

Nov 2014; further year 

extension approved to 31 

Mar 2017 (CS PDS 23 

Sep 2015).

Andrew 

Royle
Stephen John RED

Adults - Supporting 

People - Learning 

Disabilities

Fitzroy Support  £             107,414  £         107,414  £       107,410  £        107,410 01-Apr-16 31-Mar-17 12 1 year extension available

Sara Bowrey Sara Bowrey RED

Housing - Block 

Booking Arrangements 

for 182 Anerley Road

Carol Hughes-

Young
 £               64,331  £           42,887  £         42,887  £          42,887 01-Oct-15 31-Mar-17 17

Sara Bowrey Sara Bowrey RED

Housing - Block 

Booking Arrangements 

for 3c Cambridge Road

TLK Property & 

Investments 

Ltd

 £               67,050  £           44,700  £         44,700  £          44,700 01-Oct-15 31-Mar-17 17

Sara Bowrey Sara Bowrey RED

Housing - Block 

Booking Arrangements 

for 15 Lewes Road

JFD 

Developments 

Ltd

 £               98,550  £           65,700  £         65,700  £          65,700 01-Oct-15 31-Mar-17 17

Lorna 

Blackwood

Lorna 

Blackwood
AMBER

Learning Disabilities - 

Bromley Mencap Core 

Funding

Bromley 

Mencap
 £               51,327  £           51,327  £         51,330  £          51,330 01-Apr-16 31-Mar-17 12

Mimi Morris-

Cotterill
Nada Lemic

Public Health - Sexual 

Health - Laboratory Test 

for Chlamydia 

Screening Programme

The Doctors 

Laboratory Ltd
 £               72,000  £           72,000  £         72,000  £          72,000 01-Apr-16 31-Mar-17 12 1 year extension available

6 of 19

P
age 108



Contracts Register for Contracts Sub Committee 2 November 2016
All contracts valued £200k+ are required to be presented at the Commissioning Board.

Contract 

Manager

Head of 

Service/ 

Assistant 

Director/ 

Director 

Responsible

RAG Status 

(Assigned by 

Corporate 

Procurement 

and 

Commissioni

ng Team)

Title
Supplier 

Name

Total Contract 

Value 

Original 

Annual 

Value  

2016/17 

Budget

2016/17 

Projected
Start Date

End Date 

(including 

any 

extensions 

taken)

Duration 

Months 

(core term 

+ any 

extensions 

taken)

Variation/ 

Extension/ 

Waiver 

Option 

Taken?

Variation/ Extension/ 

Waiver Information

Contract Name and Supplier Name Contract Value
To be completed by 

Finance only
Contract Term and Extension Options

Lorna 

Blackwood

Lorna 

Blackwood
AMBER

Strategic Partnership 

Core Funding - Bromley 

CAB

Bromley 

Citizens Advice 

Bureaux Ltd

 £             145,000  £         145,000  £       145,000 £145,000 01-Apr-16 31-Mar-17 12

Gillian 

Fiumicelli
Nada Lemic RED

Public Health - NHS 

Health Checks - Point of 

Care Testing

Alere Ltd  £             100,000  £         100,000  £       100,000  £        100,000 01-Apr-16 31-Mar-17 12

1 year extension 

available, if taken this 

would extend the contract 

to 31/03/18

Lorna 

Blackwood

Lorna 

Blackwood
AMBER

Strategic Partnership 

Core Funding - Bromley 

& Lewisham Mind

Bromley & 

Lewisham Mind 

Ltd

 £               49,830  £           49,830  £         49,830  £          49,830 01-Apr-16 31-Mar-17 12

Eamon 

Brennan
Kay Weiss

Children's - Appropriate 

Adult service at Police 

Stations

Appropriate 

Adults Service 

Ltd

£50,000 £25,000 £25,000 £25,000 01-Apr-15 31-Mar-17 24 Extension

1 year extension 

approved by AD 31 Mar 

2016

Hilary 

Rogers
Kay Weiss

Children's - Group 

Based Short Break 

Provision

Family Link £80,395 £33,850 £33,850 £33,850 01-Jun-15 31-Mar-17 22 Extension

1 year extension 

approved by AD 18 Mar 

2016

Aileen 

Stamate
Anne Watts RED

Domestic Abuse - 

Bromley Domestic 

Abuse Support Groups

Bromley 

Women's Aid
£92,212 £16,579 £23,629 £23,629 01-Aug-13 31-Mar-17 44

Aileen 

Stamate
Anne Watts RED

Domestic Abuse - Safer 

Bromley Van
Victim Support £102,413 £25,257 £25,713 £25,713 01-Apr-13 31-Mar-17 48

Aileen 

Stamate
Anne Watts RED

Domestic Abuse - 

Advocacy Project
Victim Support £349,285 £116,461 £116,439 £116,439 01-Apr-14 31-Mar-17 36

7 of 19

P
age 109



Contracts Register for Contracts Sub Committee 2 November 2016
All contracts valued £200k+ are required to be presented at the Commissioning Board.

Contract 

Manager

Head of 

Service/ 

Assistant 

Director/ 

Director 

Responsible

RAG Status 

(Assigned by 

Corporate 

Procurement 

and 

Commissioni

ng Team)

Title
Supplier 

Name

Total Contract 

Value 

Original 

Annual 

Value  

2016/17 

Budget

2016/17 

Projected
Start Date

End Date 

(including 

any 

extensions 

taken)

Duration 

Months 

(core term 

+ any 

extensions 

taken)

Variation/ 

Extension/ 

Waiver 

Option 

Taken?

Variation/ Extension/ 

Waiver Information

Contract Name and Supplier Name Contract Value
To be completed by 

Finance only
Contract Term and Extension Options

Aileen 

Stamate
Anne Watts RED

Domestic Abuse - 

Perpetrator Programme

Domestic 

Violence 

Intervention 

Project

£85,516 £28,515 £28,507 £28,507 01-Apr-14 31-Mar-17 36

Aileen 

Stamate
Anne Watts

Domestic Abuse - 

Schools Programme, 

Volunteer Manager and 

Resettlement Officer

Bromley 

Women's Aid
 £               86,570  £           60,610  £         60,610  £          60,610 01-Jun-15 31-Mar-17 21

Ian 

Leadbetter
Kay Weiss RED

Children's - Support 

Services to Children at 

Risk of Sexual 

Exploitation

Barnardo's  £               55,000  £           55,000  £         55,000  £          55,000 01-Jul-16 31-Mar-17 9

Sarah 

Wembourne

Lorna 

Blackwood
AMBER

General - Independent 

NHS Complaints 

Advocacy Service

VoiceAbility 

Advocacy
£152,237 £37,685 £37,685

£36,000

Lower usage
01-Apr-13 31-Mar-17 48 Extension

1 year extension granted 

to 31 Mar 2016 (CS PDS 

report CS14105) 04 Dec 

2014; further year 

extension approved to 31 

Mar 2017 (PH 07 Dec 

2015).

Jenny 

Beasley
Stephen John RED

Adults - Direct 

Payments Payroll 

Services

ECDP  £             137,523  £           35,000 £41,000 £41,000 09-Apr-13 08-Apr-17 48 Extension

1 year extension granted 

(Director 05 Jan 2015); 1 

further year extension 

approved (AD/PH 16 Nov 

2015).

Stephen 

John

Lorna 

Blackwood

Older People - Day 

Opportunities 

Innovation & 

Development Grant

Age Concern 

Bromley t/a 

Age UK 

Bromley & 

Greenwich

 £               53,642  £           26,821  £         26,821  £          26,821 01-May-15 30-Apr-17 24

8 of 19

P
age 110



Contracts Register for Contracts Sub Committee 2 November 2016
All contracts valued £200k+ are required to be presented at the Commissioning Board.

Contract 

Manager

Head of 

Service/ 

Assistant 

Director/ 

Director 

Responsible

RAG Status 

(Assigned by 

Corporate 

Procurement 

and 

Commissioni

ng Team)

Title
Supplier 

Name

Total Contract 

Value 

Original 

Annual 

Value  

2016/17 

Budget

2016/17 

Projected
Start Date

End Date 

(including 

any 

extensions 

taken)

Duration 

Months 

(core term 

+ any 

extensions 

taken)

Variation/ 

Extension/ 

Waiver 

Option 

Taken?

Variation/ Extension/ 

Waiver Information

Contract Name and Supplier Name Contract Value
To be completed by 

Finance only
Contract Term and Extension Options

Antoinette 

Thorne

Charles 

Obazuaye

Training - Step Up To 

Social Work Project

Royal Holloway 

(London 

University)

 £             282,282  £         153,972  £       157,311  £        157,311 29-Jun-15 30-Apr-17 22
22 months extension 

available

Colin Lusted Stephen John

Learning Disabilities - 

Supported Living at 109 

Masons Hill

MCCH £3,269,206  £         684,458  £       406,800 

£406,800

Variable, cost 

on a client by 

client basis

23-Apr-12 30-Jun-17 63 Extension

2 years extension granted 

to 22 Apr 2017 (Director 

07 Apr 2014). 10 week 

extension approved to 30 

Jun 2017.

Andrew 

Royle
Stephen John

Learning Disabilities - 

Supported Living at 

Century Way

Avenues 

London
 £             742,708  £         181,601  £       210,500  £        210,500 01-Oct-13 30-Jun-17 48 Extension

1 year extension 

approved by PH 07 Mar 

2016; 1 further year 

available

Andrew 

Royle
Stephen John

Learning Disabilities - 

Supported Living at 111 

Masons Hill

Care 

Management 

Group Ltd

 £          1,038,518  £         223,319  £       368,900  £        368,900 01-Jul-13 30-Jun-17 48 Extension
30 Jun 2017  + 1 further 

year extension available

Andrew 

Royle
Stephen John

Learning Disabilities - 

Supported Living at 

Padua Road

Outward 

Housing
 £             706,686  £         235,562  £       235,560  £        235,560 01-Jul-13 30-Jun-17 48 Extension

30 Jun 2017  + 1 further 

year extension available

Andrew 

Royle
Stephen John

Learning Disabilities - 

Supported Living at 

Dunstonian Court

Sunnyside 

Domiciliary 

Support 

Services Ltd

 £             140,000  £         140,000  £       140,000  £        140,000 01-Jul-16 30-Jun-17 12

Lorna 

Blackwood

Lorna 

Blackwood

Adults - Integrated 

Community Equipment 

Service (ICES)

Medequip 

Assistive 

Technology Ltd

 £          6,870,000  £      1,490,000  £   1,718,440 

Greater than 

budget 

dependent on 

usage

02-Jul-12 01-Jul-17 60 Extension
2 years extension granted 

(Exec 26 Nov 2014)

9 of 19

P
age 111



Contracts Register for Contracts Sub Committee 2 November 2016
All contracts valued £200k+ are required to be presented at the Commissioning Board.

Contract 

Manager

Head of 

Service/ 

Assistant 

Director/ 

Director 

Responsible

RAG Status 

(Assigned by 

Corporate 

Procurement 

and 

Commissioni

ng Team)

Title
Supplier 

Name

Total Contract 

Value 

Original 

Annual 

Value  

2016/17 

Budget

2016/17 

Projected
Start Date

End Date 

(including 

any 

extensions 

taken)

Duration 

Months 

(core term 

+ any 

extensions 

taken)

Variation/ 

Extension/ 

Waiver 

Option 

Taken?

Variation/ Extension/ 

Waiver Information

Contract Name and Supplier Name Contract Value
To be completed by 

Finance only
Contract Term and Extension Options

Colin Lusted Stephen John

Learning Disabilities - 

Travel Training for 

Young People with 

Disabilities

Bexley 

Accessible 

Transport 

Scheme

 £             265,410  £           88,470  £       185,880  £        185,880 01-Sep-14 31-Aug-17 36 Extension

1 year extension 

approved by AD 15 Jul 

2015; 1 year extension 

approved by AD 22 Mar 

2016.

Jenny 

Selway
Nada Lemic AMBER

Public Health - Family 

Nurse Partnership

Bromley 

Healthcare 

Community 

Interest 

Company Ltd

£360,000 £180,000 £180,000 £180,000 01-Oct-15 30-Sep-17 24 Extension

1 year extension to 31 

Mar 2017 approved by CS 

PDS 10 Mar 2016 (report 

no. CS16021). Further 6 

month extension 

approved by CS PDS 28 

Jun 2016 (report no. 

CS17019).

Jenny 

Selway
Nada Lemic

Public Health - National 

Child Measurement 

(NCMP) 

Bromley 

Healthcare 

Community 

Interest 

Company Ltd

 £          1,686,220  £         234,000 £308,580 £301,107 01-Apr-11 30-Sep-17 78 Extension

1 year extension 

approved to 31 Mar 2017 

(CS PDS 23 Sep 2015); 

Bromley Healthcare 

contract extended to 31 

March 2017. 6 month 

extension approved by 

CS PDS 10 Mar 2016 

(CS16025)

Mimi Morris-

Cotterill
Nada Lemic

Public Health - Sexual 

Health - Health 

Improvement

Bromley 

Healthcare 

Community 

Interest 

Company Ltd

 £3,500,000 

estimated (part of 

Bromley 

Healthcare Block 

Contract) 

 £         647,000 £404,230 £394,456 01-Apr-11 30-Sep-17 78 Extension

6 month extension 

approved by CS PDS 10 

Mar 2016 (CS16008)

10 of 19

P
age 112



Contracts Register for Contracts Sub Committee 2 November 2016
All contracts valued £200k+ are required to be presented at the Commissioning Board.

Contract 

Manager

Head of 

Service/ 

Assistant 

Director/ 

Director 

Responsible

RAG Status 

(Assigned by 

Corporate 

Procurement 

and 

Commissioni

ng Team)

Title
Supplier 

Name

Total Contract 

Value 

Original 

Annual 

Value  

2016/17 

Budget

2016/17 

Projected
Start Date

End Date 

(including 

any 

extensions 

taken)

Duration 

Months 

(core term 

+ any 

extensions 

taken)

Variation/ 

Extension/ 

Waiver 

Option 

Taken?

Variation/ Extension/ 

Waiver Information

Contract Name and Supplier Name Contract Value
To be completed by 

Finance only
Contract Term and Extension Options

Mimi Morris-

Cotterill
Nada Lemic

Public Health - Sexual 

Health - Contraception 

& Reproductive Health

Bromley 

Healthcare 

Community 

Interest 

Company Ltd

 £4,500,000 

estimated (part of 

Bromley 

Healthcare Block 

Contract) 

 £         684,000  £       739,320  £        721,455 01-Apr-11 30-Sep-17 78 Extension

6 month extension 

approved by CS PDS 10 

Mar 2016 (CS16008)

Andrew 

Royle
Stephen John

Learning Disabilities - 

Supported Living at 44 

Bromley Road

Outward 

Housing
 £             558,148  £         139,716  £       139,716 

£139,716

Variable, cost 

on a client by 

client basis

01-Oct-13 30-Sep-17 48 Extension

1 year extension 

approved to 30 Sep 2017 

(CS PDS 21 Jan 2015) - 1 

further year available

Lorna 

Blackwood

Lorna 

Blackwood
AMBER

Strategic Partnership 

Core Funding - 

Community Links 

Bromley

Community 

Links - Bromley
 £             465,813  £         155,271  £       155,271 

£155,271

Variable, cost 

on a client by 

client basis

01-Oct-14 30-Sep-17 36 2 years available

Andrew 

Royle
Stephen John

Learning Disabilities - 

Supported Living at 15 

Brosse Way

Avenues 

London
 £             629,497  £         163,499  £       163,499 

£163,499

Variable, cost 

on a client by 

client basis

01-Oct-13 30-Sep-17 48 Extension

1 year extension 

approved to 30 Sep 2017 

(CS PDS 21 Jan 2015) - 1 

further year available

Andrew 

Royle
Stephen John

Learning Disabilities - 

Supported Living at 

Johnson Court

Sanctuary 

Home Care Ltd
 £             563,095  £         112,619  £       112,619 

£112,619

Variable on 

client by client 

basis

01-Oct-12 30-Sep-17 60
2 years extension 

available

Wendy 

Norman
Lesley Moore

Adults - Supporting 

People - Tenancy 

Support Services for 

Homeless People

Evolve Housing 

+ Support
 £             593,241  £         197,747  £       197,747 £197,747 01-Oct-14 30-Sep-17 36

2 years extension 

available

11 of 19

P
age 113



Contracts Register for Contracts Sub Committee 2 November 2016
All contracts valued £200k+ are required to be presented at the Commissioning Board.

Contract 

Manager

Head of 

Service/ 

Assistant 

Director/ 

Director 

Responsible

RAG Status 

(Assigned by 

Corporate 

Procurement 

and 

Commissioni

ng Team)

Title
Supplier 

Name

Total Contract 

Value 

Original 

Annual 

Value  

2016/17 

Budget

2016/17 

Projected
Start Date

End Date 

(including 

any 

extensions 

taken)

Duration 

Months 

(core term 

+ any 

extensions 

taken)

Variation/ 

Extension/ 

Waiver 

Option 

Taken?

Variation/ Extension/ 

Waiver Information

Contract Name and Supplier Name Contract Value
To be completed by 

Finance only
Contract Term and Extension Options

Yinka 

Adetunji
Stephen John

Mental Health - Flexible 

Support

Community 

Options
 £          2,220,120  £         465,452  £       465,452 

£465,452

Variable on 

client by client 

basis

01-Oct-12 30-Sep-17 60 Extension
2 years extension 

approved 17 Aug 2015.

Jenny 

Selway
Nada Lemic AMBER

Public Health - Health 

Visiting Service

Bromley 

Healthcare 

Community 

Interest 

Company Ltd

£5,700,000 £3,800,000 £3,622,000 £3,454,000 01-Oct-15 30-Sep-17 24 Extension

6 month extension 

approved by CS PDS 10 

Mar 2016 (CS16025)

Agnes 

Marossy
Nada Lemic

Public Health - Young 

Persons Substance 

Misuse Service

Change Grow 

Live (CGL)
 £             330,380  £         165,190  £       165,190  £        165,190 01-Dec-15 30-Nov-17 24 1 year extension available

Hilary 

Rogers
Kay Weiss

Mental Health - 

Community Well-Being 

Service For Children 

And Young People

Bromley Y  £          1,345,983  £         448,661  £       445,570  £        441,161 01-Dec-14 30-Nov-17 36
2 years extension 

available

Agnes 

Marossy
Nada Lemic

Public Health - Adults 

Substance Misuse 

Service

Change Grow 

Live (CGL)

 £          2,432,980  £      1,216,490  £   1,216,490  £     1,216,490 01-Dec-15 30-Nov-17 #N/A 1 year extension available

Stephen 

John

Lorna 

Blackwood

Building Management - 

Lewis House

Bromley 

Experts By 

Experience CIC

£63,800 £31,900 £31,900 £31,900 01-Jan-16 31-Dec-17 24

Colin Lusted Stephen John

Learning Disabilities - 

Supported Living in 5 

LD properties 

Avenues 

London
 £          4,101,000  £      1,367,000  £   1,367,000 

£1,367,000

Variable, cost 

on a client by 

client basis

12-Jan-15 11-Jan-18 36
2 years extension 

available

12 of 19

P
age 114



Contracts Register for Contracts Sub Committee 2 November 2016
All contracts valued £200k+ are required to be presented at the Commissioning Board.

Contract 

Manager

Head of 

Service/ 

Assistant 

Director/ 

Director 

Responsible

RAG Status 

(Assigned by 

Corporate 

Procurement 

and 

Commissioni

ng Team)

Title
Supplier 

Name

Total Contract 

Value 

Original 

Annual 

Value  

2016/17 

Budget

2016/17 

Projected
Start Date

End Date 

(including 

any 

extensions 

taken)

Duration 

Months 

(core term 

+ any 

extensions 

taken)

Variation/ 

Extension/ 

Waiver 

Option 

Taken?

Variation/ Extension/ 

Waiver Information

Contract Name and Supplier Name Contract Value
To be completed by 

Finance only
Contract Term and Extension Options

Wendy 

Norman
Lesley Moore

Older People - Nursing 

Beds (PF & EMI)
Mission Care £10,571,816  £      2,142,954  £   2,093,610  £     2,093,610 02-Jan-13 31-Jan-18 60 Extension

1 year extension 

approved to 31 Jan 2017 

(AD 12 Oct 2015); 1 

further year extension 

approved by CS PDS 28 

Jun 2016 (report no. 

CS17012).

Nada Lemic Nada Lemic

Public Health - 

Framework for Various 

Public Health Services

Various 

(Framework)
 £          3,200,000  £         800,000 

 Not allocated 

by contractor 

 Not allocated 

by contractor 
03-Mar-14 02-Mar-18 48 Extension

2 year extension to 

framework approved by 

Care Services PDS 

(report no. CS15925) 23 

Sep 2015.

Stephen 

John

Lorna 

Blackwood

Older People - Day 

Opportunity Services 

For Personal Budget 

Clients

Biggin Hill 

Community 

Care 

Association

 £               90,360  £           18,072 
Dependent on 

usage

Dependent on 

usage. Q1 = 

3,983

01-Apr-13 31-Mar-18 60

Stephen 

John

Lorna 

Blackwood

Older People - Day 

Opportunity Services 

For Personal Budget 

Clients

Age Concern 

Bromley t/a 

Age UK 

Bromley & 

Greenwich

 £             205,360  £           41,072  £         30,000  £          30,000 01-Apr-13 31-Mar-18 60

Hilary 

Rogers

Lorna 

Blackwood

Children's - Network 

Services, inc. Child-

Minding, Buddying and 

a Sitting Service for 

Children and Young 

People with Learning 

and/or Physical 

Disabilities

Bromley 

Mencap
 £             240,000  £         169,133  £         99,190  £          99,190 01-Apr-15 31-Mar-18 36

13 of 19

P
age 115



Contracts Register for Contracts Sub Committee 2 November 2016
All contracts valued £200k+ are required to be presented at the Commissioning Board.

Contract 

Manager

Head of 

Service/ 

Assistant 

Director/ 

Director 

Responsible

RAG Status 

(Assigned by 

Corporate 

Procurement 

and 

Commissioni

ng Team)

Title
Supplier 

Name

Total Contract 

Value 

Original 

Annual 

Value  

2016/17 

Budget

2016/17 

Projected
Start Date

End Date 

(including 

any 

extensions 

taken)

Duration 

Months 

(core term 

+ any 

extensions 

taken)

Variation/ 

Extension/ 

Waiver 

Option 

Taken?

Variation/ Extension/ 

Waiver Information

Contract Name and Supplier Name Contract Value
To be completed by 

Finance only
Contract Term and Extension Options

Lorna 

Blackwood

Lorna 

Blackwood

Mental Health - General 

Advocacy and 

Independent Mental 

Health Advocacy 

Services

Rethink Mental 

Illness
 £             266,760  £           88,920  £       123,000  £        123,000 01-Apr-15 31-Mar-18 36

2 years extension 

available (1 year + 1 year)

Lorna 

Blackwood

Lorna 

Blackwood

Adults - Healthwatch 

Bromley

Healthwatch 

Bromley
£325,184 £126,384 £113,150 £113,150 01-Apr-15 31-Mar-18 36

Stephen 

John

Lorna 

Blackwood

Older People - Day 

Opportunity Services 

For Personal Budget 

Clients

Alzheimer's 

Society
 £             583,870  £         116,774 

 Dependent on 

usage 

 Dependent on 

usage. Q1 = 

11,252 

01-Apr-13 31-Mar-18 60

Stephen 

John

Lorna 

Blackwood

Older People - Day 

Opportunity Services 

For Personal Budget 

Clients

Age Concern 

Penge & 

Anerley

 £             595,540  £         119,108 
 Dependent on 

usage 

 Dependent on 

usage. Q1 = 

24,653 

01-Apr-13 31-Mar-18 60

Stephen 

John

Lorna 

Blackwood

Older People - Day 

Opportunity Services 

For Personal Budget 

Clients

Age Concern 

Orpington and 

District

 £             611,970  £         122,394 
 Dependent on 

usage 

 Dependent on 

usage. Q1 = 

28,952 

01-Apr-13 31-Mar-18 60

Stephen 

John

Lorna 

Blackwood

Older People - Day 

Opportunity Services 

For Personal Budget 

Clients

Age Concern 

Ravensbourne
 £             800,900  £         160,180 

 Dependent on 

usage 

 Dependent on 

usage. Q1 = 

30,410 

01-Apr-13 31-Mar-18 60

Stephen 

John

Lorna 

Blackwood

Older People - Day 

Opportunity Services 

For Personal Budget 

Clients

Bromley & 

Lewisham Mind
 £             872,105  £         174,421 

 Dependent on 

usage 

 Dependent on 

usage. Q1 = 

33,347 

01-Apr-13 31-Mar-18 60

14 of 19

P
age 116



Contracts Register for Contracts Sub Committee 2 November 2016
All contracts valued £200k+ are required to be presented at the Commissioning Board.

Contract 

Manager

Head of 

Service/ 

Assistant 

Director/ 

Director 

Responsible

RAG Status 

(Assigned by 

Corporate 

Procurement 

and 

Commissioni

ng Team)

Title
Supplier 

Name

Total Contract 

Value 

Original 

Annual 

Value  

2016/17 

Budget

2016/17 

Projected
Start Date

End Date 

(including 

any 

extensions 

taken)

Duration 

Months 

(core term 

+ any 

extensions 

taken)

Variation/ 

Extension/ 

Waiver 

Option 

Taken?

Variation/ Extension/ 

Waiver Information

Contract Name and Supplier Name Contract Value
To be completed by 

Finance only
Contract Term and Extension Options

Susan 

Phillips
Kay Weiss

Children's - Family 

Group Conference

Daybreak 

Family Group 

Conferences

 £             149,934  £           74,967  £         74,967 

 Dependent on 

usage. Q1 = 

18,742 

01-Apr-16 31-Mar-18 24 1 year extension available

Sara Bowrey Sara Bowrey

IT System - Anite 

Housing Annual 

Maintenance

Northgate 

Information 

Solutions Ltd

 £               87,084  £           43,502  £         43,502  £          43,502 01-Apr-16 31-Mar-18 24

Antoinette 

Thorne

Charles 

Obazuaye

Training - Signs of 

Safety Training

EJH Training 

Services Ltd & 

JKB Consulting 

& Management 

Ltd

£51,450 £31,450 £61,250 £10,000 12-Jun-15 31-Mar-18 33 Variation
Variation approved by AD 

21 Mar 2016

Lorna 

Blackwood

Lorna 

Blackwood

Older People - 

Dementia Post-

Diagnosis Support 

Services

Bromley & 

Lewisham Mind
£902,056 £451,028 £493,000 £451,028 01-Jul-16 30-Jun-18 24

2 years extension 

available (1 year + 1 year)

Stephen 

John

Lorna 

Blackwood

Physical Disability and 

Sensory Impairment - 

Kent Association for the 

Blind Services for the 

Blind

Kent 

Association for 

the Blind

 £             200,940  £         100,470  £       100,470  £        100,470 01-Jul-16 30-Jun-18 24 1 year extension available

Ian 

Leadbetter
Kay Weiss

Children's - 

Independent Visitor 

Service for Children 

Looked After

Asphaleia Ltd  £               52,870  £           26,435  £         26,435  £          26,435 01-Aug-16 31-Jul-18 24
2 years extension 

available (1 year + 1 year)

15 of 19

P
age 117



Contracts Register for Contracts Sub Committee 2 November 2016
All contracts valued £200k+ are required to be presented at the Commissioning Board.

Contract 

Manager

Head of 

Service/ 

Assistant 

Director/ 

Director 

Responsible

RAG Status 

(Assigned by 

Corporate 

Procurement 

and 

Commissioni

ng Team)

Title
Supplier 

Name

Total Contract 

Value 

Original 

Annual 

Value  

2016/17 

Budget

2016/17 

Projected
Start Date

End Date 

(including 

any 

extensions 

taken)

Duration 

Months 

(core term 

+ any 

extensions 

taken)

Variation/ 

Extension/ 

Waiver 

Option 

Taken?

Variation/ Extension/ 

Waiver Information

Contract Name and Supplier Name Contract Value
To be completed by 

Finance only
Contract Term and Extension Options

Lorna 

Blackwood

Lorna 

Blackwood

Older People/Learning 

Disabilities/Physical 

Disabilities - 

Independent Advocacy 

Service for older people 

and those with a 

learning and/or physical 

disability

Rethink Mental 

Illness
 £             133,440  £           44,480  £         52,000  £          52,000 01-Oct-15 30-Sep-18 36

2 years extension 

available (1 year + 1 year)

Catherine 

Pimm
Colin Brand

Education - 

Consultancy Services - 

Multi-Disciplinary 

Services for the 

Reconfiguration and 

extension of SEN 

Provision at Tubbenden 

Primary School

ig9 Ltd  £               65,875  £           65,875  £         65,875  £          65,875 31-Jul-16 30-Sep-18 25

Wendy 

Norman
Lesley Moore

Adults - Tenancy 

Sustainment for Women 

in Refuges

Bromley 

Women's Aid
 £             314,466  £         104,822  £       106,000  £        106,000 01-Jan-16 31-Dec-18 36

2 years extension 

available

Angela 

Buchanan
Anne Watts

Software Licence - 

Social Care Information 

System (Care First)

OLM Systems 

Ltd
 £          2,324,117  £         169,033  £       180,370  £        175,523 06-May-06 31-Mar-19 156 Extension 31 Mar 2019

Angela 

Buchanan
Anne Watts

Website Development - 

MyLife Web Portal

OLM Systems 

Ltd
 £             140,720  £           46,906  £         36,490  £          36,490 01-Apr-16 31-Mar-19 36

Sara Bowrey Sara Bowrey

Housing - Temporary 

Accommodation 

Service

Orchard & 

Shipman PLC
 £          4,687,260  £      1,562,420  £   1,562,420  £     1,562,420 01-Apr-16 31-Mar-19 36

2 years extension 

available

16 of 19

P
age 118



Contracts Register for Contracts Sub Committee 2 November 2016
All contracts valued £200k+ are required to be presented at the Commissioning Board.

Contract 

Manager

Head of 

Service/ 

Assistant 

Director/ 

Director 

Responsible

RAG Status 

(Assigned by 

Corporate 

Procurement 

and 

Commissioni

ng Team)

Title
Supplier 

Name

Total Contract 

Value 

Original 

Annual 

Value  

2016/17 

Budget

2016/17 

Projected
Start Date

End Date 

(including 

any 

extensions 

taken)

Duration 

Months 

(core term 

+ any 

extensions 

taken)

Variation/ 

Extension/ 

Waiver 

Option 

Taken?

Variation/ Extension/ 

Waiver Information

Contract Name and Supplier Name Contract Value
To be completed by 

Finance only
Contract Term and Extension Options

Colin Lusted Stephen John

Learning Disabilities - 

Supported Living 

Scheme 1 (3 

Properties)

Certitude 

Support
 £          2,389,963  £         797,654  £       797,654  £        797,654 25-Apr-16 24-Apr-19 36

2 years extension 

available

Jenny 

Beasley
Stephen John

Domiciliary Care 

Services - Individual 

Client Contract

Helping Hands 

Homecare
£274,102  £           45,500  £         46,602 

 Dependent on 

usage - Q1 = 

11,329 

27-Aug-12 26-Aug-19 84 Extension

2 years extension 

approved by CS PDS 28 

Jun 2016; 2 further years 

available.

Jenny 

Beasley
Stephen John

Domiciliary Care 

Services - Individual 

Client Contract

Sweet Tree 

Home Care 

Services Ltd

£384,649  £           69,212  £         38,589 

 Dependent on 

usage - Q1 = 

696 

27-Aug-12 26-Aug-19 84 Extension

2 years extension 

approved by CS PDS 28 

Jun 2016; 2 further years 

available.

Jenny 

Beasley
Stephen John

Domiciliary Care 

Services - Individual 

Client Contract

Heart of the 

South
£487,149  £           81,333  £         81,333 

 Dependent on 

usage - Q1 = 

23,502 

27-Aug-12 26-Aug-19 84 Extension

2 years extension 

approved by CS PDS 28 

Jun 2016; 2 further years 

available.

Jenny 

Beasley
Stephen John

Domiciliary Care 

Services - Spot 

Contract

Daret 

Healthcare 

(UK) Ltd

£960,731  £         167,479  £       123,336 

 Dependent on 

usage - Q1 = 

34,508 

27-Aug-12 26-Aug-19 84 Extension

2 years extension 

approved by CS PDS 28 

Jun 2016; 2 further years 

available.

Jenny 

Beasley
Stephen John

Domiciliary Care 

Services - Spot 

Contract

Mackley Home 

Care Ltd
£1,078,416  £         189,325  £       131,791 

 Dependent on 

usage - Q1 = 

37,275 

27-Aug-12 26-Aug-19 84 Extension

2 years extension 

approved by CS PDS 28 

Jun 2016; 2 further years 

available.

17 of 19

P
age 119



Contracts Register for Contracts Sub Committee 2 November 2016
All contracts valued £200k+ are required to be presented at the Commissioning Board.

Contract 

Manager

Head of 

Service/ 

Assistant 

Director/ 

Director 

Responsible

RAG Status 

(Assigned by 

Corporate 

Procurement 

and 

Commissioni

ng Team)

Title
Supplier 

Name

Total Contract 

Value 

Original 

Annual 

Value  

2016/17 

Budget

2016/17 

Projected
Start Date

End Date 

(including 

any 

extensions 

taken)

Duration 

Months 

(core term 

+ any 

extensions 

taken)

Variation/ 

Extension/ 

Waiver 

Option 

Taken?

Variation/ Extension/ 

Waiver Information

Contract Name and Supplier Name Contract Value
To be completed by 

Finance only
Contract Term and Extension Options

Jenny 

Beasley
Stephen John

Domiciliary Care 

Services - Spot 

Contract

Always Caring 

Bromley Ltd
£1,517,112  £         252,852  £       252,852 

 Dependent on 

usage - Q1 = 

15,967 

27-Aug-12 26-Aug-19 84 Extension

2 years extension 

approved by CS PDS 28 

Jun 2016; 2 further years 

available.

Jenny 

Beasley
Stephen John

Domiciliary Care 

Services - Spot 

Contract

Carewatch 

Care Services 

Ltd t/a 

Carewatch 

Bromley

£4,233,332  £         701,700  £       724,832 

 Dependent on 

usage - Q1 = 

137,868 

27-Aug-12 26-Aug-19 84 Extension

2 years extension 

approved by CS PDS 28 

Jun 2016; 2 further years 

available.

Jenny 

Beasley
Stephen John

Domiciliary Care 

Services Framework

Various 

(Framework)
£46,121,961  £    10,523,980  £   9,468,690 

Dependent on 

usage
27-Aug-12 26-Aug-19 84 Extension

2 years extension 

approved by CS PDS 28 

Jun 2016; 2 further years 

available.

Antoinette 

Thorne

Charles 

Obazuaye

Training - Workforce 

Development Courses 

for Social Care Staff

Various  £             280,000  £           70,000  £         70,000  £          70,000 01-Apr-16 31-Mar-20 48

Mary Cava

ICT - Dynamic 

Purchasing System for 

SEN Placements

London 

Borough of 

Croydon

 £               60,000  £           15,000  £         15,000  £          15,000 01-Aug-16 31-Jul-20 48

Lorna 

Blackwood

Lorna 

Blackwood

Learning Disabilities - 

Adult Social Care 

Services

Certitude 

Support
 £        19,000,000  £      3,700,000  £   3,865,550  £     3,865,550 01-Oct-15 30-Sep-20 60

2 years extension 

available

18 of 19

P
age 120



Contracts Register for Contracts Sub Committee 2 November 2016
All contracts valued £200k+ are required to be presented at the Commissioning Board.

Contract 

Manager

Head of 

Service/ 

Assistant 

Director/ 

Director 

Responsible

RAG Status 

(Assigned by 

Corporate 

Procurement 

and 

Commissioni

ng Team)

Title
Supplier 

Name

Total Contract 

Value 

Original 

Annual 

Value  

2016/17 

Budget

2016/17 

Projected
Start Date

End Date 

(including 

any 

extensions 

taken)

Duration 

Months 

(core term 

+ any 

extensions 

taken)

Variation/ 

Extension/ 

Waiver 

Option 

Taken?

Variation/ Extension/ 

Waiver Information

Contract Name and Supplier Name Contract Value
To be completed by 

Finance only
Contract Term and Extension Options

Lorna 

Blackwood

Lorna 

Blackwood

Mental Health - Section 

31 Agreement for the 

Exercise of Mental 

Health Function - LBB 

and Oxleas

Oxleas NHS 

Foundation 

Trust

£30,438,550  £      1,570,450  £   1,373,390  £     1,373,390 01-Dec-04 30-Nov-24 240

Richard 

Haines
Stephen John

ICT - Domiciliary Care 

Software Planning 

System

Advanced 

Health & Care 

Ltd

£111,660 £5,583 £144,000 £144,000 01-Apr-06 31-Mar-26 240

Lorna 

Blackwood

Lorna 

Blackwood

Older People - St Marks 

PCC (Lease)

Biggin Hill 

Community 

Care 

Association

 £             322,500  £           20,991  £         18,547  £          18,547 10-Oct-01 09-Oct-31 360

Colin Lusted Stephen John

Learning Disabilities - 

Capital Works and 

Housing Management 

at 4 Homes for Adults 

with Learning 

Disabilities

Croydon 

Churches 

Housing 

Association

 £             100,000  £         100,000  £         56,600  £          56,600 18-Nov-13 17-Nov-38 300

19 of 19

P
age 121



T
his page is left intentionally blank


	Agenda
	1 Adult Social Care Local Account 2015/16
	App. 1 to Adult Social Care Local Account 2015/16

	2 Bromley Safeguarding Children Board Annual Report 2015/16
	Enc. 1 for Bromley Safeguarding Children Board Annual Report 2015/16

	3 Contract Activity Report 2016/17
	Enc. 1 for Contract Activity Report 2016/17


